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DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S STATEMENT

BIITHRARKE

On behalf of the management of Mason Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | hereby present to shareholders the consolidated
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”) and
prospects of the Group's business in the future.

Facing profound changes in global economic and political
landscape in 2022, in particular, the outbreak of war between
Russia and Ukraine and its prolongation had brought greater
turbulence to the financial market, the Group’s management
unswervingly implemented our management and governance
policy, and spared no effort in reshaping our corporate culture,
enhancing internal collaboration and focusing on sustainable
businesses. By reducing operating costs, business restructuring
and disposing of non-core assets, with a view to improving the
operation and management efficiency of the Company.

1) Amid increasingly intensive competition and more challenging
macro environment, the Group has further adopted
revenue-raising and expenditure-cutting measures during
the Year and delivered remarkable achievements in reducing
operating costs. Benefiting from the notable enhancement
in operating efficiency achieved through measures such
as optimizing the staffing structure, reducing non-essential
daily expenses and standardization of various expenses,
the employee benefits expenses and operating expenses
further decreased by approximately 47% over last year,
and significantly decreased by approximately 51%, 71% and
70% as compared with 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
Firstly, following all of the Group’s wholly-owned direct
operating companies in Hong Kong (the "Hong Kong
Operating Companies”) relocated to the new office in
September 2022, the current monthly rental of the office
premises is only approximately 15% of the monthly rental
for 2019 and 2018; Meanwhile, the monthly rental decreased
by 69% as compared with 2021 and 2020. Furthermore,
in terms of another major cost-related remuneration, the
total remuneration of the Hong Kong Operating Companies
during the Year was only 72%, 62% and 22% of the total
remuneration for 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively,
representing a substantial decrease. Looking ahead into 2023,
we will reduce the total remuneration budget to only 80% of
the total remuneration of the Year, representing only 59%,
51% and 18% of the total remuneration for 2021, 2020 and
2019, respectively.
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DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT
BITHARRE

The financial segment of the Group has delivered steady
performance while making progress in an orderly manner
in various aspects during the Year. Most of the financial
platforms that the Group intensively acquired with significant
investment between 2016 and 2019 performed below
expectation after acquisition. Therefore, the Group was more
cautious in dealing with the needs of capital contribution
of each platform in 2022. Instead, the Group focused on
expanding output and increasing efficiency by utilizing
existing investments. Despite of the challenges in the
business market, the Group's two major financial platforms,
Mason Securities and Harris Fraser Group, continued to
maintain a stable business position during the Year. The result
of Shengang Securities Company Limited, the first domestic
fully-licensed joint venture which is engaged in securities
business founded by the Group in accordance with the
Investment Agreement under the Mainland and Hong Kong
Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement (CEPA), was in line
with expectations, which laid a solid foundation for its further
listing on the A share market. The European private banking
business acquired by the Group in 2018 has recorded losses
in successive years after acquisition, and the losses have
been growing due to the stubbornly high operating costs.
At that time, it would be difficult to reverse the business
weakness without increasing investment, while further
investment would bring greater investment risks to the Group.
In view of this, the Group has decisively carried out voluntary
liquidation in order to avoid heavy burden arising from
mounting losses, and the liquidation was almost completed
during the Year and is expected to be completed in 2023. On
the other hand, the size of financing services provided by the
Group through its lending licenses has been further reduced.
During the Year, the Group focused on recovering and
resolving the risks of previous loans, granted no new loan,
and delivered great achievements in loan recovery by means
of debt restructuring and through legal procedures and the
overall loan exposure has decreased significantly. In the
future, based in Hong Kong, the international financial center,
the Group will be committed to providing better securities,
insurance brokerage and wealth management services to
customers around the globe.
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DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S STATEMENT
BITHARRE

In respect of healthcare services, as the Group maintained its
disposal strategy in the previous year, following completed
the disposal of its assisted reproduction business in Australia
in 2020 and successfully completed the disposal of its
assisted reproduction business in Hong Kong in 2021, the
Group accelerated the disposal of its remaining healthcare
assets and the actions of legal rights protection during the
Year to effectively protect the interests of shareholders and
investors. From 2016 to 2019, the Group made intensive
acquisitions and investment in several healthcare segments.
After prudent review and investigation, we found that there
were various high risks, to safeguard the interests of the
Group’s investment and the general shareholders, various
appropriate actions, including but not limited to necessary
legal rights protection and recovery actions, have been
gradually carried out. In addition, upholding a more prudent
and responsible approach for the benefit of investors, the
Group also made another impairment 1oss on its interests in
the associates in the healthcare segment.

In terms of the mother-infant-child consumer segment,
AYD Group Limited and its subsidiaries (“AYD"), a
mother-infant-child retailer acquired by the Group previously,
and Blend and Pack Pty. Ltd (“B&P"), an Australian infant
formula manufacturer, have both experienced difficulties,
a decline in both turnover and profitability in recent years.
Following the Group's loss of control of AYD in 2019, the
operations of AYD have been deteriorating and encountered
greater financial difficulties and crises both previous year
and during the Year, and it was noted that the situation has
further deteriorated during the Year. The Group is seeking
professional advice to obtain a valid assessment of the
investment risks posed to the Group by AYD. Given the
deteriorating performance of AYD after the Group’s l0ss
of control of the company, an impairment loss was made
again to the equity interests in the company during the Year.
Benefiting from the operational management and control
as a result of the Group’s controlling stake in the company,
B&P successfully resolved the operational and financial
risks during the Year brought about by the narrow customer
concentration and extensive operation and management.
During the Year, B&P was basically self-financed and achieved
significant improvement in its operation. In the future, with
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DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT
BITHARRE

the improvement of the relationship of Sino-Australian and
the gradual diversification of the Company’s customers,
should operation and financial conditions in improved.
Looking ahead into 2023, the Group will continue to embark
on various effective initiatives with the aim of improving
B&P's operating revenue and operating profit margin, which
are expected to contribute to the Group’s revenue and profit
gradually.

On the basis of sufficient cash reserve, while obtaining certain
capital gains through risk-free products such as certificates of
deposit and fixed deposits, the Group also maintained its high
liguidity allocation strategy in the previous year and made
corresponding adjustments in response to market changes
on that basis. Through a diversified equity asset portfolio
consisting of Hong Kong shares, A shares and equity-linked
fixed income products, the Group has made its best efforts in
reducing the concentration risk of its investments. Currently,
the international landscape and global market is experiencing
significant changes unprecedented in a couple of years. In
particular, continuous policy adjustments in various countries,
and the gradual tapering and rate hike cycles of central banks,
have increased the volatility of financial markets. Such macro
and micro factors have further increased the uncertainty in
business and investment. In view of this, the Group will adopt
a more prudent investment approach in 2023, preserving
cash reserve so that it can make decisive moves when the
direction is clear. These initiatives are intended to focus on
sustainable business development to survive and continue to
thrive in a challenging market environment.
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DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S STATEMENT

BIITHRARKE

As the saying goes, “Without the accumulation of little steps, it is
impossible to travel a thousand miles”. We are deeply aware of the
tremendous challenges posed by the rapid changing market. If we
want to achieve the goal of long-term success, we must rely on the
clear business strategies of the Board and the management, the
sense of responsibility and execution of all employees, and also
rely on the inclusion and better fulfillment of social responsibilities
in the corporate culture to better serve and repay the society.

Looking ahead into 2023, the Group will continue to focus on
the development of the financial services segment and seize the
opportunity of post-pandemic economic recovery around the
Greater China and the global. The Group will explore new market
opportunities in the financial services segment, including securities,
asset management and insurance brokerage, by integrating
resources, embracing changes and proactively undertaking service
innovation and product innovation to achieve better returns on
equity for our shareholders. Despite the uncertainties and fierce
competition in the market environment, by leveraging on the
Group's sufficient cash reserve, united and aggressive corporate
culture and various optimized management measures adopted by
the management, we are confident to achieve better performance
in 2023.

Finally, on behalf of the Board and the management, | would like
to thank our shareholders, business partners and staff for their
support and contribution.

Han Ruixia
Mason Group Holdings Limited
Deputy Chief Executive Officer
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

OVERVIEW

As a Hong Kong based company, the Company principally provides
comprehensive financial services in Mainland China, Japan, South
Korea and Europe, with businesses covering private banking, wealth
and asset management, securities and futures brokerage, securities
margin financing, corporate finance advisory services, investment
in securities trading and money lending. As an investment holding
company, in addition to directly investing in the healthcare sector
and mother-infant-child consumer products sector, the Group
also takes trading of securities as a principal business and invests
conservatively in local and global stocks.

RESULTS

During the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year"), the Group
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$4,444.10 million (2021:
HK$4,012.51 million) and operating income of approximately
HK$51.93 million (2021: HK$604.43 million). The increase in the
turnover was primarily due to the increased gross sales proceeds
from trading of securities investments, while the decrease in
operating income was due to the loss incurred from the sales of
trading of securities investments, together with the decrease of
operating income generated from wealth and asset management,
financial brokerage and related services and manufacture of infant
formula and nutritional products.

During the Year, loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
was approximately HK$414.97 million (2021: loss attributable to
equity holders of HK$733.62 million), and basic and diluted loss
per share were 0.94 Hong Kong cents (2021: loss per share of 1.65
Hong Kong cents). The decrease in loss for the Year was mainly
due to (i) the adoption of stringent cost control measures, operating
costs decreased from approximately HK$191.51 million of the
same period last year to approximately HK$106.04 million; (i) the
reduction of the impairment loss on interests in associates due to
improvement of operating results of certain associate investments,
from approximately HK$194.51 million of the same period last
year to approximately HK$152.09 million; and (iii) an absence of
impairment loss on amount due from related parties amounted to
HK$188.79 million recognised in the same period of last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR D

MARKET AND BUSINESS REVIEW

Throughout 2022, the COVID-19 pandemic continued and the
Russo-Ukrainian War has been intensifying, while the energy crisis
in Europe was imminent. The United States continued to raise
interest rates to curb inflation, the rate hike has induced a series of
aftereffects, triggering a crisis of currency depreciation in various
countries, and the plunging of the exchange rate of renminbi
(“RMB"), while the Sino-U.S. relations are increasingly competitive
and confrontational. In addition to facing the above-mentioned
numerous external difficulties, Hong Kong also has many internal
difficulties. In the tide of migration, talents have continuously
emigrated over the past two years. Under the lock-down and
pandemic prevention policies, there has been a lack of southbound
and foreign business travelers as stimulus to consumption.
During the Year, the number of visitors to Hong Kong was only
approximately 600,000, being less than 1% of the pre-pandemic
level of almost 65 million visitors in 2018. The above-mentioned
unfavorable factors inevitably pose severe challenges to the
Group's core businesses, the Group’s financial services — provision
of wealth and asset management, financial brokerage and related
services, and securities investment business — bear the brunt in
particular.

With the intensification of inflation in the United States, the Federal
Reserve sped up interest rate hikes, with a cumulative increase
of 4.3% for the whole year of 2022. The property market in Hong
Kong was weakened thereafter, and the performance of Hong Kong
stocks was even more disappointing. Such drop within the year has
put Hong Kong as one the top three of the world’s worst-performing
stock markets, with all figures showing unsatisfactory performance:
the Hang Seng Index dropped by approximately 50% from a high to
a low since 2021. According to the data of the Stock Exchange, the
daily average trading amount of Hong Kong stocks fell to HK$92.9
billion in September, representing a decrease of nearly 28%
compared with January, Hang Seng Index dropped below 15,000,
hitting a 13-year low.

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

In 2022, the number of enterprises applying for IPO in Hong
Kong stock market decreased continually, with only a total of
89 companies have successfully listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange throughout the Year. In the past three years, from 2019
to 2021, the number of Hong Kong IPO enterprises was 161, 146
and 97 respectively. The number of enterprises applying for IPO in
the Hong Kong stock market in 2022 has reached a record low level
since 2014, and has fallen by more than 50% compared to the peak
of new stock listings in 2018. For the whole year of 2022, the total
funds raised in the IPO market of Hong Kong stock market was only
approximately HK$104.57 billion, a sharp declined of nearly 70%
year-on-year, and it has also hit a record low level since 2013. In
view of the above-mentioned difficult operating environment, the
Group faced up to the difficulties, demonstrated its resilience by
reducing operating costs, and prepared for further development of
its financial services and investment opportunities through effective
group restructuring.

Financial Services — Provision of wealth and
asset management, financial brokerage and
related services

The Group’s financial services business segment primarily
focused on wealth management platform consisting of securities
and futures brokerages, private banking, fixed income sales
and distribution, discretionary account and asset management,
insurance brokerage services, securities margin financing, leverage
financing solutions and provision of corporate finance advisory and
related services.

The total operating income contributed by this business
segment during the Year was approximately HK$154.80 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 54.4% as compared
with approximately HK$339.48 million for the same period of last
year. The loss was approximately HK$49.00 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 46.8% as compared with approximately
HK$92.10 million for the same period of last year. The decrease in
operating income and the decrease in loss was primarily due to the
shrinking of the average daily turnover of securities on HKEx for the
Year, the contraction of the IPO financing market, the prolonged
social distancing and travel restriction measures during the
COVID-19 outbreak as well as ever-increasing competition among
financial institutions in the market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR D

Voluntary Liquidation of Mason Privatbank
Liechtenstein AG (“MPL")

The voluntary liguidation of MPL commenced in March 2021 and is
still in progress as at the date of this report. During the Year, one
of the liquidators, Walpart Trust Registered, resigned as liquidators
and Seeger, Frick & Partners was appointed as liguidators, together
with PricewaterhouseCoopers GmbH.

Financial Services — Provision of financing
services

During the Year, the Group’s provision of financing service is
conducted through Mason Resources Finance Limited (“MRFL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and is licensed to
conduct money lending activities under the Money Lenders
Ordinance. MRFL primarily engages in offering secured loans to
businesses in Hong Kong, contributed a total operating income of
approximately HK$17.34 million (2021: HK$24.96 million) and net
gain of approximately HK$26.48 million (2021: net loss of HK$4.94
million). The improvement in the profitability of the segment
was primarily due to the reversal of expected credit loss of
approximately HK$20.49 million.

For the loan receivables of approximately HK$180.1 million,
HK$173.4 million are related to the three borrowers of the money
lending business of MRFL, (namely, Project D, Project E and Project
O, with the loan receivables of approximately HK$36.9 million,
HK$21.4 million and HK$115.1 million, respectively). Except for a
loan receivable of approximately HK$6.7 million, which is related
to the private banking business of MPL (currently under voluntary
liguidation as disclosed above), all the loan receivables are related
to the money lending business of MRFL.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The decrease in operating income attributable to this segment
was aligned with a more conservative credit strategy imposed
by the Group since late 2019. After comprehensive and diligent
evaluation, the overall loan portfolio was reduced, with effective
actions taken to accelerate the recovery of outstanding loans. With
the implementation of these efforts, credit ratios and collaterals
quality in the overall loan portfolio have notably improved. With
the Group's focus geared towards a more granular risk appetite, its
active portfolio management actions involved all credit proposals
being subject to robust credit risk assessments. Regular credit
monitoring and the credit mitigation through enhancement of
collaterals are also part of the controlling tools in the Group's
credit risk management life cycle. For the Year, the total size
of the Group's loan portfolio of money lending business was
approximately HK$335.27 million (2021: HK$351.27 million), with
credit impairment of approximately HK$192.86 million (2021:
HK$213.34 million). In view of the current economic and market
conditions, the Group have not granted any new loan during the
Year. Details of the loan portfolio are as follows:

RO HEEKLEWRAR D EREEBE —T—NF
EREEERTHEERE - - LEXEREE
FhE BRERESHERYD  YEFKIMAN
BEMRKEREEER - BRERZERE
BEEFHAHEELXRIERRRERBEERS -
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BRRBIE - ©HEEEE RS BIRA KRR
BEETARSEEERKRE R LM AR HE
BIAZ— RAFE AEEREEBHER
MHARIEA $£493352700008 L (Z T = —F:
351,270,000/ 7T) * {= &R (B 4 £192,860,0007% 7T
(ZZ = —1% : 213,340,000/ 7T) ° R B Bl
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21 2A 2\
EEENWmR DN
Project D
HED
Date of signing loan agreement 30 June 2017
with client
HEPHEEENHELBH —E—+FX A=TH
Maturity date 3 July 2020
3HR —Z-TFtAH=H

Outstanding principal as at 31
December 2022

RZE-_—F+=-A=+—H
ZAREERE

Approx. HK$112.21 million

#9112,210,0007% 7T

Outstanding loan interest as at
31 December 2022

RZZB-ZZF+-R=+—H
ZARBEERFE

Approx. HK$41.93 million

#741,930,0007% 7T

Interest rate 10% per annum

ik R E10%
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Project E
HEBE

1 September 2017

“E—tFNA—H

4 September 2020

—E-FEFNAMNA

Approx. HK$104.18 million

#104,180,0007% 7T

Approx. HK$36.96 million

#936,960,0007% 7T

10% per annum

FHE10%

Project O
HAO

4 November 2016

“E—RF+—HAWMH

6 November 2025 (extended on
15 November 2022)

ZZE-RFT—ARB(RZ
TF+—ATHAEH)

Approx. HK$118.88 million

#9118,880,0007% 7T

Approx. HK$2.25 million

#92,250,0007% 7T

12.125% or 7.125% per annum
on top of the Prime Rate
quoted by HSBC (whichever
is higher) for loan principal
above HK$80 million;

B AR 480,000,000/ 7L £ -
BH12125E B L RITH
W BB 7,125 (A
BaaRE),

11.125% or 6.125% per annum
on top of the Prime Rate
quoted by HSBC (whichever
is higher) for loan principal
equal to or lower than HK$80
million

BRI & Z R 5 K780,000,000
BT BENIBEREE
RITFT BB B K pN6.125
[E (A R&ERE)
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Project D

HED HEBE

Collateral (if any) and its fair
value as at 31 December
2022

Personal guarantee, listed/
unlisted securities, approx.
HK$35.28 million

Bfm (WA RR-F -
tTZRA=t—HZ2ARE

EARR - £/ LmE
%+ #935,280,0007% 7T

Reversal of impairment losses
recognised during the Year

RAFERER 2 REER
# o

Approx. HK$(11.51) million

47(11,510,000)7% 7T

Accumulated impairment
losses recognised as at 31
December 2022

RZB-_ZF+=-ZA=+—H
BR 2 ZFTREBE

Approx. HK$93.07 million

#793,070,0007%8 7T

At 31 December 2022, the loan made to the largest borrower and
the three largest borrowers accounted for 66.4% and 100% of the
Group's loan portfolio (on a net of impairment allowance basis).

The Company assesses the impairment loss on financial assets for
expected credit loss in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 9 Financial Instruments.

For the Year, a reversal of impairment loss on loan receivables of
HK$20.49 million (2021: a net impairment loss of HK$16.53 million)
was recognised with the balance of the impairment allowance
decreased by 9.6% or decreased from HK$213.34 million to
HK$192.86 million at 31 December 2022.

For “Project Q”, the Company entered into an extension agreement
with the debtor during the Year, which details were duly set out in
its related announcement dated 15 November 2022.

Project E

Personal guarantee, listed
Securities, approx.
HK$20.05 million

BAER - EWm/ JELmE
%+ #920,050,000/% 7T

Approx. HK$(7.00) million

49(7,000,000)7% 7T

Approx. HK$93.73 million

#793,730,0007% 7T

Project O
HEO

Corporate/personal guarantee,
listed/unlisted securities,
properties, approx.
HK$258.29 million

DAL/ EAER - Ew/
FLEMES ME L
258,290,000/ 7T

Approx. HK$(1.97) million

#47(1,970,000)7% 7T

Approx. HK$6.06 million

#16,060,0007% 7T

RZBE-_—F+_A=+—H ZmRERXAR=
AERAZEFBHAEEBERHEE 2664%%
100% (R H0BR R BREEEE) -

RRABIRBEBEEVBRSESEAESR SR T A
EMBEERBAREEERZBERE -

AR - B3R 2 Rl B85 15 8 131 /220,490,000
BT (ZE - —%F FRIERER16,530,00087T) -

R-E- —F+ - A=+—HBZRERBESRR
19.6%3k F1213,340,0007% 7T /& 4> 2 192,860,0007%%

T o
FMIBEOIME » ARREREBACREFER

VSR FRFBCERAARBEHRR T
T CE+—ATHRAZEEAE -
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In order to recover the loans from “Project D" and “Project E”,
the Board has engaged in continuous negotiations to press for
loan repayment, provisions of further collaterals and guarantees
and etc. so as to reduce credit risks, yet despite certain partial
repayments (with top-up collaterals/guarantees) have resulted,
full repayment of these loans have still failed upon maturity. With
further negotiations fruitless, the Board had no other option but to
engage external legal counsels to institute legal proceedings with
the view to fully recover these loans. As of the date of this report,
no final judgments have been received so as to fully recover the
loans from “Project D" and “Project E” and the Board will continue
to follow up with external legal counsels with the view to fully
recover these loans.

Before granting loans to potential borrowers, the Group performs
credit assessment process to assess the potential borrowers’
credit quality individually and defines the credit limits granted
to the borrowers. The credit assessment process encompasses
detailed assessment on the credit history and financial background
of the potential borrowers, as well as the value and nature of the
collaterals to be pledged. The credit limits of loans successfully
granted to the borrowers are reviewed by the management
regularly as part of the ongoing loan monitoring process. Risk
management is an integral part of the success of the money
lending business. The Group has clear credit policies, guidelines,
controls and procedures in place which cover every aspect of the
operation from information verification, credit assessment, loan
approval, loan monitoring to collection. The operation has clear
authorisation and approval hierarchy and is led and managed by
a team of qualified and experienced personnel. The management
team is able to deliver expedite credit approval process to
customers without compromising the commercial benefits of
lending decisions made.

The following depicts the typical operational procedures for
processing a loan application:

1. Verification: documents and information provided by the
loan applicant will be verified by the delegated loan officer
and where appropriate, legal and credit search on the loan
applicant will be conducted.
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2. Assessment: credit assessment on the loan applicant will
be performed by the delegated loan officer and reviewed by
the supervising officer, by making reference to the financial
background and credit history of the applicant, and value of
the collateral provided (if any), where appropriate, the credit
assessment on the applicant will be further reviewed by the
responsible director.

3. Approval: if the loan application is approved, the delegated
loan officer will arrange preparation and signing of the loan
documentations and the supervising officer will ensure their
proper execution, including drawdown of the loan proceeds
by the applicant.

4. Monitoring: there will be continuous monitoring on loan
repayments from individual borrower by the loan officer
and regular review if there are material changes of the
borrower’s repayment ability by the supervising officer, where
appropriate, impairment allowance on individual loan will be
made if there is deterioration of credit quality of the loan with
approval from the responsible director.

5. Collection: will make calls and send reminders to individual
borrower for overdue loan repayment and when there is a
default of loan repayment, will take appropriate enforcement
action, including legal action, to recover the loan.

The Group has a system in place to closely monitor the
recoverability of its loan portfolio, its credit monitoring measures
include regular collateral reviews against market information
and regular communication with the borrowers of their financial
position, through which the Group will be able to keep updated
with the latest credit profile and risk associated with each individual
borrower and could take appropriate actions for recovery of a
loan at the earliest time. If circumstances require, the Group will
commence legal actions against the borrowers for recovery of the
overdue loans and taking possession of the collaterals pledged.

2. FHEERENEFRABSHERSAF

ETEENE THEEAEZ2EZRF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group performs impairment assessment, on each reporting
date, on loan receivables under the expected credit losses (“ECL")
model. The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, the loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default (i.e. the magnitude
of the loss after accounting for value of the collateral if there is a
default). The assessment of probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking information,
the amount of ECL is updated to reflect the changes in credit risk
on loan receivables since initial recognition. In assessing ECL,
the loan receivables have been assessed with reference to the
borrowers’ creditworthiness and credit history, including their
financial positions, previous records of default in payment, value of
collaterals pledged and prevailing market conditions.

Financial Services — Trading of securities
investments

The listed securities held by the Group, for the purpose of
proprietary investment, are mainly listed on the Australian,
Mainland China, Hong Kong, and United States stock markets.
The Group focused its investment, including but not limited to
securities trading and funds investment, in specialised sectors,
with investments conducted with a cautious attitude and under
strict discipline. During the Year, with the Hang Seng Index was
plunging sharply from approximately 24,000 points in January 2022
to approximately 14,800 points in October 2022, although the index
rebounded to approximately 19,700 points in December 2022, the
Group's proprietary trading of securities still recorded a loss of
approximately HK$246.88 million (2021: loss of HK$93.47 million).

Healthcare service — Provision of medical and
laboratory services

The Group's healthcare business comprises of the provision of
genetic diagnostic and counselling services, and health check
services. During the Year, the results of the Group's healthcare
business are entirely contributed by associated companies of the
Group, Pangenia Inc and its subsidiaries (“Pangenia”).
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Since the outbreak of COVID-19 in 2021, social distancing measures,
inclusive of travel restrictions and quarantine arrangements,
directly reduced the number of customers from Mainland China
and overseas who patronise the Group’s healthcare services.
Nevertheless, Pangenia’s laboratory was accredited by The Hong
Kong Laboratory Accreditation Scheme during the Year. Due to
the increasing demand for Reverse transcription polymerase chain
reaction (RT-PCR) for COVID-19, the loss from the segment during
the Year, has reduced significantly from HK$23.18 million in the
same period last year to HK$1.21 million and the impairment losses
of HK$16.11 million resulted from the uncertainty of the business
prospect of Pangenia as Hong Kong have announced to drop all
COVID-19 measures, including RT-PCR in 2023.

Mother-infant-child consumer products — infant
formula manufacturing and sales

This business segment mainly includes AYD Group Limited and its
subsidiaries (“AYD Group”) which operates the franchise operating
and managed retail stores of mother-infant-child products in
Mainland China, as well as Blend and Pack Pty. Ltd ("B&P"), the
Australia-based manufacturer of infant formula and nutritional
products.

During the Year, this business segment contributed an operating
income of approximately HK$72.71 million (2021: HK$182.87
million) and a loss of approximately HK$160.41 million (2021: loss
of HK$433.97 million). The loss was due to an impairment loss
on interests in associates of HK$135.99 million (2021: HK$177.31
million) resulted from deterioration of the business prospect
of AYD Group and the impairment loss on intangible assets of
approximately HK$15.38 million resulted from the unsatisfactory
operating results of B&P in the Year.

During the Year, the revenue generated by AYD Group decreased
by approximately 15.7% when compared to 2021, although the
net loss decreased by 93.1% compared to 2021, AYD Group still
suffered a net loss of approximately HK$6.53 million (2021: net 10ss
of HK$94.97 million). B&P generated a revenue of approximately
HK$75.25 million (2021: HK$182.99 million) and a net loss of
approximately HK$6.38 million (2021: net loss of HK$11.30 million) in
the Year, representing a 58.9% and a 43.5% decrease respectively
when compared to 2021.
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Investment holding

The investment holding business segment mainly holds the
investments in private equity and funds, for earning dividend
and investment income and capital appreciation purpose. As
at 31 December 2022, the segment assets of this segment was
approximately HK$1,556.11 million (2021: HK$1,495.06 million),
of which HK$842.01 million (2021: HK$942.98 million) represents
investment in a private equity, and HK$13.13 million (2021:
HK$16.24 million) represents investments in funds. During the Year,
segment income of approximately HK$1.78 million (2021: HK$0.05
million) and segment gain of approximately HK$17.78 million (2021:
loss of HK$101.35 million) generated from fund investments were
recorded.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's total assets amounted to
approximately HK$4,217.82 million (31 December 2021: HK$4,806.75
million), among which 41.5% (2021: 36.2%) was bank deposits and
cash of approximately HK$1,750.38 million (31 December 2021:
HK$1,737.45 million). The bank deposits and cash comprised fixed
deposits of approximately HK$1,107.90 million (31 December 2021:
HK$551.46 million) in aggregate.

As at 31 December 2022, the net current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$2,466.46 million (2021:
approximately HK$2,725.12 million), which included bank deposits
and cash of approximately HK$1,750.38 million (2021: approximately
HK$1,737.45 million). The current ratio, expressed as current assets
over current liabilities, was approximately 8.94 (2021: approximately
9.68). The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2022
(defined as total interest-bearing borrowings over the total equity)
was 2.0% (31 December 2021: nil).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group have a secured bank loan of
approximately CHF9 million (equivalent to approximately HK$76.03
million) secured by mortgage of the two bank buildings owned
by MPL in favour of the Bank Frick & Co AG, of which, carried an
interest of 3.5% per annum (2021: the Group did not have any
interest-bearing borrowings).
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As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company’s total amount of
issued and fully paid share capital is HK$6,142.96 million and the
total number of issued shares with no par value is 44,364,885,557
shares.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total equity amounted to
approximately HK$3,869.61 million (2021: HK$4,414.18 million),
taking into account of non-controlling interest of approximately
HK$43.38 million (31 December 2021: HK$49.39 million).

After taking into account the capital structure and liquidity
analysis of the Group during the reporting period, as well as the
estimated cash flows generated from the Group's operations, the
management of the Group is satisfied that the Group will have
sufficient working capital in the future to sustain the development
of our current continuing operations and focus on the major
advantageous businesses.

Treasury Policies

Having considered the Group's current cash and cash equivalents,
bank and other borrowings and banking facilities, the management
believes that the Group's financial resources are sufficient
for its day-to-day operations. The Group did not use financial
instruments for financial hedging purposes during the Year. The
Group's business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Australia dollars, Swiss Franc, Renminbi and
Hong Kong dollars. Fluctuations in foreign currency may have an
impact on the Group’s results and net asset value as the Group's
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group's treasury policy is to manage its foreign
currency exposure only when its potential financial impact is
material to the Group. The Group will continue to monitor its
foreign exchange position and, if necessary, utilise hedging tools, if
available, to manage its foreign currency exposure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PROSPECTS

The Directors are of the view that the general outlook of the
industry and the business environment in which the Group
operates will remain challenging. Although the economy of Hong
Kong is showing signs of gradual recovery with the relaxation
of COVID-19 restrictions, the rapid increase in interest rates as
induced by the US Fed and the Russo-Ukrainian conflict have also
dampened the global economy may continue to affect the industry
as well as the operation of the Group. In light of the uncertain
business environment, the Group will continue to adopt prudent
financial management and cost control. Furthermore, the Group
considers it is an opportunity to expand its competitive financial
strength to establish a stronger presence in the Hong Kong financial
industry by increasing new market share within the securities
margin financing business as well as expanding opportunities in
Southbound Trading and Northbound Trading in the year 2023.
Meanwhile, the Group will continue to explore suitable business
and investment opportunities to drive its business growth.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total capital commitment
of approximately HK$56.64 million (2021: HK$56.65 million),
contracted for but not provided for in the financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group previously entered into agreements to provide certain
parent guarantees for bank loan facilities granted to AYD Group
for its working capital requirements. As at 31 December 2022, the
maximum aggregate amount of the guarantees was RMB13.50
million (approximately HK$15.11 million) (2021 RMB13.50 million,
approximately HK$16.52 million) which were fully utilised. A
guarantee fee will be charged at 1.5% per annum of the drawdown
amount.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st December, 2022, carrying values of property, plant
and equipment of approximately CHF20.00 million (equivalent to
HK$168.96 million) were pledged for banking facilities granted to
MPL, for the purpose of maintaining necessary operational liquidity
level of MPL during its liquidation process.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND/OR DISPOSALS
The Group did not undertake any material acquisitions or disposals
during the Year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group remains cautious about the trading performance of its
portfolio of securities. With volatile global financial markets during
the Year, the Group proactively grasp investment opportunities
and made stock investments to capture trading profits. A net
fair value loss recognised for the Group’s trading of securities
investments amounted to approximately HK$52.29 million (2021:
loss of HK$119.90 million) during the Year. The Group held a listed
investments with market value over HK$50.00 million as at 31
December 2022 as set out below:

List of significant stocks in terms of market value
as at 31 December 2022
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stock exchange

Brief
description
of the business

B

—g—-

+2A=1-8
B8R

B/
BARERSH
il R

EBEN

Tencent Holdings Limited 700 Provision of value-added services, 202,000
FinTech and business services
and online advertising services

RELERE  2RBER

E TG E A v

BRERERAR

O
shares held

31 December

tzA=1-8
BB

EABER RHESE
RAER  REEL TR EARBR &
8-

BEARE
REBHEFHEENRGRBRIGBELE -
ENAFERHRERTS LIRS  REEER
PREFEERSIWEITREREUNEREZRT -
AFEERN AEEREEFFREBRABZARE
B FE4) B52,2900008 L (T = —4F : I8
119,900,000 7T) - AEBR T _=_F+=A
=+— BB m{ERRBE50,0000008 T2 tTHRE
FIBHIIAT -

R-B-—F+=-A=+—HBRmES
THEERRSIR

Percentage
to total
assets value
of the Group
as at

31 December
2022

iy

:E::
tZA=1-H
EAEEEELE
R

Market
value
as at

31 December
2022

Investment
cost
as at

31 December
2022

as at

2022

i i i
ot Sl it S
tZA=+-A tZA=t-H
WRERK W
HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR

—E—-

—_——

0.002% 99,447 67,468 1.60%

EREBEZERERAT / 2022FERE



24

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Significant stock gain/(loss) for the year ended 31
December 2022

BE-ZT__H+-A=t—HLFE

Name of stock
listed on Stock

Exchange/overseas Stock

stock exchange

RERF/
BHEHR G
i) T

Brief
description
of the business

ES 3 MY

Tencent Holdings 700 Provision of value-added services,
Limited FinTech and business services
and online advertising services

RELERSE  2BBRER
EBRBERBERES RS

BAERAERAR

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, as at 31 December 2022, the
Group did not have any immediate plan for material investments or
acquisition of material capital assets.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed 75 employees
globally (31 December 2021: 121), including 71 full-time and 4
part-time employees. The decrease in the number of employees
was mainly due to company restructuring. Staff costs of the
Group were approximately HK$59.46 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: HK$72.74 million). The remuneration
policy and package of the Group’s employees are structured in
accordance to market terms and statutory requirements where
appropriate. The Group also provides other staff benefits such as
discretionary bonus, medical insurance and mandatory provident
fund.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EVENT AFTER THE YEAR
No important event that affects the Group has taken place since 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established and maintained sufficient risk
management procedures to identify and control various types of
risk within the organisation and the external environment with
active management participation and effective internal control
procedures in the best interest of the Group and its shareholders.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Han Ruixia, aged 38, has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Company since 16 April 2020. Ms. Han is also the
Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Group, chairman of the
management committee of the Group and a director of certain
subsidiaries and associates of the Company. Ms. Han has over
13 years’ experiences in the field of finance, fund management
and risk management. Ms. Han is currently an independent
non-executive director of China Gold International Resources Corp.
Ltd. (a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 2099, and Toronto Stock Exchange, stock code: CGG)
and Jinchuan Group International Resources Co. Ltd. (a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2362)).
Prior to joining the Company in late 2019, she was the head of
operations and risk of MEC Advisory Limited, which is the sole
investment advisor to Can-China Global Resource Fund. Ms. Han's
role covered investment, accounting, finance treasury and investor
relationships related matters. Prior to joining MEC Advisory Limited
in 2014, Ms. Han was an investment manager at The Export-import
Bank of China (China EXIM Bank). Ms. Han has obtained her PhD
of Economics (Finance), Master degree in Applied Economics
(Venture Capital) and Bachelor of Economics (Finance) from Renmin
University of China.

Mr. Zhang Zhenyi, aged 42, has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Company since 21 April 2020. Mr. Zhang is also
the Chief Financial Officer of the Group, company secretary of
the Company, member of the management committee of the
Group and a director of certain subsidiaries and associates of the
Company. Mr. Zhang has over 19 years' experience in financial, risk
and investment management. From January 2018 to February 2020,
he was an executive director, chief financial officer, authorised
representative and authorised person of Wan Kei Group Holdings
Limited (“Wan Kei Group”) (a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1718), and has been re-designated
to a non-executive director of Wan Kei Group since March 2020.
Mr. Zhang also acts as an independent non-executive director of
Jiangsu Protruly Vision Technology Group Company Limited (T
HRTREEGRBREERM AR AAF) @ company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600074) and subsequently
delisted in June 2020) since July 2018. He was also an independent
non-executive director of Carry Wealth Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 643) from March 2017 to August 2022. Mr. Zhang currently
serves as an corporate instructor of MPAcC at Harbin Institute of
Technology, and a students mentor of professional postgraduate
students at Jinan University, University of Science and Technology
Beijing and Zhongnan University of Economics and Law. Mr. Zhang
obtained a Master Degree of Business Management’ ( T 3 & 1218
+ 27 ) from University of Science and Technology Beijing in 2011.
He holds qualifications as a Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Senior Accountant in the PRC. Mr. Zhang is also
an International Affiliate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants and CPA Australia, respectively and
holds the certificate of independent director of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol, aged 47, has been appointed as a
non-executive Director of the Company, a member of each of
the remuneration committee and nomination committee of
the Company since 5 October 2016. Ms. Hui has more than
23 years' experience in property development, and more than
16 years' experience in management and strategic planning
of listed companies. Ms. Hui is currently the vice chairman of
Shanghai Shimao Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600823), and the vice chairman and
president of Shimao International Holdings Limited. Ms. Hui is
also the sole director of Future Achiever Limited (“FAL") and the
daughter of Mr. Hui Wing Mau, the beneficial owner of FAL which
is a substantial shareholder of the Company. Ms. Hui obtained
a Bachelor’'s Degree in Commerce majoring in Accounting from
Macquarie University in Australia in 1997. She is also a Certified
Practising Accountant in Australia. Ms. Hui is currently a member
of Beijing Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, a council member of Beijing Chinese
Overseas Friendship Association and a member of the Youth
Committee of All-China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tian Ren Can, aged 61, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company, a member
of each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company since 26 April 2016.
Mr. Tian has more than 24 years of working experience in the field
of finance and investment. Mr. Tian is currently the chief executive
officer of UBP Investments Management (Shanghai) Limited. Before
that, Mr. Tian worked for multi-national financial institutes. Mr. Tian
obtained a Master Degree of Business Administration awarded
jointly by Manchester Business School and University of Wales
of the United Kingdom. He obtained a Master Degree in Political
Sciences International Relations from Shanghai International Studies
University. Mr. Tian graduated from Shanghai Foreign Languages
Institute with a Bachelor Degree in French Language and French
Literature.
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Mr. Wang Cong, aged 32, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company, a member of each of the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company since 1 December 2018. He was
appointed as chairman of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company on 1 December 2019 and
13 January 2020 respectively. Mr. Wang graduated from National
University of Singapore with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Engineering
Science in 2013. He obtained his Master Degree and Ph.D. degree
in Aeronautics from California Institute of Technology in 2014
and 2019. He is a co-inventor of one formal patent and two
patents under application* filed with the United States Patent and
Trademark Office, including medical device and fluid dynamic.

*Notes:

(1) US Patent 10,787,231 “System, Methods, and Apparatuses for
Reducing Hydrodynamic Frictional Drag”

(2)  Patent application no. 14/947767 filed on 20 November, 2015 “Micro-
Needle Drug Delivery Systems”

3 Patent application no. 15/411544 filed on 20 January, 2017 “Vertical
Carbon Nanotube and Lithium lon Battery Chemistries, Articles,
Architectures and Manufacture”

Mr. Wu Xu'an, aged 43, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company and chairman of the audit
committee of the Company since 12 March 2020. Mr. Wu has over
19 years of solid experiences in tax issues, auditing, accounting
and business management. Mr. Wu is currently the Tax Partner
of Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited and the executive director of
Huarong Hongyi Management Consultancy (Shenzhen) Limited®.
He is primarily responsible for providing consultancy services on
tax and audit issues to the listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Wu
graduated from Guangdong Polytechnic Normal University with
a bachelor’s degree in accountancy in 2004 and obtained his
master’'s degree in software engineering from Xiamen University
in 2016. Mr. Wu is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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Mr. Ng Yu Yuet, aged 50, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company and a member of each
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company since 16 April 2020. Mr. Ng has more
than 28 years’ experience in auditing, accounting and finance
He is currently running a professional accounting firm with other
partners in Hong Kong. He has also worked for a number of
local and international accounting firms in Hong Kong and listed
companies on the Stock Exchange, between the years of 1993 to
2009. Mr. Ng obtained a Master Degree in Business Administration
from The Open University of Hong Kong (now known as Hong Kong
Metropolitan University) in 2004 and is a member of both the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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The board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) presents
their annual report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2022 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

As a Hong Kong based company, the Group principally provides
comprehensive financial services in Mainland China, Japan, South
Korea and Europe, with businesses covering private banking, wealth
and asset management, securities and futures brokerage, securities
margin financing, corporate finance advisory services, investment
in securities trading and money lending. As an investment holding
company, in addition to directly investing in the healthcare sector
and mother-infant-child consumer products sector, the Group
also takes trading of securities as a principal business and invests
conservatively in local and global stocks.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review with financial key performance indicators
analysis and future development in the Group’s business can
be found in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section
of this annual report while details of the principal activities and
other particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2022 are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group and
discussion on the environmental policies and performance were set
out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” section
of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 114
to 115. The Board did not recommend payment of final dividend to
shareholders of the Company for the Year (2021: nil).

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the Year are set out in the notes 34 and 48 to the consolidated
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 119 to 120 of the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS
The Group has not made charitable donations during the Year
(2021: HK$5,000).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 276.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
Year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) adopted
on 22 May 2012 (the “Adoption Date") which will remain in force
for a period of 10 years commencing from the Adoption Date to
give the participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the Company and to encourage them to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit
of the Company and the shareholders as a whole. Under the
Scheme, the Directors may at their discretion grant options to
participants including all directors and employees of the Group
and any other persons including consultants, advisors, agents,
customers, suppliers, service provider, contractor, business partner
or connected person of the Group or its associates to subscribe for
shares in the Company.

During the Year, no share option was granted, exercised, expired or
lapsed and there is no outstanding share option under the Scheme.
The Scheme was lapsed on 21 May 2022. Details of share option
scheme of the Group are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OF SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date
of this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Ms. Han Ruixia
Mr. Zhang Zhenyi

Non-executive Director
Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tian Ren Can

Mr. Wang Cong

Mr. Wu Xu'an

Mr. Ng Yu Yuet

Pursuant to Article 115 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Zhang
Zhenyi, Mr. Tian Ren Can and Mr. Wang Cong will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at that meeting.

Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation and
re- election at the general meetings of the Company in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company. The Directors
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
do not have service contracts which are not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non- executive directors an annual confirmation of the
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES
The names of Directors who have served on the Boards of the
Company'’s subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2022

are set out below:

Chan Chun Yip

Chan Siu Lui

Chan Tsun Hong Philip
Cho Sze Kwok

Chow Wai Man Ronny
Fok Kenny Tsz Chun
Geng Xiaohui

Grant Andrew James
Han Ruixia

lun Sio Hong

Jiang Eric Hua Jian
Kwok Sum Kan Jason
Kwok Wang Hei

Lam Po Mui

Lam Wai Hung

Law Wai Ip Vincent
Leong Weng San

Li Huasong

Moritz Blasy

Ng Yuen Yee

Phey Serene Sai Lin
Ting Sai Man

Tsui Yee Ni

Wong Chueng Chung
Wong Tsz San

Wong Yui Ho

Yang Tao

Zhang Zhenyi
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, no interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) were held by the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company which have
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or have been entered in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Appendix 10 (the “Model Code”) of
the Listing Rules.

At no time during the Year was the Company, any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the following interests and short positions
of 5% or more of the issued share capital and underlying shares
of the Company (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) were recorded in the register of interests required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions

Nature of interest
ERME

Hui Wing Mau Interest of controlled corporation
FFERIX ZEHEERER

Chen Sung-Tse Interest of controlled corporation

BRIL 2 R R
Lin Yi-wei Interest of controlled corporation
MEEK REHEEER
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Z 5 - ARG SKEREEPRAREES K
EAEPIEXVERE 7R B E MG AN B R A
ZHERRAR REBARRRREZLFRGE
B SE32MEFE 2 B M 2 SRR - iR &
TR AR S0 ([E2ESF B )) B e AN 7] R B
RFT 2 RSO A

RRE - BREMERAR - WELQERE R B
REBERANFEERARRFT I ER T BUE
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KIS GBI B 336617 E 2 i m B M st A T
AT (WHEARREEHERTHAR) FEEALR
B0 1 TIR A SR ABRARR D 5%k LA 2 RS KA R

B
Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
shares held shareholding
FEEEREAE REBNBT DL
7,656,916,000 17.26%

(Note f15#1)
7,246,628,634 16.33%

(Note f#15#2)
6,192,360,618 13.96%

(Note f17%3)
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Notes:

1. These shares are held by Future Achiever Limited, a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Hui Wing Mau.

2. These shares are held by Investment Talent Limited, a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Sung-Tse.

3. These shares are held by Tsarina Investments Limited, a company
wholly-owned by Ms. Lin Yi-Weli.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company, had registered an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
in Hong Kong to all staff. Under the MPF Scheme, employer and
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income. Details of the retirement
scheme are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

the largest supplier 77%
the five largest suppliers in aggregate 94%
Sales

the largest customer 28%
the five largest customers in aggregate 65%

Save as aforementioned, at no time during the Year did a Director,
an associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the Directors of the Company owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in
any of the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive directors and independent non-executive
directors of the Company has respectively entered into a service
contract/letter of appointment with the Company for a term of 3
years unless terminated by seven days’ to three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other. The non-executive
director of the Company has entered into a service contract with
the Company with no specific term and such service contract can
be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Details of the contingent liabilities are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Details of the capital commitments are set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the Year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

MARKET CAPITALISATION

As at 31 December 2022, the market capitalisation of the listed
securities of the Company was approximately HK$1,330,946,567
based on the total number of 44,364,885,557 issued shares of the
Company and the closing price of HK$0.03 per share.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the corporate governance report contained in this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float throughout the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provides that every Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted by the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/
her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the Year, which provides appropriate cover
for legal actions brought against the Directors and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Group. The level of the coverage is reviewed
annually.

DIRECTORS’' INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, no
Director of the Company is considered to have an interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE
No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT
No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group or
existed during the Year.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group (which did
not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) for the Year
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements
contained herein.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group did not undertake any connected
transactions that were subject to the Listing Rules’ reporting
requirement for disclosure in annual report.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the
Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to
those shown below which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.

Details of the financial risks management objective and policies
of the Group are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Rules and Regulations Risk

Rules and Regulations Risk is the risk of regulatory sanctions,
material financial loss, or loss to reputation a financial institution
may suffer as a result of its failure to comply with laws, regulations,
rules, related self-regulatory organisation standards, and codes of
conduct applicable to its business activities. Generally, compliance
with rules and regulations cover matters such as observing proper
standards of market conduct, managing conflicts of interest,
treating customers fairly, and ensuring the suitability of customer
advice.
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This risk has become one of the most significant ongoing concerns
for financial institutions. Nonetheless, the regulatory fees have
dramatically increased relative to financial institutions’ earnings,
and the scope of regulatory focus continues to expand. Even
though a lot of work has been done to respond to new rules and
regulations, financial institutions need a more structural mechanism
that will allow them to effectively and efficiently enhance their
risk-and-control frameworks and make it become more robust and
sustainable over time in order to mitigate this risk.

Investment Risk

The Group’s portfolios built up through mergers and acquisitions
may not meet their investment objectives or there may be a failure
to deliver expected performance. Investment performance could
be significantly disrupted by a range of external factors including
turbulent social and economic environment, natural disaster,
regulatory landscape, product and service evolution and technology
advancements.

The Group re-evaluates the invested projects on regular basis. In
order to mitigate the inherent risk of its investments not performing
according to expectations, the Group has been strengthening its
independent post-investment monitoring processes across all its
investment projects. The Group considers reputational risks when
initiating changes to its strategy or operating model and maintain
high standards of conduct.

Liquidity Risk
As the Group’s financial service businesses are highly capital
intensive, any cash shortfalls of the Group may lead to inadequacy
of funds to support its daily operations and in severe cases,
bankruptcy, business expansion failures, reputational damages and
stakeholders’ suits. In order to finance the growth of its financial
services businesses and its current strategic expansions, the
Group requires substantial funding resources and a strong capital
base. The Group’s finance department is responsible to manage
its relationship with banks and other financial institutions and to
closely monitor the Group's cash flow adequacy. The Group may
consider other fund raising activities, such as share placements,
the issuance of convertible bonds, etc. to strengthen the Group's
capital base and bank/other borrowings and trade facilities to
improve its financial position if necessary.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group's businesses and investments for the year were mainly
located in the mainland China, Hong Kong, Europe and Australia,
and therefore is mainly affected by the fluctuations of RMB, CHF
and AUD. The Group closely monitors its foreign exchange exposure
and would consider hedging when necessary. Please refer to note
40 to the financial statements of the annual report for the foreign
currency risk exposures as at the end of the reporting period.

Systems vulnerability and Cyberattacks

The operation of the Group’s businesses and in particular, its
financial services sector is highly dependent on its trading, data
management and information technology platform. The information
technology (IT) landscape of the Group may be vulnerable
to a number of disruptions such as computer viruses and/or
cyberattacks. Such disruptions may cause data corruption and
interruptions, delay or cessation in the services provided through
the Group’s securities trading facilities, exposure of sensitive/
confidential information to unauthorised persons, non-compliance
with data privacy requirements, stolen intellectual properties,
etc. The Group has initiated a review on the IT infrastructure and
conduct regular reviews on its compliance with The Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC") cybersecurity regulations and provides
training on cybersecurity to its relevant staff.

Market Risk

Market risk, including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and
price risk, is the potential for loss of economic value due to adverse
change in financial market rates or prices. The Group’s financial
services related businesses, as well as its direct investments in
listed securities, are exposed to market risk. The investments are
directly and/or indirectly affected by, among others, the global
and local political, economic and social environments. The Group
may suffer losses in these investments if the market price goes
adversely.
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Credit Risk

The Group encountered credit risk and may expose to credit l0ss
if the borrowers/counterparties default and the realisation value of
collaterals could not cover the loan amount. Credit risk is largely
correlated to the repayment ability of the borrower and the quality
of the collaterals. Deterioration in the quality of its loan portfolio
may occur due to the general slowdown of the economy, actual
or perceived deterioration of the creditworthiness of borrowers,
reduced profitability or cash flows of corporate borrowers or
the unemployment of individual borrowers. All these may cause
increase in credit risk which may ultimately lead to significant
increase in its allowance for impairment losses on loans. The
Group normally obtains sufficient securities and/or cash deposits
as collateral for providing margin financing to its clients. Margin
loans provided to a client is required to be maintained within the
margin value of his pledged securities, which means the aggregate
market value of his pledged securities after discounts. In the event
that a client is unable to meet a margin call, the Group is entitled to
dispose of the pledged securities and use the sale proceeds thereof
towards repayment of the loan. However, there is a risk that the
amount recovered from the disposal of the pledged securities may
fall short of the outstanding amount of the loan. The Group would
suffer a loss if it fails to recover the shortfall from its clients even
though the Group has strived to mitigate the concentration risk and
closely monitor the asset quality at all times.

Settlement Risk

There is a minimum margin deposit for the opening of each futures
contract as required by The Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited
(the “Futures Exchange”). Clients of the Group are required to
maintain such minimum margin deposit with the Group at all times
as determined by the Futures Exchange. Although the Group is
entitled to close out the futures contract when a client is unable
to meet his/her margin call, in the event that the client’'s margin
deposit with the Group is unable to cover the loss arising from
closing out of the futures contract, the Group would be exposed to
the risk of not being able to recover such shortfall from the clients,
particularly in times of a volatile market.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate and effective risk management
procedures which enable it to identify, measure, monitor and
control the various types of risks that it faces. This is supplemented
by active management involvement and effective internal controls
in the best interests of the Group.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

No important event that affects the Group has taken place since 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 have been audited by BDO Limited, who
will retire and a resolution to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Mason Group Holdings Limited

Han Ruixia
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer

28 March 2023
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The Board recognises the importance of maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance to protect and enhance the
benefits of shareholders. The Board and senior management of the
Company recognises their responsibility to maintain the interest
of the shareholders and to enhance their value. The Board also
believes a deliberate policy of corporate governance can facilitate a
company in rapid growth under a healthy governance structure and
strengthen the confidence of shareholders and investors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the Year, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 of Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”) in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions. Following specific enquiry by
the Company, all of the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the requirements as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE
Promoting good corporate governance and managing enterprise-
wide risk is a priority of the Company. The Company is convinced
that corporate governance and Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance (the "“D&O Insurance”) complement each other. The
Company has arranged appropriate D&O Insurance coverage on
Directors” and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
directors and senior management arising out from corporate
activities. The D&O Insurance will be reviewed and renewed
annually.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises seven members, consisting of
two executive Directors, one non-executive Director and four
independent non-executive Directors namely:

Executive Directors
Ms. Han Ruixia (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Zhenyi

Non-executive Director
Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tian Ren Can

Mr. Wang Cong

Mr. Wu Xu'an

Mr. Ng Yu Yuet

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for overseeing the overall business
strategy, management planning and control of the Company.
The management is responsible for day-to-day management and
operation of the business of the Group and to make suggestions
to the executive Directors for their consideration. The Directors
have accumulated sufficient and valuable experience to carry out
their duties in an efficient and effective manner. Details of the
backgrounds and qualifications of the Directors are set out in the
section headed "Biographies of Directors” on pages 26 to 29 of
this annual report. None of the members of the Board have, in any
respect, relation to each other in any circumstances.

Every newly appointed Director is provided with an induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure that he/she
has adequate understanding of the businesses and operations of
the Group. The Directors are also kept informed on a timely basis
of their responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules,
as well as other relevant statutory or regulatory requirements.
The Company also encourages its Directors to participate in other
continuous professional development programmes for directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is mainly responsible for keeping the effectiveness of the
corporate governance and system of internal non-financial controls
of the Group. The Board shall introduce and propose relevant
principles concerning corporate governance and to review and
determine the corporate governance policy, so as to enhance and
to ensure a high standard of corporate governance practices in the
Group.

During the Year, the Board regularly reviewed and monitored the
training and continuous professional development of the Directors,
and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements. The Board regularly reviewed and
monitored the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable
to employees and Directors; and reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report accordingly.

All of the Directors of the Company have acted in good faith for
the best interests of the Company and the shareholders of the
Company. Other than the statutory duties imposed on each of
them, all of the Directors have exercised due care in monitoring
the corporate matters of the Company and have provided grave
concern, sufficient time and attention to all the significant issues
and affairs of the Group.

Management Committee

A management committee of the Company (the “Management
Committee”) was established on 1 November 2019 by the order
of the Board, to make suggestions on the management and
operation of the business of the Group to the executive Directors
for their consideration and approval and to manage and operate
the business of the Group. The Management Committee is also
responsible for the day to day operation, among other matters,
the implementation of overall strategy and direction set by the
Board. The Management Committee includes members with solid
management experience in finance, banking, fund management
sector, risk management and legal and compliance. It currently
comprises Ms. Han Ruixia, an executive Director and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Group, and Mr. Zhang Zhenyi, an executive
Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
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Non-executive Directors

Each of the existing independent non-executive Directors was
appointed for a specific term of 3 years and the non-executive
Director has been appointed with no specific terms of office,
subject to the provision of retirement and rotation of directors
under the Articles of Association of the Company.

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed four independent non-executive Directors.
At least one of the independent non-executive Directors have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received confirmations of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the
independent non-executive Directors and considers them to be
independent.

Board Composition

The Board has established a set of board diversity policy setting
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board aiming at
enhancing Board effectiveness and corporate governance as well
as achieving our business objectives and sustainable development.
Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The current Board consists of a diverse mix
of Board members appropriate to the requirement of the business
of the Company.

The Board is also a mixed-gender board with female representation
brought by Ms. Han Ruixia, an executive Director and deputy Chief
Executive Officer, and Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol, a non-executive
Director. The Board recognises the importance and benefits of
gender diversity at Board level and shall continue to take initiatives
to identify suitable female candidates for board succession
planning and enhancement of gender diversity in the Board. The
Company has also gender diversity at the employee’s level. For
details, please refer to page 88 of the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report”.
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Mechanisms Ensuring Independent Views

In order to ensure that the board of directors can obtain effective,
diversified and independent views and opinions, the company
has established a relevant evaluation and review mechanism
to evaluate the board of directors every year to enhance the
accountability of directors and provide valuable feedback
information that can help improve The effectiveness of the board
of directors, give full play to its advantages, and point out areas for
further development.

@)

The board of directors may conduct internal evaluations (led
by independent non-executive directors) and solicit opinions
from directors on the performance of the board in the form of
questionnaires and/or interviews.

In addition, the board of directors may also invite senior
executives and key stakeholders to provide useful opinions.
Appropriate improvements can be made in each assessment,
focusing on the progress in solving the main issues raised
in the previous assessment. The evaluation report will be
submitted to the board of directors to discuss the results and
action plans for improvement.

After the board evaluation, the company will disclose the
results of the board evaluation in the corporate governance
report to achieve accountability and transparency. In addition
to disclosing the results of the board of directors’ evaluation,
the company will also set out: the purpose and scope of the
board’s evaluation, the method of evaluation, the criteria
used for the evaluation; and the action plan to be taken (such
as director training).

The board of directors of the company may also hire
independent professional companies or persons to evaluate
the board of directors, as an auxiliary method in addition to
the evaluation of the board of directors by internal leaders.
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Attendance Records o FE R0 8%

Details of the attendance of the Board members are as follows: EEgNE2HREFBOT :

Meeting Attended/Held During the Year Ended 31 December 2022
BE-B-—S+-A=+-ALEEHE B7283

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Board Committee = Committee = Committee Meeting
=g ERZEE FMEES REZEE BRAE

Executive Directors YTES

Ms. Han Ruixia BB L 13/13 N/AN i N/ANE R N/ANE A 11
Mr. Zhang Zhenyi RIRE LA 13/13 N/AT i F N/ATR i F N/AT i F 1/1
Non-executive Director FHTES

Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol HEE Lt 11/13 N/AT i F 2/2 1/1 0/1

Independent Non-executive BIEHTES

Directors
Mr. Tian Ren Can HECREE 13/13 3/3 2/2 11 17
Mr. Wang Cong FHRESE 13/13 3/3 2/2 1/1 1/1
Mr. Wu Xu'an RNLEE 13/13 3/3 N/AT i A N/AT i F 111
Mr. Ng Yu Yuet RTHEAE 13/13 3/3 2/2 11 171
Save for regular board meetings held in 2022, meetings of BR-ITE-_—_FRBIT7EFTeFHeZI EF

the Directors were held to discuss and transact other special e/RETeRIREEEAMMERIEE B2
businesses. The Board members are provided with appropriate and M EE€REINEEEBEZE &R W THRAE
sufficient information in a timely manner to keep abreast of the EBEIRFHEBIL - MERESeeRRENS
Group's latest developments. All businesses transacted at board  IBHE ZE778 Ka0sE o

meetings are properly documented and recorded.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings of the Company RARQFIBREAE FIZHMTERERHUEE
were voted by way of poll and the announcement on the poll vote — FR#ETERFR  WARARATBERREAEEIZ -
results was made by the Company after the general meetings in ~ R AIE13390)EREN A RELHBERALR
the manner prescribed under rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules. N
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Continuous Professional Development of
Directors

According to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company has arranged and funded suitable training, placing
an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a
listed company director. The company secretarial department
of the Company would provide relevant reading materials to the
Directors to ensure that they are apprised of the latest changes in
the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements in relation to the
Company'’s businesses, and to refresh their knowledge and skills.
In addition, all Directors are encouraged to attend external forum,
or training course on relevant topics. During the Year, the Directors
had provided their records of continuous professional development
to the Company. The Board has reviewed and monitored the
continuous professional development of the Directors.

The Directors’ knowledge and skills are continuously developed
and refreshed by, inter alia, the following means:

EESRHEEXER

RIBEFRERTRIMNTRIRICALS  FTEEST
ASEFEHEZEE  MESREMEMB LK
B tMBEREEEZEATRIEABENER
TREFEEHER -

ARBERFEREPEEEI BERALTA
AESHRS BENBE RERESEXH
ARRERBBABNEE  AREMEERENRH
B WEHHMBREKEE  ARRNARME
e RERRMBAEBEME < ths - RSB AT
FEZ2EAWHEBNI S mBIIFIRE - X
REE EFRCAARARUEENFEREER
Ricsk - EEGCESNEBEEHETRUR -

BREPBB)UATHARERRNENESEZ
FB KA BE

Types of
Trainings
B R
Executive Directors HITESE
Ms. Han Ruixia BinE LT AB
Mr. Zhang Zhenyi SRR S A AB
Non-executive Director FETES
MSs. Hui Mei Mei, Carol ER Y et AB
Independent Non-executive Directors BIkHTES
Mr. Tian Ren Can R EE AB
Mr. Wang Cong FRELE AB
Mr. Wu Xu'an ERME R E AB
Mr. Ng Yu Yuet RFBLEAE AB
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A attending seminars/courses/conferences in person or by

teleconference in relation to the responsibilities of directors’ of a
listed company, corporate governance and regulatory updates

reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company, comprising Mr. Wu Xu'an as
chairman as well as Mr. Tian Ren Can, Mr. Wang Cong and Mr. Ng
Yu Yuet as members, has reviewed the audited final results for the

Year.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee, among others, are:

Relationship with the Company’s auditor

(@)

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

to act as the key representative for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” shall include any entity that is under
common control, ownership or management with the audit
firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party
knowing all relevant information would reasonably conclude
to be part of the audit firm nationally or internationally. The
Audit Committee should report to the Board, identifying and
making recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;
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Review of the Company’s financial information

)

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgements contained in them. In
reviewing these reports before submission to the Board, the
Audit Committee should focus particularly on:

() any changes in accounting policies and practices,

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards; and

(vii compliance with the Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

Regarding (e) above: (i) members of the Audit Committee
should liaise with the Board and senior management and
the Audit Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with
the Company'’s auditor; and (i) the Audit Committee should
consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may
need to be, reflected in the reports and accounts, it should
give due consideration to any matters that have been raised
by the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting and
financial reporting function and compliance function or the
auditor;

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control
systems

®

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate Board risk committee, or
by the Board itself, to review the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems;
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to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with the management to ensure that the management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. This discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company'’s accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider any findings of major investigation findings on
risk management and internal control matters as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative and the management'’s
response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure
co-ordination between the internal and external auditors,
and to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company,
and to review and monitor its effectiveness,

to review the group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to the management
about accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and the management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

to review arrangements that employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters and the Audit Committee is to ensure
proper arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action;,

to report to the Board on the matters in these terms of
reference; and

to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.
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As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises four
independent non-executive Directors, namely:

Mr. Wu Xu'an (chairman)
Mr. Tian Ren Can

Mr. Wang Cong

Mr. Ng Yu Yuet

During the Year, the Audit Committee met three times with the
external auditor and/or representatives of the management of
the Company. The Audit Committee reviewed and discussed
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 December 2022 with the external auditors and reviewed
the Company’s unaudited interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2022. The Audit Committee also reviewed and
discussed the internal control necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Audit Committee
submitted its views and recommendations on the Group'’s financial
statements to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “"Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 28 June 2005. The written terms
of reference for the Remuneration Committee were formulated
and were adopted by the Company in compliance with the code
provision in the CG Code and was revised on 18 December 2015
and 30 December 2022.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee, among others,
are:

(@ to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(b) to review and approve the management’'s remuneration
proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;
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to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration;

when the occasion arises, to advise shareholders on how to
vote with respect to any service contracts of directors that
require shareholders’ approval under Rule 13.68 of the Listing
Rules;

to do any such things to enable the Remuneration Committee
to discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the
Board; and

review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors and one
non-executive Director, namely:

Mr. Wang Cong (chairman)
Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol

Mr. Tian Ren Can

Mr. Ng Yu Yuet

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022
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The Remuneration Committee held two meetings in 2022 to review
and assess the performance and remuneration of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with
reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and
the results of the Group. In addition, the Directors’ remuneration is
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee annually. Details of the
Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 11 of the consolidated
financial statements.

REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT
For the Year, the remuneration of senior management is listed as
below by band:

FNEEEeRN S _—FRITTMANSH  F&
MFHAE BRI R EHH
EEEH

EEMEAKBRENRERGIE - At S B

EEELEEFLHE BEARKRRURTEE
HEMET - I EFFHHHFWNEESTF
EH EEZHFHNFBENGE M RERM T
11 o

BREEEHMN
AEE  SREREREBES D OFMIIRAOT :

No. of person

Remuneration 3 B A
HK$1,000,000 and below 1,000,0007% 7t 2 A T~ 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 1,000,0017% 7T %£3,000,0007% 7T 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 3,000,0017% 7T 2 6,000,000/% 7T 2

The senior management includes the executive Directors of the SHERERIEAQAFTHHNITES -

Company.

Nomination Committee and Policy BEZEEREE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination #KAFELZEe ((BEEE®| )R _S——F

Committee”) was established on 29 March 2012. The written
terms of reference for the Nomination Committee was formulated
and was adopted by the Company in compliance with the code
provision in the CG Code and was revised on 18 December 2015
and 26 March 2019.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee, among others,
are:

(@  to review the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;,

ZSAZ+HNBAKL - REZESEOREHESR
R ERAR R B E S A2 P RIMERSUHIET AR
WRZZE—RAFF+_A+NBRZZE-—NE=A
ZHNABE -
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e %%ﬁ /A ﬁ nd::
(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board

®

members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors,

to review the board diversity policy, as appropriate, and
review the measurable objectives that the Board has set for
implementing the board diversity policy, and the progress on
achieving the objectives; and make disclosure of its review
results in the Corporate Governance Report annually from
year 2013 onwards;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors in particular the chairman and the chief executive;
and

where the Nomination Committee proposes a resolution to
elect an individual as an independent non-executive director
at the general meeting, to advise the Board setting out in
the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting:

(i) the process used for identifying the individual and why
the Board believes the individual should be elected
and the reasons why it considers the individual to be
independent;

(i) if the proposed independent non-executive director
will be holding their seventh (or more) listed company
directorship, why the Board believes the individual
would still be able to devote sufficient time to the
Board;

(i) the perspectives, skills and experience that the
individual can bring to the Board; and

(iv)  how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board;

to consider other topics as defined by the Board.

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022
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When considering candidates for the nomination and appointment
as Directors, the Nomination Committee aims to:

— ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company; and

— there will be continuity and appropriate leadership at Board
level.

The nomination and appointment process is carried out strictly in
accordance with the Nomination Committee’s terms of reference,
the Articles of Association of the Company and all applicable rules
and regulations.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
following factors would be considered:

— Diversity in all aspects with reference to the Diversity Policy
of the Board.

— Requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

— Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and diversity.

— Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, as may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of directors and succession planning.

Notwithstanding that the Board has delegated its responsibilities
and authority for selection and appointment of directors of the
Company to the Nomination Committee of the Company, the
ultimate responsibility for selection and appointment of directors of
the Company rests with the entire Board.
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As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors and one non-executive
Director, namely:

Mr. Wang Cong (chairman)
Ms. Hui Mei Mei, Carol

Mr. Tian Ren Can

Mr. Ng Yu Yuet

The Nomination Committee held one meetings in 2022 to assess
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors,
to make recommendations to the Board on the re-elections of
Directors and to review the composition of the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY

Directors’ and Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the Group’s financial statements and believe that these
statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's
affairs and of its results. The Board has adopted appropriate
accounting policies and made proper estimates for the preparation
of financial statements. The Directors confirm that, to the best
of their knowledge, information and belief and having made
all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cause
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The Board therefore continues to adopt the going concern
approach in preparing the financial statements for the financial
year of 2022.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

BDO Limited (“BDO") is subject to reappointment as independent
auditor of the Group at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. It is the auditor’s responsibility to form an
independent opinion, based on their audit, on those financial
statements and to report their opinion solely to the Company and
for no other purpose. They do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of the
independent auditor’s report.
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The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditor of the Company, BDO, and
reviewing any non-audit services performed by BDO. During the
Year, the subsidiaries of the Group engaged external auditors to
perform audit and provide non-audit services, other than BDO. The
remunerations paid to the external auditors for the provision of
services are set out as follows:

HK$'000
THAT

ERZERRAEFALARRIMNERZEALZERSR
ZEw Rma LR RREH  EM IR BURT -
RAFE  REBMNBRREREMLEERIAIN
M SN AZ BUEMAE 1T B AT R HOE BT IRTS - 2
SNISAZBEN SRS B 2 85I T

Audit services ZE R % 4,643
Non-audit services IERZ ER TS 50
4,693

The non-audit services during the Year provided by external
auditors represent tax advisory services.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
reviewing their effectiveness at least annually through the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its
oversight and corporate governance roles in the Group's financial,
operational, compliance, risk management and internal controls,
and the resourcing of the finance and internal audit functions.

The Board has defined and endorsed the enterprise risk
management policy, to align risk management objectives and
strategies of the organisation, to ensure necessary resources
are allocated to risk management and to assign accountabilities
and responsibilities at appropriate level within the organisation.
The Management Committee was set up for management of the
enterprise top risks and operational risks in difference segments in
the Group. Management committee assist the Board and the Audit
committee in the review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis. The
Directors through the Audit Committee are kept regularly apprised
of significant risks that may impact on the Group’s performance.
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The Management Committee oversees the Group’s enterprise risk
management framework and to keep track on Group’s top risks
mitigation status. With supports from head of risk management,
function heads and business heads, the Management Committee
fulfil the responsibility on daily supervision of risk mitigation. In
2022, the Group defined its enterprise top risks and respective
governance committees were set as below:

Business Transformation and Sustainable Growth Risk
IT Disaster Recovery and Cyber Attacks

Business Continuity (COVID-19)

Regulatory Compliance

o -

The Group's risk governance structure adopts a “Three Lines of
Defence” model with oversight and directions from the Board,
which entails the accountabilities and responsibilities across the
organisation. The Group operates a risk governance model to
effectively identify and manage risk.

Risk management systems has been embedded into the core
operating practices of the business under the 1st Line of Defence
who owns the risk identification and management responsibility. On
an ongoing basis, the respective operating units in direct business
is responsible for the day-to-day operations and risk management.
Each of this respective operating units will review and assess
the status of potential risks which may impact on their ability to
achieve their business objectives. This review process includes
assessment as to whether the existing system of internal controls
continues to remain relevant, adequately addresses potential risks,
and/or should be supplemented. The results of these reviews are
recorded in the risk control self-assessment for monitoring and
units need to provide a confirmation to the 2nd Line of Defence on
the effectiveness of these systems. Internal Audit function being
the 3rd Line of Defence reports to the Audit Committee. It provides
independent assurance to the Group that the risks associated with
the Group’s business and operations have been identified and
an effective system of controls over these risks is in place and is
working as intended.
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Three Lines of Defence
=EEE

Top-Down Strategic View
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Oversight: Board of Directors
EE 57

ownership: under Management Committee
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15t Line of Defence
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e Ongoing identification,
assessment, monitoring
and reporting of risks in
respective areas

¢ Plan and implement
actions to manage risks

e Escalate risks according
to the escalation
requirements
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o FTEIWEHEERERMRAENE
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Business Owner
IREREEA

— Business management function
— Internal control function
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24 Line of Defence
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e Periodic review on the whole
risk management process

¢ Intermediary role for risk
reporting to Management
Committee

o Facilitate the risk
management process
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Risk Management Department
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— Financial control function
— Risk management function
— Compliance function
— Asset security control function
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under Audit Committee
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3" Line of Defence
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e Provide an independent
perspective on process
controls and design

e Review the effectiveness of
controls in place to mitigate
risks
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Chief Financial Officer and
External Independent
Audit Firm
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— Internal audit function
(outsourced to external
consultant SWRS
Risk Services Limited)
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The Management Committee is responsible for overseeing the EEZE< EEASEMREREERERE K
Group's risk management approach, policy and framework. The HENMIEZR - EEZE B HFACERABREET
Management Committee, which co-ordinates enterprise risk {ENGBAEERNEXREREESHEBEETHR » 5
management activities and reviews significant aspects of risk  WHREBETHZHENESE LOEFEZZESER
management for the Group, reports to the Audit Committee at  Hr & EALE B & E KR A K a010) 8 & RE &
each regularly scheduled meeting including amongst other things, /siEBE#BIER - B FAIEER AEPE
significant risks of the Group and the appropriate mitigation and/or — #REBE{I R - DM - B OEEXAF RERERH
transfer of identified risks. The risk owners/internal control owners  ®EKE U R FHAEELZESERZSARE
identify, analyze, prioritise and monitor their own risks, and report I8 T{F - EA@E B AIE S SR E B A AR FIE
such risk management activities to Management Committee on  R&ASIKFH) R - 5 ERENEB KA —
a regular basis. Proper escalation mechanism with well-defined ZRAMN T EZEIRE H ¥ R E S BB E
threshold and tolerance level is communicated to risk owner. This [ > TXRFARBECERRERBCREBHETE
mandates a consistent and effective approach applied across R °

the Group to manage the risks associated with its business and

operations. Below table illustrates the key process adopted under

the Enterprise Risk Management policy.

Stage Description Outcome

B Bx B BmR

Establish Context ~ Establish context is defined by the external and internal e Half yearly update by
parameters to be considered when managing risk, setting scope business head on new
and risk criteria in order to achieve the Group's objectives. services and activities

The Management Committee and the Risk Management
Department shall determine the scope and extent of the
risk assessment process (i.e. risk identification, analysis and
assessment) in the context of the Group’s key operational areas,
including new services and activities that may affect the Group'’s
strategy and objectives. The scope will then identify the relevant
action stakeholders required for the subsequent risk assessment

process.
TRV BUYRBEETEERRRBEZERENIINTINALRH RBE o« EBETESFFER
BEfERIZE  LERAEENEZ - KBRS MER
EREZEeNMRAREENERESEENTIEZELEL (B1ET
@E%%ﬁﬁélﬂﬁkﬂETEE’J%WEAWTD/%@J)EI’J“E 1 5T R B 5
HRR (BIRBER - ST HEBEMEE - Rk - @E

BT RERRFABREABNAEBTBHNEAES -
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Description Outcome

it =R

Risk Identification  Risk identification is the process of discovering, identifying the e Group Risk Universe
source of risk, describing the risk with areas of impact and
events (including environmental changes), as well as root causes
and potential consequences.

Risk identification may involve historical data, theoretical
analysis, informed and expert opinion, and stakeholder needs.

The purpose of risk identification is to produce a comprehensive
table of risks based on events that possibly create, enhance,
hinder, expedite or delay the Group’s achievement of objectives.
Risk identification must include the Group’s ability to control
such risk regardless whether the source of the risk is obvious.
Risk identification shall include the examination on direct
impacts, including related effects and cumulative effects, as
well as considering the range of consequences and identifying
possible incidents and related consequences.

It is the risk owner’s responsibility to identify the risks and its
related risks. It should be noted that only events or incidents
with possibility to affect the achievement of Mason'’s strategies
and objectives could constitute as a group risk. All identified
risks are mapped into the Group Risk Universe.
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Stage Description Outcome
PR ER it #ER
Risk Analysis Risk analysis is the process of understanding the nature of e Group risk register to
risk and determining the level of risk. It provides the basis for assess the risk level of
risk assessment, decisions about risk treatment, and the most inherent risks

appropriate risk treatment strategies and methods.

Risk analysis includes root cause considerations together with its
positive and negative consequences and the likelihood of these
consequences. An event can have multiple outcomes and affect
multiple goals. Existing control measures and their effectiveness
and efficiency should also be considered.

The Management Committee is responsible for reviewing and
presenting the Group’s top risks from the Group Risk Register.
Risk owners are then responsible for analyzing the root causes
and consequences of each individual risk identified. These risks
will be consolidated into their relevant categories to provide a
holistic view of the entire operation.

ﬁAn*ﬁ AAE*E;ET%LFH ‘EEWE@EJ—WM7K$E@L$£° b?ﬁ'f hd E.J—LFAy_Y( H:H AE-$
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Outcome
it =R

Description

Risk Evaluation The purpose of a risk assessment is the process of determining e Enterprise Risk

}—L: Ig/v\ A 15

Risk Treatment

2 Bex B 72

whether a risk and/or the magnitude of the risk is acceptable or
tolerable based on the results of risk analysis. A risk evaluation
can help make decisions about the risks that need to be
addressed and the priorities for mitigations.

Based on the root causes and consequences of each risk listed
in the detailed Group Risk Register, the risk owner should
identify the existing controls in place to mitigate the risk. Risk
owners should then evaluate these risks against risk parameters
in order to map the risks into relevant cells within the enterprise
risk heat map.

R EHENE  ERERSTHER TR 5
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Risk treatment involves in one or more selections to modify the
risks and carry out these selections. Risk treatment involves
in the periodical process of assessing risk treatment, deciding
whether the residual risk level is tolerable, if not, new risk
treatment takes place; and assessing the effectiveness of that
treatment.

Risk owner shall determine whether they shall plan and take
other control measures. Risk owner shall also consider to
establish key risk indicators (if needed) for these risks, so as to
conduct monitoring.
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Heat Map after
assessment of control
effectiveness to
conclude the residual
risk level
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Group risk register on
progress updates
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Stage Description
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Risk Monitoring and Monitoring through means of constant inspection, supervision,

Review strict observation or determination of conditions helps to
identify changes. Monitoring can be applied to risk management
frameworks, risk management processes, risks or controls.

The review includes activities to determine whether the subject
is suitable for achieving the stated objectives. Reviews can be
applied to risk management frameworks, risk management
processes, risks or controls.

[ Bz BE 2 B 2 & BRTERE  BE - JEW&E%X%EEEHMEE’JE‘U_H
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Communication and Effective communication (internal and external) and consultation

Consultation is ensure that those responsible for implementing the risk
management process and stakeholders understand the basis for
decisions and the rationale for specific actions. Both internal and
external communications cover crises or emergencies.
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Appropriate policies and procedures have been designed and
established to ensure that key risks are identified, assessed and
managed within the defined risk tolerance level. Through such a
systematic approach, assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to
and complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements.

During the Year, the Board engaged an external consultant to
review the effectiveness of the internal control systems in certain
business and back office functions of the Group with primary focus
on compliance with laws and regulated business. The assessment
results and proposed improvement opportunities were discussed
and agreed with management and were reported to the Audit
Committee. The Board considers the above-mentioned risk
management and internal control systems of the Group during the
Year are effective and adequate.

Whistleblowing Policy

The purpose of the Whistleblowing Policy is to (i) foster a culture
of compliance, ethical behaviour and good corporate governance
across the Group; and (ii) promote the importance of ethical
behaviour and encourages the reporting of misconduct, unlawful
and unethical behavior. The nature, status and the results of the
complaints received under the Whistleblowing Policy are reported
to the chairman of the Audit Committee or the human resource
director of the Group. No incident of fraud or misconduct that
have material effect on the Group’s financial statements or overall
operations for the year ended 31 December 2022 has been
discovered.

The Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed annually by the Audit
Committee to ensure its effectiveness.
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Anti-corruption Policy

The Group is committed to achieving the highest standards
of integrity and ethical behaviour in conducting business. The
Anti-corruption Policy forms an integral part of the Group's
corporate governance framework. The Anti-corruption Policy sets
out the specific behavioural guidelines that the Group’s personnel
and business partners must follow to combat corruption. It
demonstrates the Group’s commitment to the practice of ethical
business conduct and the compliance of the anti-corruption laws
and regulations that apply to its local and foreign operations. In line
with this commitment and to ensure transparency in the Group's
practices, the Anti-corruption Policy has been prepared as a guide
to all Group employees and third parties dealing with the Group.

Company Secretary

According to rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the company secretary
of the Company has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the financial year ended 31 December
2022.

Shareholders’ Rights

Enquiries

Shareholders may put enquiries to the Board or put forward
proposals relating to the operations, strategy and/or management
of the Group to be discussed at shareholders’ meetings.
Shareholders’ enquiries or proposals can be directed in writing
to the Board or the Company secretary of the Company at the
registered office or by email to info@masonhk.com.

Meetings

Pursuant to Article 69 of the Articles of Association of the
Company and Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
shareholder(s) of the Company holding not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of the Company may request the Board of Directors of
the Company to convene a general meeting by way of depositing a
written request at the registered office of the Company or by email
to info@masonhk.com. The objects of the meeting must be stated
in the related requisition which must be authenticated by the
requisitionist(s).
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Under Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, shareholder(s) of
the Company holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights
or not less than 50 shareholders who have a right to vote on the
resolution at the annual general meeting may request the Company
to give notice of a resolution that may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting by way of depositing a
written notice authenticated by the requisitionist(s) at the registered
office of the Company or by email to info@masonhk.com not less
than six weeks before the meeting. The notice shall contain a
description of the proposed resolution desired to be put forward
at the meeting, the reasons for such proposal and any material
interest of the proposing shareholder(s) in such proposal.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Board adopted a Shareholders’ Communication Policy to
ensure that Shareholders can timely and equally access to
reasonable and understandable information of the Company and
such policy is regularly reviewed annually by the Board to ensure
its effectiveness.

POLICY ON PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND

The Board has adopted a policy on payment of dividends (the
“Dividend Policy”). The Board takes into account the following
factors when considering the declaration of interim dividends and
proposing the payment of final dividends for the approval of the
Company's shareholders:

(i) financial results of the Group;

(i) general business conditions and strategies of the Group;

(iiiy  capital requirements of the Group;

(iv)  possible effects on the Company’s creditworthiness;

(v) the Company’s shareholders’ interests;

(vi)  statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

(vii) any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The Board will from time to time review the Dividend Policy and

approve any revisions from time to time that may be required to
ensure the effectiveness of the Dividend Policy.
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INVESTORS' RELATIONS

The Company’'s website (www.masonhk.com) provides
comprehensive and accessible news and information of the
Company to the shareholders of the Company, other stakeholders
and investors. The Company will also update the website
information from time to time to inform the shareholders and
investors of the latest development of the Company.

During the Year, no change was made to the constitutional
documents of the Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Company committed to protect the environment is well
reflected by our continuous efforts in promoting green measures
and awareness in our daily business operations. Our Group
encourages environmental protection and promote awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. The Group
adheres to the principle of Recycling and Reducing. It implements
green office practices such as double-sided printing and copying,
setting up recycling bins, promoting using recycled paper and
reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lightings and
electrical appliance. The Group is also using office equipment
carrying energy label issued by the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department which save energy in the offices.

The Group will review its environmental practices from time to
time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures
and practices in the operation of our Group's businesses to move
towards adhering the 4Rs — Reduce, Reuse, Recycle and Replace
and to enhance environmental sustainability.

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022

REERE

R A48 U (www.masonhk.com) & A A &) R R
HiMmBEsREEERMBEEALRADTN
REAEHBRER ARANTEENAME
B USBRREREEENERRATHRNER

B5 o

RAFE  UBRHARBERXHIELES -

REBR

ARBVER TR EEDTE #EEREHEEM
BRECUNEINEREREN A - NEESE
RR URABENRREZ AEERTH
ERRENRA BRSEAERAZREE
PIanEmATEN MG ED - JRE LA - IRIBEMIR
RELBEBEIZAENETERERIAR DR -
AEBEMEBURARETLREZSHHLERERD
WMAERE NERRENEERER

AEBBIRHRSERREE  THEEBER
SENEBLETEREZRKREELHEOE
IABR<PARR B (BB - B BERER) B
B IGRERFEN AL -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HE8RERBRE

ABOUT THE REPORT

The Company is pleased to present the Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Report for the Year. The ESG Report highlights
the efforts of the Group in fully implementing the concept of
sustainable development and performing the corporate social
responsibilities.

Scope of the Report

The ESG Report sets out the overall environmental and social
policies of the Group when conducting financial service, and wealth
and asset management in Hong Kong during the Year. The key
performance indicators (“KPIsS”) of the Group are disclosed based
on the operating activities of (i) the office located in Central from
January 2022 to September 2022", (i) the office located in Wan Chai
from September 2022 to December 2022, and (iii) the branch office
located in Tsuen Wan, during the Year.

Overall, the above mentioned reporting boundary was carefully
determined by the Group based on the material entities and
operations that have or will exert a great influence on the Group's
performance, assets and businesses in the long run.

Reporting Framework

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance to the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited ("HKEX") and in compliance with the “comply or
explain” provision thereof.

Reporting Principles

The content of the ESG Report is determined through stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment process, which includes
identifying ESG-related issues, collecting and reviewing the
management and stakeholders’ opinions, assessing the relevance
and materiality of the issues and preparing and validating the
information reported. The ESG Report covers all key issues that are
concerned by different stakeholders.

! The office is relocated from Central to Wan Chai in September 2022.
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Quantitative environmental and social KPIs are disclosed in the
ESG Report so that stakeholders are able to have a comprehensive
understanding of the Group’s ESG performance. Information of the
standards, methodologies, references and sources of key emissions
and conversion factors used on these KPIs and calculations
are stated wherever appropriate. To enhance and maintain the
comparability of the ESG Report over the years, the Group adopts
consistent reporting and calculation methodologies as practicable
as possible. In case of changes in methodologies and specific
standards, explanation will be provided in corresponding sections
to facilitate information interpretation.

Information and Feedback

For detailed information regarding the environmental, social and
corporate governance of the Group, please refer to the official
website (www.masonhk.com) and the Annual Report. Your opinions
are highly valued by the Group. Should you have any advice, please
contact the Group at info@masonhk.com.

ESG GOVERNANCE

Effective ESG governance plays a definite role in driving the Group's
pathway towards sustainable development. To ensure proper
implementation of ESG governance, the Board of Directors (the
“Board"”) oversees the Company’s ESG governance development
and execution, as well as to help determining the ESG strategies
and direction ahead, and to keep track of the potential ESG-related
risks provoked. With the Board’s supervision, authority is properly
delegated to the management of the Group to formulate and
execute ESG-related polices and strategies.

Board Statement

The Group believes that sound ESG principles and practices
will increase investment value and provide long-term returns to
stakeholders. To ensure the establishment of appropriate and
effective ESG risk management measures and internal control
system, the Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s ESG
strategies and performance, as well as assessing and identifying
ESG-related risks.
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In order to mitigate sustainability and ESG-related risks, as well
as to keep track of the Company’s ESG development, the Board
monitors the execution and cooperation between different business
divisions to ensure the operations and practices are adhering with
relevant ESG visions, approaches, strategies or initiatives defined
by the Board. In addition, the Board keeps track of international
trends and regulatory updates to ensure latest requirement and
compliance status are met. Timely adjustment will be made to
cater for the emerging market trends regarding ESG-related issues
that may potentially impact the business operations.

The Group has established communication channels between
business divisions and its stakeholders for better communication
of ESG-related issues. The communication channels are reviewed
regularly to ensure that effective communications are made
between the Group and its stakeholders. During the Year, the
Board has assigned an independent consulting firm to conduct a
materiality assessment for better identification of potential and
material ESG issues relevant to the business and its stakeholders.
Stakeholder engagement has been conducted to engage with
relevant stakeholders for a more precise identification of
the material issues that could internalise the opinions of the
stakeholders. The issues would be prioritised and those with
higher significance will be considered as material. The Board would
also review the material issues regularly to ensure appropriate
ESG management policies are in place, so as to promote prompt
responses to meet stakeholders’ expectations.

In an effort to enhance ESG performance, the Group endeavours
to review plans and performances regarding its operation and
sustainable development. The Board would keep track of ESG-
related work execution with respect to the proposed plans, budget,
expenditure and targets, for the purpose of formulating future
plans on the Group’s ESG development. The quality and quantity
of ESG-related staff trainings are also monitored to ensure the
Group's message on ESG-related issues and market trends are well
conveyed.
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Stakeholder Engagement

The Group believes that stakeholder engagement and support
are crucial to the Group’s business success. By continuously
understanding stakeholders’ expectations and concerns towards
sustainable development, the Group could have grasped a
more comprehensive perspective in developing the sustainable
development goal and improving the sustainable development
strategy.

Communication with Stakeholders

The Group has established a variety of communication methods
to allow stakeholders from different areas and levels to express
their opinions and suggestions, and the Group also responded to
stakeholders’ expectations and concerns in different channels to
improve our ESG performance and development strategy.

Stakeholders
ERE

Expectations and Needs
ERREH

Government and Regulators e Compliance with national

policies, laws and regulations .

o Support for local economic
growth
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Means of Communication
and Response
BEREELX

. Regular information reporting
Regular meetings with regulators
. Examination and inspection

. Contribution in local employment
o Tax Payment in full and on time

BRREEHE o  ETERHEE
o XFHAMKEER
o  THEMAME
s EREEHEMM

Shareholders o Returns
. Compliant operation
. Rise in company value
. Transparency and effective
communication
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Means of Communication
and Response
BEREERR

Stakeholders

Expectations and Needs
BoE ERREH

Partners Operation with integrity Review and appraisal meetings
Equal Rivalry Business communications
Performance of contracts Discussion and exchange of
Mutual benefits opinions
Engagement and cooperation
EERHF WS FRE R SR
NS Eyy il
BOERH Rm R E R
5B EH A Bk R A 1E
Customers Outstanding services Customer service centre and
Performance of contracts hotlines
Operation with integrity Meetings with customer
Social Media
®FE BE RS BEPIRT R O R B
BOERBH HEFER
WA HRERBTE

Environment

Compliance with emission
regulations

Energy saving and emission
reduction

Environmental protection

ESG Reporting
Investigations and inspections

RiB BFHEE AR R MHEREAME
£ e KR > BERR AERRE
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Employees Protection of rights Meetings with employees
Occupational health and safety House journal and intranet
Remunerations and benefits Employee mailbox
Career development Training and workshops
Humanity cares Employee activities
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Means of Communication

Stakeholders Expectations and Needs and Response
BoE ERREH BERBELRR
Community and the Public . Enhancement of community . Company website
environment o Interview with media
o Transparency
HERAR e  WEMHEIRIE NG kS
o FHE o {HHEIRE
Materiality Assessment EEMNME

In the Year's ESG Report, the Group has engaged an independent RAFEIRE -G REBHE  AEEELHE
third party consultant to assist with the collection of internal B E=FEAUBKEERERE HERE
stakeholders’ opinions regarding relevant ESG issues and thereby JRIEBAEER AR M EEE  HiMETES M
conducting materiality assessment to identify ESG issues that  sHfhLARBISE RS EEB LR ERFHESEIRE
are material to the business of the Group and its stakeholders. #HE&REEGEH c sHENERFHERAES - ME
The assessment is based on stakeholder survey, materiality SMNIEBRENESHEERARSE = HRE 4
maps provided by well-known external institutions?, as well as EREAZFATHEZEES - RAIHEZIRE -
professional opinions from the third-party ESG professional. The #&REREEIIRET :

material ESG issues as identified are shown as follows:

2 The materiality maps referenced in the materiality assessment include 2 BEENFEPRANEZENEZ2ER

the ESG Industry Materiality Map and the Sustainability Accounting MSCIR Al 548 Reg st EAIZ 58 ([SASB])
Standards Board (“SASB") Materiality Map produced respectively by DRRBIMIRIE LS RERITEEE B
MSCI and SASB. MSASBEZ HBFL o
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Material Issues
BEEEH

Aspects
@

Environmental
Green Office
MERETE

EPNE

BE

Employment and Labour Practices

Financing Environmental Impact

Human Capital Development

Employment Compliance

ANEBERFE
BEAH

RN EEA

Operating Practices

Privacy and Data Security

Transparent information and Fair Advice for Customers
Customer Service Management
Intellectual Property Protection

Business Ethics
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BEFEREREA

EREE
B EERE
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ENVIRONMENTAL OBJECTIVES

The Group is committed to embrace green development, as well as
to minimise the environmental impacts induced from daily business
operations. Understanding the importance of incorporating green
measures and practices into the business to achieve sustainable
development, the Group has developed a series of sustainable
development strategies together with a number of environmental
targets to push forward the Group’s commitment towards
protecting environment.

During the Year, the Group has set preliminary directional targets
to focus on i) Air and Greenhouse Gas Emissions Management; ii)
Waste Management; iii) Use of Resources; and iv) Green Operations
of the Company’s business operations and development, in terms
of sustainability. The Group is devoted to actively implement and
maintain or gradually reduce power and water consumptions,
and waste generation according to the Group’s measures
practiced on power saving, water conservation, and resources
consumption reduction, reuse and recycling. The Group will review
the implementation progress of various environmental protection
objectives and measures, monitor various emission sources and
identify more opportunities for energy conservation and emission
reduction.
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Environmental Areas Objectives
RIRERE Bz

Air and Greenhouse Gas
Emissions Management
BRERBEEREHNER

Waste Management

By ER

Use of Resources

EIRE A

Green Operations

BEEE

Actively implement and maintain or gradually reduce carbon footprint of
the offices according to the power saving measures of the Group
IRIE 7N & B 00 B RE 1R HE AR IR AT R A 5 X 0 D i A TR 2 B

Actively implement and maintain or gradually reduce waste generation
according to the Group’s measures of reduce, reuse and recycling
BRIEAEEARD BERARBEREEERNTRERSIE SR D
BEMES

Actively implement and maintain or gradually reduce energy and water
consumption according to the resource conservation and consumption
reduction measures of the Group

Develop an energy saving strategy through studying the energy
consumption of the Group

RIE AR B 0 B IRBBEE iR IT R FF SR PR 8RR K B AR
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Actively implement and maintain or gradually reduce paper consumption
according to the Group’s paper saving measures
RIBASEBEAE DK REEREGAIT REFRE LR D HREFHE

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

To seise opportunities and respond to possible challenges that
may arise, the Group endeavours to be an environment-friendly
organisation and to fulfil its responsibilities to the environment.
Despite the fact that its business operations do not pose significant
impacts to the environment, the Group still shoulders the
responsibility to improve its performances in emission reduction
and energy conservation. The Board strictly complies with all
environment-related laws and regulations, including but not limited
to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Water Pollution Control
Ordinance and Waste Disposal Ordinance of Hong Kong and
the Environmental Protection Act. The Board will also continue
to push forward green initiatives and promote environmental
protection awareness among the Group as to build a green
and environment-friendly workplace. Overall, environmental
non-compliance with applicable provisions was not observed in the
Year.
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Emission Management

Due to the nature of the business, as a financial service-based
enterprise, the Group does not consume fuel for operations nor
does it emit any industrial exhaust gas, directly. The Group does
not possess any vehicle fleet in the Year. Hence, the Group does
not emit any vehicle exhaust emission in the Year.

The vehicle exhaust emissions of the Group are as follows:

Vehicle Exhaust Emissions

FEBERBEK

HmmER

HREBIHE  FASRRBULE AEEY
ETEHRMH TG ERELTRER - A%
BRE ST E R - Bt - AEERERL
A ERERIM -

AEBRTEERIBLT

Nitrogen oxides (“NOy")
A&Ety (TNOyJ)
Sulphur oxides (“SOx")
Tty (1S0x1)
Particulate matter (“PM™)
Fary ([PMY)

In the Year, the greenhouse gas emissions of the Group are
composed of indirect emissions from purchased electricity, and
other indirect emissions from disposal of paper waste, which
generates methane at landfills and outbound business trips.
The Group is aware of the impacts of greenhouse gas emission
generated, and is devoted to reduce carbon footprint of the
Company. Hence, the Group opts for video conferencing to avoid
unnecessary overseas business travel, and chooses direct flight to
avoid transfer which prolonged the traveling distance, if necessary.
In addition, the Group promotes and educates employees about
the emission reduction measures, through e-mail, posters, internal
networks and other media to enhance employees’ environmental
responsibility.

kg 0.000 0.000
N

kg 0.000 0.000
AF

kg 0.000 0.000
AR

FA - AEENRERBYNBREBEESNES
MRS AREERARHEIEREENF b
LEEHINABRELNEMEEER - AEEE
BEELFRERBHRNZEL B ANE DK
REER R - Bt AEBERERGEZAER
THREBNEIN B EEZEMMIT (HER) BR
RS MERRITIERE o - AREBEBER -
B ABEREGRESERHERBARR
BEEE - ISR EEMRREE -
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The greenhouse gas emissions of the Group are as follows: REERREREHRAT -

Greenhouse Gas Emissions®

BEREHER
Total greenhouse gas emissions tonnes CO,e 212.56 179.31
AERBHREE AM S LRE S
Scope 1 - direct emissions* tonnes CO,e 0.00 0.00
BEI-EEHER N aiixgE
Scope 2 — energy indirect emissions® tonnes CO.e 179.46 171.93
#E2— se IR P AM—E(tiREE
Scope 3 — other indirect emissions® tonnes CO,e 33.11 7.38
0 B3 — L b B2 R AR AM S RE S
Greenhouse gas emissions per square metre tonnes COe/m? 0.02 0.01
BEAAMELANRERBHENE NSy (73
28/ VK

: The Group’s greenhouse gas inventory includes carbon dioxide, 3 ZJSE.E’j}Hﬁﬁﬁg/%Eﬁ@%*ﬁ{tﬁﬁ NP

methane and nitrous oxide, which are presented in carbon dioxide —&t—R  NZERESHR -
equivalent.

¢ Since there is no vehicle owned by the Group during the Year, there  * AR AEBRFRNLEESFRE  WESHE
is no Scope 1 direct emissions. BEEBEM -

s Scope 2 energy indirect emissions refers to greenhouse gas  ° HERRAEHMEREENEENRER
emissions from purchased electricity. The emission factor used for BEN - st EHR A A EZEREAERE
calculating emission is provided by the Hongkong Electric Company. PR ERME

é Scope 3 other indirect emissions refers to greenhouse gas emissions ¢ %EIBEWF%*HFEHE BREKRINABE
from waste paper disposal and outbound business trips. The data A BB ZEREEHEI o BURTIER EIRR RATAR A
is calculated based on the Carbon Emissions Calculator of the BRBEMET B 2R(ICAO) &H@"‘“F)’TF‘J?&E’JFWﬁ_
International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAQ) and the “Appendix 2: RIBEEMIEIEREIES|I5TE

Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by the HKEX.
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Waste Management

The Group acknowledges the importance of waste reduction,
and has been actively engaged in waste reduction. Waste
management measures, such as recycling waste paper, metals and
plastics through sorting into different waste recycling bins, have
been introduced to minimise the waste generation. In general,
general waste, including non-recyclables, tissues etc., is the
major non-hazardous waste disposed by the Group. While toner
cartridges and electronic wastes are the major hazardous wastes,
which will be collected and handled by qualified service providers.

The non-hazardous waste and hazardous waste disposed by the
Group's business operations are as follows:

Y EE

REB AR B EE MY B BRI
BEY) - REE T B BN BTFREY B ERIRR
SINEEYE RS PR B RENERE
R-ARDBEMEL -BRME —REY &
EAAENY  EMEDAKEERRENERZEE
BEY) c MM B REFENDHEIEEZEY &
HAEBRR IR AR E R

AEEXBLEELNERERRYREEEEY
L

Non-hazardous waste’

mEBEEYW

Total non-hazardous waste generated
PELAREEEVES

Non-hazardous waste generated per square metre
BEFARAEENEEREEYD

Hazardous waste®

BEEBEEY

Total hazardous waste generated
PEXEEEEVES

Hazardous waste generated per square metre
BYRRAEENEEREEYD

/ Non-hazardous waste of the Group included general office waste
and paper waste. The amount of general office waste was estimated
based on the operation situation of the Group while paper waste is
calculated based on actual consumption.

8 The weight of hazardous waste refers to the actual quantity of waste
generated.

tonnes 16.97 16.19
N
kg/m’ 1.53 1.06
Af /IR
kg 1.17 1.58
NI
kg/m’ 0.000 0.000
Af /IR

! REBNBEEFEZYBE —RBAEDNE
o —RKDEVOHEDERRNEENEE
AR - MR ERNBEREREE -

¢ EEBRMNEERELNERYNERYE -
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In order to promote waste reduction in offices, waste sorting bins
are available for waste paper, metals and plastics collection. All
paper boxes, paper, newspaper and magazines are collected for
recycling purpose. The recyclables are then collected by qualified
service providers to recycle. The Group also provides refills for
reusable stationery and reminds employees to reuse stationery
such as envelopes, folders and file cards. In addition, inventory of
materials are evaluated regularly to avoid overstock and wastage.
Posters are also put up at pantries to remind staff from avoiding
disposable and non-recyclable products, such as paper cups.
If there is electronic waste, the Group will contact electronics
company to properly handle and recycle old computers and other
electronic waste. Overall, the Group is devoted to and actively
engaged in reducing waste in our business operations, and support
handling of waste in an environmental-friendly way.

Use of Resources

The Group understands the importance of effective resource
utilisation and has committed to streamline operations to optimise
resource utilisation, save energy and reduce resource consumption.
The Group actively promotes the importance of environmental
protection among employees, to raise their awareness on
environmental protection and to learn the philosophies of resource
conservation and consumption reduction. Meanwhile, the Group
also encourages the practice of waste reduction at source, as well
as effective adoption of green office.

The Group mainly consumes energy through the use of electricity,
water and paper, including the indirect energy consumption for
water and paper processing, for daily office operations. On the
other hand, the Group'’s business does not require or involve any
packaging materials.
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Energy Conservation

The Group has adopted multiple energy saving initiatives to
improve energy efficiency of equipment or devices and reduce
energy consumption. Multiple areas, equipment and systems,
including lighting system, printing equipment, Information and
Communications Technology equipment etc., have been addressed
to practice energy conservation. The Group has segregated
the office areas into different lighting zones with multiple light
switches, and practiced de-lamping for areas which are with
higher-than-required lighting level to reduce unnecessary lighting.
The Group has also adopted energy efficient lighting fixtures, such
as the T5 fluorescent lamps and LED lights, as well as keeping
them clean to maximise the energy efficiency for lighting. Lighting
panels with mirror reflectors are installed to reflect and maximise
lighting efficiency as well. Employees are reminded to switch off
unnecessary lighting, especially when rooms are not in use or
when leaving the office after office hours.

Reducing energy use for air conditioning is also another focus
area. Employees are required to switch off the air-conditioners
during non-working hours and allowed to dress casually on Fridays.
Central Control and Monitoring System (CCMS) is adopted to
maintain the office temperature at a minimum of 25.5 degrees
Celsius. Moreover, regular leakage checks are conducted to reduce
possible leakage of refrigerants.

The Group also encourages employees to set the computers and
Information and Communications Technology (ICT) equipment
to automatic standby or sleep mode and to turn off unused
electrical devices before leaving the office. Printers with the
“pull printing” options, which require staff authentication before
printing, are adopted to save unnecessary printing or accidental
print outs. Besides, the Group conducts monthly electricity audits
to monitor power consumption and make appropriate measures
for improvement. In order to enhance operational efficiency, the
Group regularly upgrades its existing facilities such as replacing
outdated computers, phones and other electrical appliances. As
such, it gives priority to eco-friendly equipment during procurement
process to protect the environment.

& REIR
AEECRBLRAMEEE  MERRBEXEKE
Y BE TR AR R K PR RE IR OB #E © RIBS - B2 2 {E
BECRENEG BERARS THRE
EERBERMRES BEMHE A5EHEE
I RATRE AR RAREE - RS0
2SR RRER7K P HY [ I8RO BR BB D A s R D AR AR o
AEETCHRMEEIRARKE - fIAAT5R K E KR
LEDE ~ (R #5582 - AR EIR = IR AR 52 R
Ko RRGEERGENRAR - &E%‘uﬁ%ﬂﬂa?
PR K - REERERERMA T KRR LER
TME P sk N HHRBER 2 =6 o

WMAERERN AR —AEHEE - AEBEEKX
BEAFTERBRAMAEALRFRENAFE
R EIL - REBBRA T REEH| N E R R LCCMS)
1 #t N =R 2 4 45 R R X255/ © thoh - &

FERETRRRE - LURDEIS B HIR SR
AJBEIE

NEBI S ENE 8 AT RE B RBERINICT
RERBEDHFHIERES  UEBRARAE
RIBARATME A E T 35248 o SRR (R B IEM T
i - TENRT R EB THFE - fia T XL EMITE
HEIMTE - o AEEZAETENEZ

NEREEERIELEENEREE - RiESEE
ME - AEEEHARERBRE  PIAERB
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BRERELEBRRRE  ARE
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EREBEZERERAT / 2022FERE

83



84

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HE8RERKRE

The energy consumption of the Group is as follows:

Energy Consumption

REBMBRBFENT

BETROHFE
Total energy consumption MWh 267.67 257.71
RFRHERE KE B
Diesel consumption MWh 0.00 0.00
SemEREE JK LBy
Consumption of purchased electricity’ MWh 267.67 257.71
SNEB N EREE KE B
Energy consumption per square metre Mwh/m’ 0.02 0.02
BYHRERERER JEERE AR
Water Conservation H 4 Ak

The Group does not operate a water-intensive business. The water
consumption and wastewater drainage services are fully managed
by the property management of the offices, which the Group has
no access to the water consumption and wastewater drainage
amount used. Hence, water and wastewater amount data are
not available nor can it be collected or interpreted by the Group.
Nevertheless, the Group remains concerned regarding the water
saving measures implemented at the offices. Water saving posters
are put up at offices, including pantries and washrooms, to raise
awareness and remind employees of saving water. In the Year, the
Group did not have any issue regarding sourcing water.

The water consumption of the Group is as follows:

Water Consumption

AREE I MG EFRERNET - AR EBEKAR
BRRAENEEELREE AKEERLER
FKERPIKE - Fitt - AREE LR SHAKE
MEKERE  TEIRSHMEZSTHE R
i AEBDELRAZEERAEKER - A
ERMEHKER ERERMENATE 8
TERBBARESTHK - TR REELE
B BKIR R B (Efa] T 2 -

REBWFKENT

FEKE

Total water consumption m’ 0.00 0.00
ks 3K

Water consumption per square metre m*/m? 0.00 0.00
BEFKRNFEKE SMHKSFE R K

’ The electricity consumption is calculated based on the actual

consumption of the offices.
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Green Operation

While actively developing its business, the Group recognised
the importance of green operations and spared no effort in
promoting paper consumption reduction and minimising waste at
source. Therefore, the Group has adopted different measures to
integrate environmental protection concepts into daily operations
and to build a comprehensive enterprise that takes economic,
environmental and social aspects into account.

The Group has introduced a wide range of paperless solutions into
its daily operations to reduce the amount of printing materials.
The Group has put up posters and notices next to the printers
to remind employees to reuse single sided non-confidential
print out and practice double-sided printing. Additionally, the
Group disseminates information through electronic means to
reduce paper use. Printing volume is also monitored regularly,
and printing quota for each employee is set to avoid excessive
printing. The Group has also replaced most fax machines with
e-fax to save paper printing. Discarded paper, except those printed
with confidential information, would be delivered to waste paper
recycling companies for further handling. In the Year, the Group
has recycled 0.36 tonnes of paper (2021: 0.17 tonnes).

ReEE

EREEREBORN  AEERRIECLE
MBS - I TER NSRS ERERE LR
SEURAE o Bt - REEIRET TR - B
RREBSBMALRFEED  TERR—ERE
B RARMENRHAILE

AEEREAEZLERSIA—RIEREAR
LARLA ENRIRT R 806 PR & - AEB B AT ENHESS
REEHRERET  REEEBEEFEABEFES
ITEDREEITE » b AEEZEBE T H AR
HEBRADERER - EERAERE X AT
E{E B % & T ENEL S8 B E ENRl » AR E IR LA
BFEERNRARB EERLUR D HORITED o B2
TR (BB HEEERBRIN 18X B EA R A A
VEE— P IRIE - RAFE - AEEE B4 HR0.36
WE(—ZF=—4 : 0.17Wf) »
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Responding to Climate Change

In recent years, climate change has been a hot topic discussed
and attributes relevant to greenhouse gas emissions are knowingly
getting worse. The Group has raised its awareness towards the
risks and potential impacts of climate change towards the Group.
Although the Group did not discover any major climate-related
risks during the Year, the Group will assign appropriate staff to
review global and local government policies, regulatory updates
and market trends to identify potential climate-related risks and
opportunities that may have financial impacts on the Group's
business. In case of emergency due to extreme weathers such
as typhoons and heavy rainfall, the Group also adopts special
work arrangement to notify employees to safeguard the health
and safety of workforce. In addition, the Group maintains
comprehensive insurance coverage for assets which are prone to
damage by extreme weather or other physical impacts caused by
climate change.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group believes that the formulation of employment policies is
essential to the competitiveness of the company. The Group strictly
complies with the laws and regulations related to the rights and
interests of employees, including but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong. The Group treasures employees’ talent
and strives to provide its employees a suitable platform and
working environment to nurture their professional development.

Employment Policies

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and is committed
to complying with the code of practice issued by the Equal
Opportunities Commission of Hong Kong. The Group does not
tolerate any form of discrimination on grounds of race, ethnic or
national origins, colour, nationality, religion or belief, sex, sexual
orientation, gender reassignment, marital status, age, disability
or any other protected characteristic and has formulated its
internal employment policies in accordance with relevant laws
and regulations. The Company strives to observe and afford equal
opportunities for, and to prevent discrimination in respect of, all
its employees in various employment stages such as recruitment,
promotion, position transfer and training. Employees are legally
obliged to ensure that no discrimination is rest on the aforesaid
legal grounds, and no aid or permission should be provided
regarding the discrimination. If there is any employee who failed to
comply with the aforesaid policy, the Group will take disciplinary
action against the employee, which the policy in taking disciplinary
action is stipulated in the internal guidelines.
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During the recruitment process, the Group has a comprehensive
assessment system in place, in which only the applicants’
performance and qualifications are considered. Each individual
should be assessed according to their personal capability to carry
out the role. No employee is to be discriminated or victimized for
complaining in good faith of unlawful discrimination or harassment
or giving evidence about such a compliant. Also, the Group verifies
the age of the applicants by checking their identification documents
to avoid any employment of child labour. Failure to comply with the
policy in verifying the age of the applicant may result to disciplinary
action, which includes immediate dismissal. The Group would
immediately terminate his/her contract if any employment of child
labour is discovered. Investigations will also be taken to look into
the causes of the child labouring issue. Meanwhile, the Group
would review the current practices and policies to avoid child and
forced labour. Before the commencement of employment, a job
description outlining the principal accountabilities of the employee
is attached in the letter of employment of every employee, which
also covers matters such as wages, working hours, probation
period, and requirement for notice of termination. Employees are
required to work in accordance with the agreed labour contract
to prevent any forced labour. For resignation and termination
of employee, the Group strictly complies with the Employment
Ordinance of Hone Kong and follows its internal guidelines, which
clearly stated the circumstances and procedures of termination
and dismissal. An exit interview will be conducted by the human
resource personnel to understand the resigned employee’s reason
of leaving for further internal review.

During the Year, the Group did not notice any non-compliance with
the applicable labour laws and regulations in the areas where it
operates and did not face any disciplinary action with respect to
the labour protection issues.

REBEEET AREREE2EANTEHE B
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As at 31 December 2022, there was a total of 56 employees. R-T-—HF+-F=+—1  H*E6KES -
Detailed numbers of employees by different categories was as  ETFEERIEI D EEE AR T ¢
follows:

Number of Employees

By gender 2 1 Al
Male B 30 a4
Female M 26 41
By age group RF A R
30 years old or below 30BR sk A~ 12 21
31 to 40 years old 315R 2405% 21 27
41 to 50 years old AR E508% 15 21
51 years old or above 5153 A £ 8 16
By employment type REEBER
Full-time i 55 84
Part-time FRE 1 1
By geographical region 1% i 32 I 4
Hong Kong BB 55 85
Other Hh 1 0

During the Year, a total of 66 employees left the Group, and the RAEE REBLEOLE SRR @ Bighk
overall turnover rate is 94% (2021: 44%). The employee turnover  th&R E94% (ZF = —14F : 44%) - NEEIZTRLE
rate of the Group by different categories was as follows: REID R B RARLLEIAT

Turnover Rate Tk =R

By gender B
Male B 81% 39%
Female Z 107% 49%
By age group RERAR
30 years old or below 30pR 3 AT 91% 46%
31 t0 40 years old 3158 2 405%, 92% 51%
41 to 50 years old AR E508% 89% 32%
51 years old or above 5153 A £ 108% 41%
By geographical region % i B & i
Hong Kong BE 94% 44%
Other Hh 0% 0%
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Remuneration and Promotion

Every year, the Group conducts performance review to evaluate
the progress of employees in achieving their performance
objectives as set at the beginning of each year. The evaluation
of work performance will be agreed among managers and their
subordinates. Employees are encouraged to discuss their progress
towards their career goals and voice out any needs of further
training and education. The performance review allows the Group
to evaluate employees’ capability and potential to take up more
responsibilities in a higher position or transfer to other positions.
The Group will give internal transfer opportunities to employees
who have joined the Group for more than 6 months, in case of any
vacancies, so as to support employees’ career development. The
Group strives to ensure all employees are able to receive equal
opportunity for promotion and clear career path.

Based on the annual performance review, the Group will also adjust
employees’ remuneration, striving to offer employees competitive
remuneration. Salary increment will be awarded in recognition of
employee’s performance, attitude, potential and qualifications, as
well as the Group's profit and market pay rates. Apart from basic
salary, the Group also provides annual discretionary bonus to
employees.

Interests and Benefits for Employees

In order to guarantee adequate rest for employees and promote
the balance between work and life, the Group adopts five-day
workweek and strives to prevent forced labour or overtime
work in the business operations as far as possible. In addition to
public holidays and other holidays prescribed in applicable laws,
employees are also entitled to maternity leave, paternity leave,
examination leave, marriage leave, compassionate leave, jury
service leave. The Group normally organises various employee
activities, such as Christmas party, annual dinner and staff birthday
celebrations to enhance team spirit and strengthen the bonding
between employees and the Group. During the year, the Group
hosted events for Dragon Boat Festival, Mid-Autumn Festival,
Relocation Celebration, Anniversary Celebration, Christmas, and
monthly staff events. The Group will continue to build a warm and
harmonious working environment through other means in the
future.

B T
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In accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF")
Schemes Ordinance of Hong Kong and other relevant laws and
regulations, the Group makes contributions to MPF Schemes,
medical insurance, business travel insurance and labour insurance
for employees in Hong Kong. Meanwhile, additional benefits and
reimbursement in terms of rent, commuting for business purposes,
meals are available to employees.

Development and Training

The Group attaches great importance to establishing a team with
diverse expertise and assisting its employees in exploring their
potentials. New employees will receive a formal induction before
the commencement of his or her job duties. Also, the Group
has arranged trainings to place an appropriate emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company director. Besides,
employees are encouraged to participate in relevant in-house and
external training to further acquire new skills according to the
needs of their position.

The internal trainings received by the employee in the Year mainly
focused on the latest market knowledge and updates. For example,
in-house training on technical analysis and trading mechanism are
conducted to maintain employees’ professionalism and enhance
their customer service skills. Additional trainings and materials
are provided to directors of the Group to ensure that they are
apprised of the latest changes in the commercial, legal and
regulatory requirements in relation to the Group’s business. For
external training, eligible employees can be benefited from financial
assistance in aspects such as professional membership and
examinations, so as to support their personal growth and career
advancement.
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Training 3N
Percentage of employees trained TIEERSL
By gender 7% 5l
Male B
Female M
By category =5
Senior management SRERE
Middle management FREEE
General staff LEBE

Average training hours completed
per employee

By gender gyl
Male B
Female 4

By category =25
Senior management SRERE
Middle management FREEE
General staff TRBE

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group takes into consideration every precaution to establish
a healthy and safe working environment for its employees. The
Group strictly complies with the rules and guidelines stipulated
in the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong,
and any other applicable laws and regulations. The Management
is responsible for providing and maintaining a safe working
environment and safe system of work. The Group ensures its
employees have received adequate information, instruction,
training and supervision so as to avoid injury at work. Besides,
the Group has formulated a sound occupational health and safety
policy. Reviews will be conducted with immediate follow-up actions
and improvements whenever necessary.

The Group has its fire safety and emergency evacuation procedures
in place to ensure the safety of all employees and to minimise the
damage and loss of the Group in the event of fire. The evacuation
procedure has clearly stated the duties and responsibilities of fire
marshals, the procedures when discovering a fire and evacuation
routes and assembly locations for different offices. Employees are
required to participate in the annual fire evacuation drill organised
by the property management of the office premises. Through
providing the aforementioned trainings to employees, they become
adequately knowledgeable of the office’s evacuation procedures.
On top of the above, smoking is strictly prohibited in the Group's
premises to minimise the occurrence of fire events.
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To ensure employees’ safety at work, the Group provides them with
necessary equipment for protection against work-related injuries.
For example, first aid kit is available at the office pantry. In cases of
which employee suffers from an injury at work, one should notify
his or her Department Head and the Human Resources Department
immediately. In addition, guidelines for reporting duty under
typhoon and rainstorms were formulated to provide employees
with guidance on the work arrangement during extreme weather
events, in a bid to ensure employees’ safety when commuting to
and from office.

A clear and effective system for reporting hazards, injuries and
illnesses has been established. During the Year, there were no
work-related fatalities, and no work day was lost as there were no
cases of work-related injury among employees. And the Group did
not notice any non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations
relating to occupational health and safety in the areas where it
operates and did not face any disciplinary action with respect to
occupational health and safety issues.

In the past three years, the number and rate of work-related
fatalities occurred were as follows:

Health and Safety

LT BE
LT (%)

Number of fatalities
Rate of fatalities (%)

Response to Coronavirus Disease 2019

Personal and office hygiene is also another important line of
defence to safeguard employees’ health. The Group has stipulated
internal guidelines such as keeping hands clean by washing
hands frequently, disposing used tissue paper into rubbish bins
with lids and consulting a doctor promptly in case of illness. The
Group has also formulated measures such as regular disinfection,
requiring employees and visitors to wear masks and keeping social
distances from others. Employees, whenever have contacted or are
suspected to have contact with confirmed cases, should not visit
office premises and are required to report to Human Resources
department while consulting a doctor immediately. It is of
paramount importance to provide a virus-free working environment
and to safeguard employee’s health.
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OPERATION MANAGEMENT

Integrity, responsibility and compassion are the foundation stones
the Group uses to build excellence in our operation. The Group has
continued to safeguard the quality of our services with reliable and
accountable management systems and adhered to the principle of
sustainable development at the same time.

Supply Chain Management

As part of its commitment to environmental and corporate
responsibility, the Group attaches great importance to supplier
management and monitors the performances of its suppliers
by formulating internal procedures and measures for managing
environmental and social risks of the supply chain. The Group
undertakes regular performance reviews on the suppliers to ensure
that they do not pose detrimental impacts to the environment and
society. When selecting suppliers, the Group takes into account a
range of criteria including product pricing, product quality, supply
capability, business track record and the services provided by the
suppliers. Suppliers must comply with all relevant local and national
laws and regulations in relation to health and safety, unethical
behaviour, bribery, corruption and other prohibited business
practices. The Group also requires its suppliers to have a written
policy which regulates personal conduct and behaviour of their
employees to minimise its social risks, and to provide an open and
transparent report on their material ESG risks which includes the
measures taken to address those risks.

At the end of the supplier selection process, the Group will compile
a list of approved suppliers to facilitate periodic review. The Group
works closely and regularly with our suppliers in order to review
their backgrounds, business licenses and requisite certifications
and monitor their performance during engagement. Overall,
the environmental and social performances of the suppliers are
essential decision factors in selecting suitable suppliers. Only
suppliers that meet the criteria could be added to the list of
qualified suppliers. During the Year, the Group has engaged 26
suppliers with 23 from Hong Kong, 1 from mainland China and 2
from overseas.

Besides, as green purchasing is adopted in the office, the Group
also prefers purchasing products and selecting services with
minimal impact to the environment whenever possible. For
example, local suppliers or suppliers that are geographically closer
and more accessible are more preferable in order to reduce carbon
footprint. In addition, the Group selects suppliers who supply paper
with recycled content or with paper origin from sustainable forest
as far as possible.
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Quality Control

The Group is committed to providing quality and customer-centred
financial services while expanding its varieties of investment
products. The Group has set up internal control procedures to
protect the Group, its customers and employees from financial loss
arising from theft or fraud, and other dishonest acts, professional
misconduct or omissions. All of its services are in strict accordance
with its internal compliance policy and all applicable laws and
regulations. Pre-approval on trades are required before execution
in which the rationales, relationships between counterparties,
execution price, and validity of transactions will be assessed. There
will also be specialised personnel who is responsible for post
trade monitoring on error trades so as to keep track of the trade
performances. The Group has employed adequate resources, both
financial and operational, and has in place procedures necessary
for the proper conduct of its business in assuring its service quality.

Emphasis on Customers

The Group believes that customers’ opinions are the driving force
of its success. Our complaint handling policy and procedures are
strictly in accordance with the Code of Conduct of the Securities
and Futures Commission (“SFC”) to ensure that customers’
opinions are handled in a timely and appropriate manner. The
Group also complies with the Financial Dispute Resolution Scheme
for managing and resolving disputes administered by the Financial
Dispute Resolution Centre in full and is bounded by the dispute
resolution process therein.
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Channels of complaints are open to all shareholders and potential
shareholders; customers and consumers; suppliers and contractors
and all directors and employees of the Group. Complaint officers
are the frontline personnel appointed to handle customers’
complaints. All customers’ complaints will be considered impartially
and efficiently verbally and in written form in accordance with
internal procedures and guidelines. Complaints will be recorded
and maintained by both Customer Services Department and
Compliance Department for record keeping purpose. Relevant
investigation and improvement procedures will be conducted
and unlawful or unethical conduct will be investigated promptly.
Where if the complaint indicates that the Group may be in breach
of laws, rules and regulations and codes of the SFC or there
are any fraudulent activities, the SFC must be notified in writing
after seeking internal or external legal advice where appropriate.
During the Year, the Group did not received complaint regarding
its services (2021: 1). The Group believes that customer’s opinions
help us to identify the needs of customers and the community,
and the Group could make further improvements by strengthening
policies in those aspects.

Privacy and Intellectual Property Protection

As a financial service provider, protecting customers’ privacy
and safeguarding market fairness have core roles to play in the
establishment of a long-term and mutually trusted relationship
with customers. The Group continues to comply with the relevant
laws and regulations including but not limited to the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong. The Group has incorporated
appropriate use of proprietary information into code of conduct for
staff to follow and protect all personal data of customers rigorously.
Customers’ personal data will be collected accurately in a lawful
and fair way only for directly related purposes and will be kept for a
period no longer than necessary, and customers are guaranteed to
have access to their personal data and be able to make corrections
if it is inaccurate. Moreover, the Group implemented two-factor
authentication to protect user data from being accessed by
unauthorised person.
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The Group respects and protects intellectual property, and strictly
complies with the relevant laws and regulations, such as the
Copyright Ordinance and Trade Marks Ordinance of Hong Kong,
to eliminate any alleged infringement. The Group stipulated the
terms and conditions relating to confidentiality of information in the
employment contracts, requiring employees to undertake not to
disclose any information, technical data, trade secrets, know-how
or other information to any third parties without written consent
of the Group. Also, the Group only uses licensed software, and all
software must comply with the license agreement to avoid and
prevent from infringement of others’ intellectual property rights.

During the Year, the Group did not notice any non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations relating to privacy and
intellectual property protection in the areas where it operates and
did not face any disciplinary action with respect to these issues.

Anti-corruption

The Group upholds the highest level of integrity and ethical
standards through strict compliance with the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance in Hong Kong, and any other applicable laws and
regulations. Our code of conduct includes the general framework
of relevant anti-bribery laws, rules and regulations and acts as the
guidance for employees to perform proper practices in the dealing
in securities, futures and in the provision of investment advice
or other activities. Employees are also prohibited to solicit and
accept advantages without prior approval by the Group. To avoid
situations which may constitute bribery, employees should make
a declaration to the Group for any actual or potential conflict of
interests.
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Besides, there is a whistle-blowing policy in place to provide a
channel for all shareholders, customers, consumers, suppliers,
contractors, directors and employees to report misconduct and
possible breaches of code of conduct. If employee suspects a
policy, practice or activity is in violation of the law, he or she should
file a written disclosure to the Audit Committee. All reports received
will be recorded, investigated and handled with appropriate
sensitivity and confidentiality, while every effort will be made to
protect the whistle-blowers. In the Year, anti-corruption training,
which covered anti-money laundering and counter-financing of
terrorism, were offered to employees. The Group also circulated
the materials about anti-money laundering and counter-financing of
terrorism for the purpose of making employees aware of the legal
requirement, the reporting of suspicious transactions relating to
money laundering and their personal statutory obligation.

During the Year, the Group did not notice any non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations relating to anticorruption
and did not face any disciplinary action with respect to corruption
issues. No concluded cases regarding corrupt practices were
brought against the Group or its employees (2021: Nil).

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group highly values making contribution back to the society
through available resources and efforts. Whenever possible, the
Group focus on supporting local institutions and non-governmental
organisations through donations to aid their community services.
Employees are also encouraged to volunteer at different charity
organisations to show support for the community. Furthermore,
the Group offers channels and platforms of communication to its
stakeholders and communities to understand their motivations,
goals, and needs through continuous conversation, so as to utilise
resources in the most effective means.
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APPENDIX: CONTENT INDEX OF "ENVIRONMENTAL, i : [RE HEREBHREESIIA
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE" B&L|

ESG Indicators Overview Sections Page no./Explanation/
BE HER BE Ef Reasons for Omissions
BREE BR/ B8/ BER

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions Emission Management 79
data.

BRENERA SRR ERNER 79

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) Emission Management 79,80
greenhouse gas emissions and, where appropriate,
intensity.

BRENEEA2 B (BE) ket (HE2) REREENE 0L HHnER 79, 80
W E) R (NER)BE (WASEREN - B8R
M E) o

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where Waste Management 81
appropriate, intensity.

BRENERA3 EXREEENAE UE) R (NER)BE EYER 81
(WMAGES BN - §HEREHE)

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where Waste Management 81
appropriate, intensity.

BERENEEALL EEEEEENEE B E) L(WER)ZE BUER 81
(MABEEBN  BREHEMHE) -

KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken Environmental Objectives 77,82
to achieve them.

BRENEEAS WA MHERERERAEIELAEMER RRER 77,82
B

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous ~ Environmental Objectives 77,82

wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) and steps taken to achieve them.

BEEXERALS  HIREBEREZERMNOL  RELMITL RRER 71,82
MRERRLAZEELERMRRNLSHE -
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ESG Indicators Overview Sections Page no./Explanation/
BE HER BE =11} Reasons for Omissions
ERER R/ e/ BERE

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in - Energy Conservation 84
total and intensity.
BRENERA2.1 RERNESMERR/JMZEER(NE  Roh) HEER 84

@78 (AT ATERHE) RTE (W) SEEE
i SEREHE) -

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Water Conservation 84

BRENERA2.2 BRKERDE (MUBEEEN - BERBHE) o HHHEK 84

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) setand  Environmental Objectives, Energy 77, 83
steps taken to achieve them. Conservation

BRENERA2.3 AT UMERER R EERAEIELEE RREE HEHR 77,83
FRERERA P58, o

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing — Environmental Objectives, Water 77, 83

water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s)  Conservation
set and steps taken to achieve them.

BRENERA24 HWCKEEROR E T EEARE  DRATIZE REREE  BOAK 77,83
BRBzEBERAEEL B BRI SHE -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products  Use of Resources Not applicable to the
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit Group.
produced.

BRENERA2S SRR eEMEMAsE (UBE) L (MER) ERER TEARKEE o
BEEBMEE -
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ESG Indicators
BE HER

EHER

KPI A3.1

BRRENER A3

Overview Sections Page no./Explanation/
BE 2 Reasons for Omissions
BR/ BB/ KERE

Description of the significant impacts of activities Green QOperation 85
on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them.

HRAXBEDHRARRARERNEATYERC R RELE 85
RERERTENTY

KPI A4.1

BREMIEEAL

Description of the significant climate-related issues  Responding to Climate Change 86
which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

HRDERAEEHRTAELYENEARER SRAKEL 86
BEE RESHTE-

KPI B1.1

BRENERB11

KPI B1.2

RRENESB2

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age  Employment Policies 88
group and geographical region.

RER - BERER (W2BRE) FRARRE EREE 83
REDHESAH

Employee turnover rate by gender, age groupand  Employment Policies 38
geographical region.

BRI FRAERRMREDNEERALE - ERLE 83
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ESG Indicators
BiE HEK

ERER

KPI B2.1

BARENERB2.1

KPI B2.2
BRENEEB2.2
KPI B2.3

BRENESB23

Overview
BE

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred
in each of the past three years including the
reporting year.

BEZF (REERFE)SFRITHMARRL
$ o

Lost days due to work injury.

AIGRATERY -

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented and
monitored.

HRFARMNBRRFERZ 25E - ARABENT
REERE -

Sections

£4:]

Occupational Health and Safety

BEEFEER2

Occupational Health and Safety
BERRELZ2
Occupational Health and Safety

BERREZS

Page no./Explanation/
Reasons for Omissions
BER/BE/KERE

92

92

92
92

91,92

91,92

KPI B3.1

BRAENIEEB3.

KPI B3.2

BREXEEB3.2

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category.

RERRESHRN (MEREEE +REEE)E
AHZIEEBLL

The average training hours completed per employee
by gender and employee category.
RUEFREEENES  BEEETKTIMTH
538

Development and Training

BRRE

Development and Training

BRI

91

91

91

91
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Overview
BE

ESG Indicators
Big HER

EHER

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.

BRENIEEBRL HARET B G DA P E T AR 4 TA T o

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.

BRENEEBL2 HEREERERERRERERERTRR S -

Sections

£4:1]

Employment Policies

EREE

Employment Policies

EREE
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Page no./Explanation/
Reasons for Omissions
BER/BE/KERE

87

87
87

87

KPI B5.1
B &R W 12 12B5.1
KPI B5.2

Number of suppliers by geographical region.
RHREIDMEEEHE o

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored.

A ABEREEENES  mARTABENN
HERHE  LREBRTRERAE
Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

EABRER K E RS ERDARERLERARNY
Bf - URRRATRERTA -

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

ERAREHEARRES ARRERRREOE
Bl AREBEBITRER A

BRANEEBS.2

KPI B5.3

BREXEEBS.3

KPI B5.4

BRANEEBS4
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ESG Indicators Overview Sections Page no./Explanation/
BE HER BE =11} Reasons for Omissions
ERER R/ R/ KRR

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject Quality Control Not applicable to the Group
to recalls for safety and health reasons. as there were no products
sold.
BRENIEEB6.1 EEIRERERAHTRL 2 BRFEMMASR ESEH BRI EEREL  THF
EERN A FRAREE -
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints  Emphasis on Customers 94,95
received and how they are dealt with.
BRENIEEB6.2 EREREDMRBHORFE R U REY 5L - EREP 94, 95
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Privacy and Intellectual Property 95, 96
protecting intellectual property rights. Protection
BRENIERB6.3 Ml EEERRENREEEANED - LERABERRE 95, 96
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall  Quality Control 94
procedures.
BRENEEB6.A HAEERTAEREREKER - BE7H 94
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and Privacy and Intellectual Property 95
privacy policies, and how they are implemented and Protection
monitored.
BRENIEEB6.S HIHEEERRERLBRE  LREARTE LRRIOZEERE 95
BRI
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ESG Indicators overview
Big HER BE

EHER

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
Cases.

BRENIEEBT.A RERBAHETASEEEREVERENES
FARENEE RFRER -
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and

whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

B EMIEEBT.2 WPy EE L BRER  URBERTRERR
VE o

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to
directors and staff.

BRENEEBT3 HlmESERETRENRERE -

Sections

£4:1]

Anti-corruption

REF

Anti-corruption

RES

Anti-corruption

~ ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Page no./Explanation/
Reasons for Omissions
BER/BE/KERE

97

97

97

97

97

97

KPI BS.1 Focus areas of contribution.

BEENIEEBS. EIEHEE (IHE REZEH SI5K #
Bt BE) -
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area.

BRENEEBS.2 EFIEBMYAER(MEERER) -

&
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RHENRE

IBDO

EEE 1 +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF MASON GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mason
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 114 to 275, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the "Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
i
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KRHID258
HRREEZERERARRR

(RESEAMH 2.2 BIRAA])

it

\
¢

R
SEERINBVLARCEZ EREEB LR
BRAR([ERR) REMBAR (SREB[EER )
ZIERAMBHmE  EPRER_E_F+=A
ST —B2EREMBRRERER  UEREEZBLE
FEZEAZEANREER REEREDREGE
ReREER  REAWBHRENT  2EXEE
ETHCRBIE -

i

EERA RAMBHREDIZBEESMA
g ((BEFGTMAT)) BHOE B RS LE
AEEAFHMRYE EXER-_T__F+_A4
=+ —BRREMBERAREBEZBIEFEDN
BEMBRRARGEREMNE  WEERBREAERQ
A& 2 AR S -

RREE

EEERBEESHMASHMN BT ERALER
([FBEFER D ETER EENZEELR
TEESEARRE D [ZBEI L E 2RSSR
REAAENEEIDE—FFL - REFEG
gz EXetamBEsal ()  E58

v BEE YEREBTIETESENEGE
RERAEME -BFHE BEEMESHETRE

B MEEH REFNET B IR MR -

EREBEZERERAT / 2022FERE

105



106

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Impairment assessment of interests in associates
As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of interests in
associates amounted to HK$157.48 million, which represented
approximately 3.73% of the Group’s total assets.

The Group is required to assess at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any indication that the carrying amounts
of interests in associates may be impaired. Should indication of
impairment exist, an impairment assessment will be performed
accordingly. The recoverable amounts of interests in associates are
assessed by value-in-use (“VIU calculation”) model which are based
on future discounted cash flows on a cash generating unit (“CGU")
basis.

Management has performed impairment assessment with
reference to the reports issued by the valuation specialist and
concluded an impairment loss of HK$152.09 million on the interests
in associates during the year.

Refer to notes 4(e), 4(0) and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of
interests in associates included:

—  Evaluating the valuation specialist’'s competence, capabilities
and objectivity;,

— Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies, including the VIU calculation, used by
the valuation specialist and management to estimate the
recoverable amount of the CGUS;

— Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based
on our knowledge and understanding of the businesses and
markets;

— Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and evaluating the reasonableness of the
budgets; and

— Engaging our internal valuation specialist to assist us in
evaluating and assessing the appropriateness of the key
assumptions used in the valuation.

Recoverability assessment of loan receivables,
trade and other receivables

The carrying amount of the Group’s loan receivables and trade and
other receivables amounted to HK$180.18 million and HK$299.34
million as at 31 December 2022 respectively, which represented
11.37% of the Group's total assets.

Loss allowances for these receivables are based on management'’s
estimate of the expected credit losses (“ECLs") to be incurred,
which is estimated by taking into account the credit loss
experience, aging of overdue receivables, customers’ repayment
history and customers’ financial position and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic conditions, all of
which involve a significant degree of management judgement.

Assessment of the recoverability of these receivables and
recognition of loss allowance for ECLS are inherently subjective and
requires significant management judgement, hence, we identified
the recoverability of these receivables as a key audit matter.

Refer to notes 4(h), 26 and 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to the recoverability assessment of

loan receivables, and trade and other receivables included:

— Obtaining an understanding of how the loss allowances for
these receivables are estimated by the management and
assessing the management’'s process in determining the

estimated future cash flows of these receivables;

— ldentifying any of these receivables with delay in payments
during the year and evaluating the management’s assessment
of the recoverability of each of these receivables with
reference to the status of each of these individual borrowers

and the Group’s debt collection actions;

— Assessing the reasonableness of loss allowances for these
receivables with reference to the credit history, including
individual’s personal credit rating reports, delay in payments,
interest settlement records, subsequent settlements and

aging analysis of these receivables;

— Evaluating the historical accuracy of the management'’s
assessment of impairment for these receivables, on a sample
basis, by examining the actual write-offs, the reversals of
previously recorded allowances and new allowances recorded
in the current year in respect of these receivables at the end

of the previous financial year; and

—  Reviewing the appropriateness of ECL three-stage model and
loss allowance of ECLs on these receivables and challenging
management regarding their reasons for not considering a

lifetime ECL against any credit impaired balances.
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Valuation of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and through other comprehensive
income classified as level 2 and level 3 in the fair
value hierarchy

As at 31 December 2022, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and other comprehensive income amounted to
approximately HK$1,524.95 million, which represented 39.41% of
the Group’s net assets. Furthermore, as at 31 December 2022,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and other
comprehensive income classified as Level 2 and 3 fair value
amounting to approximately HK$842.01 million and HK$13.13 million
respectively.

For valuation, management engaged valuation specialist to
apply valuation techniques to determine the fair values of the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and other
comprehensive income that are not quoted in active markets.
These valuation techniques, in particular those that included
significant unobservable inputs, involved subjective judgements
and assumptions. The sensitivity of the assumptions used may
have material impact on the valuation of these financial assets.

Refer to notes 4(h), 23, 24, 25, and 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of financial assets
included:

— Obtaining and examining the terms of the financial assets and
relevant agreements in relation to the financial assets;

—  Evaluating the valuation specialist’s competence, capabilities
and objectivity;,

— Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
and assumptions adopted by the valuation specialist and
management to estimate the fair value of financial assets;

— Challenging the reasonableness of key parameters used
based on our knowledge and understanding of the financial
assets; and

— Engaging our internal valuation specialist to assist us in
evaluating and assessing the appropriateness of the key
assumptions used in the valuation.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lee Ka Leung, Daniel

Practising Certificate Number P01220

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE— T+ A=t+—HItFE

Turnover

Operating income

Other income

Exchange (loss)/gain, net

Cost of inventories recognised as
expenses

Commission and brokerage expenses

Employee benefits expenses

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Loss on disposal/written-off of
property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment

Reversal/(provision) of impairment
loss on financial assets for
expected credit loss

Write-off of amounts due from
non-controlling interests (“NCI”)
shareholders in a subsidiary

Write-off of trade and other
receivables

Loss on disposal of interests in a
subsidiary

Net fair value loss on financial
instruments

Impairment loss on goodwill

Impairment loss on intangible assets

Impairment loss on interests in
associates

Other operating expenses

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Loss before taxation
Income tax credit/(expense)

Loss for the year
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36

18

19

21

10
21

10
13

4,444,101 4,012,509
51,925 604,426
39,122 10,984

(537) 3,720
(63,379) (172,056)
(99,884) (194,818)
(59,460) (72,740)

(4,878) (11,212)
(12,872) (14,562)
(7,586) (10,460)
(13) (10,022)
(19,885) (77,520)
19,612 (205,524)
(468) -
(941) =

- (4,644)
(54,670) (210,435)
(38,454) -
(15,474) (7,820)
(152,094) (194,508)
(46,582) (118,771)
(1,363) (5,811)
12,056 (44,621)
(455,825) (736,394)
35,211 )
(420,614) (736,396)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1t—HIFE

2022

Notes HK$000
Kt THET

Other comprehensive income: HibZ2mEUA :

Items that will be reclassified A HE TR 1Rz o EH
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation — 3E4MNf B A B E HY

of foreign subsidiaries & 5 =58 (9,484) (9,347)
Share of other comprehensive FE(L — A & A R A
income of an associate Z2HEBA 21 (17,884) 1,672
Items that will not be reclassified to BT & E#H P Z Bz HH
profit or 10ss
Changes in fair value of defined AERFAFENRARBEFA
benefit scheme at fair value EmEmKAZ
through other comprehensive NI
income 4,382 2,286
Changes in fair value of equity #mTHRARERA
instruments at fair value through EmezmAz
other comprehensive income AR 24 (100,967) (83,908)
Other comprehensive income for F£RHEMEEKA
the year (123,953) (89,297)
Total comprehensive income for FR2EWAHLEE
the year (544,567) (825,693)
Loss attributable to: FE(LEE
Equity holders of the Company RARERFEA (414,972) (733,623)
Non-controlling interests PR = 20 (5,642) (2,773)
Loss for the year FNEE (420,614) (736,396)
Total comprehensive income FEfE 2 E WA
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company KARIERFEA (538,555) (822,373)
Non-controlling interests I = 20 (6,012) (3,320)
Total comprehensive income for FREZHEW A EEE
the year (544,567) (825,693)
Loss per share BREE
Basic and diluted AR REE 15 HK(0.94) cent  HK(1.65) cent
(0.94)% AL (1.65)% 1L
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ma MBI R

AS At 31 December 2022
R=ZT=—_F+=-A=+—H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Interests in associates

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Loan receivables

Other receivables

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Loan receivables

Trade and other receivables

Net defined benefit assets

Fixed bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

FRBEE

YR - BB MR

EREEE

kS

BVEE

REE RN AR

BAREAESZ
MBEE

BAnEAARBLEZEKAZ

MBEE
FEM &K
Hfth & Yk TR
EXLERBEE

if

nBEE

=

3t

¥
Dy

BRAREFABREZ
M EE

PTESRBIA

FE U B 3R

B 5 & H A fE W 5k IE
REBMEEFHE
RITE TR
wITEHREE S
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16
17
18
19
21

23

24
26
27
32

22

23
25
26
27
35
28
28

2022

HK$'000
TERT

2021

—_ T —%F
HK$'000
FBT

182,270 204,170
13,683 14,201
18,476 56,930
58,125 82,015

157,477 315,399
29,289 138,208

842,008 942,975

106,875 =

9,639 10,028
22,862 3,684
1,440,704 1,767,610
8,197 8,962

615,264 788,745
38,385 22,295
73,307 173,174

289,700 308,511

1,884 =
1,107,902 551,457
642,477 1,185,994
2,777,116 3,039,138




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE PRI R

As At 31 December 2022
RZZT==—F+=-A=+—H

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings
Lease liabilities

Net defined benefit obligations
Tax payables

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

RBAE

B 5 I EAD R IR

BMAE
At RMER
HERE
REBNEDLFER
e IR

BRBEE

REERRBRE
FRBRME
HERE

EHAE
EXERBRE

BEE

29
30
31
17
35

17
29
32

2022 2021
—ZE_-__ —FE - —4F

- =

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET

201,525 270,729
18,400 18,357
76,030 —

4,056 12,288

= 2,345

10,650 10,302
310,661 314,021
2,466,455 2,725,117
3,907,159 4,492,727
9,546 3,649
17,735 47,967
10,269 26,935
37,550 78,551
3,869,609 4,414,176
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
E MR R

AS At 31 December 2022
R=ZT=—_F+=-A=+—H

2022 2021
—=-= - —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Capital and reserves ERK#E
Share capital A& A 33 6,142,962 6,142,962
Reserves s 34 (2,316,730) (1,778,175)

Equity attributable to equity holders AR al#EZFEHA A

of the Company JE(h #E 2 3,826,232 4,364,787
Non-controlling interests FEIE R = 20 43,377 49,389
TOTAL EQUITY mEs 3,869,609 4,414,176

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 @HmEE&@N T -=F=F 1+ /\ B & LEE

March 2023 and signed on its behalf by g WHTIIRKES
Han Ruixia Zhang Zhenyi
BIFE RiIkR=E
Director Director
o o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
2T —Ft+t-A=t—HItEE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RAAREREEARL
Reserves
ffE
Foreign
currency Non-

Share translation ] Other  Accumulated Total controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve losses reserves Sub-total interests
BAREHA
S Efi2E
e EXGE LON: 11 RfbGfE 2ithR RELE Nt FRRER
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin T Tz TER TEn Tz Tz TR

At 1 January 2022 R-B--§-f-B 6,142,962 (67,924) 368,127 2,095 (2080473  (1778175) 4,364,787 49,389 4414176

Loss for the year ENER - - - - (49T (49T (44972) (564)  (420,614)

Other comprehensive income EREMZEUA
for the year

Items that wil b recassified RRBEFAEZRRIEE
Subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of  SESNHBA F A E

foreign subsiciaries B8 - (9,114) - - - (9,114) (9,114) (370 (9.484)
Share of otfier comprefiensive income. A5 —EE4ATH
of an assacete EHRERA - (178 = = - (s (188 - (e

[tems that will not be reclassified ARBTEENIEZ
subsequently to proft or loss EnlER
Changes in fai value of defined benefit  RERRIFHEIRA A B A
scheme at farvalue through other -~ A& 2ERA (B2 (E
comprefensive income (‘FVOCI) SAEMRERAL

ILAEEY - - 4,382 - - 4,382 4,382 - 4,382
Changes in fair valug of equity BETARMEFALR
instruments at FVOCI FERAZAAER = = (100,967) - = (100,967) (100,967) - (100,967)

Total other comprehensive income  EREH2EKALE
for the year = (26,998) (96,585) = - (123,583) (123,583) (370) (123,953)

Total comprehensive income ER2ERAEE

for the year - (26,998) (96,585) - (414,972) (538,555) (538,555) (6,012) (544,567)
Transactions with HERKEARS

equity holders
Disposal of interests in LEMBRAER

subsidries with loss of cortrol (£m8)E) = = = (2,095) 2,09 - - - -
Total transactions with AERBEARREE

equity holders = = = (2,095) 2,095 - - - -
At 31 December 2022 R-B--%+-B=1-AH 6,142,962 (94,922) 271,542 - (2,493,350)  (2,316,730) 3,826,232 43317 3,869,609
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REERREX

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_ £+ HA=+—HItFE

Share
capital

B
HK$ 000
Titn

Foreign
currency

translation

[eserve

HK$ OOO
AL

of the Company

Other
resenve

Afpfit

HK$ 000

Accumulated
osses

E 2
HK$ 000
THm

Total
TESeNVes

HK$'000
TEn

Sub-total

it
HKS 000
ThT

Non-
controlling
EENS

HK$ 000
Titn

@it
HK$ 000
TH1

At 1 January 2021 W-8--%-5-8 6,142,962 (60,79) 449,749 6,19 (1,348,545) (953,3%) 5,189,564 211318 5,400,882
Loss for the year EhEE - - - = 7363 733623 73362 L) (736,3%)
Other comprehensive income EREMZEUA
for the year
Items that wil be reclassified RRBERIEZEREE
Subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of  SEAMHB AT EER
foreign subsidiaries BEHER = (8,800) = - = (8,800) (8,800 (547) 9,347)
Share of other comprehiensive income 55—~ EBES A A8
of an associate E2ERA - 1672 - - - 1672 1672 - 1672
Items that will not be reclassified ERETEENEE
subsequently to profit or loss EnlEE
Changes in fair value of defined benefit  REBFIEEIEA A B3 A
scheme at farvalue through other -~ AB2ERA (R4 (E
comprefensive income (‘FVOCI) SAEBRERAL
IRAEEY = = 2,286 S S 2286 2,286 = 2286
Changes in fair valug of equity BETARMAEHALR
instruments at FVOCI 2ERAZ AR EES - o (83908) - = (83,908) (83908) - (83908)
Total other comprehensive income  £REH2EKALE
for the year S 7128) (81,622) - - (88,750 (88,750) (547) (89,.297)
Total comprehensive income ER2EKALE
for the year - (1128) (81,622) - (733623) (822373 (822373 (3320) (825,693)
Transactions with HERKEARS
equity holders
Deemed disposal of interests in BlEHENBLRES
subsidiaries with loss of control (kEfRHE) 20) = S = (4099) 409 - - (149,497) (149,497)
Acquisttion of additional interestina W -HKBARZBIMES
subsiciary without change of control (5| TEEE) 200) S S S = (2404) (2404) (2.404) (912 (11.516)
Total transactions with HERKAAR LR
equity holders S S = 4,09 1,69 (2,404) (2404 (158,609) (161,013)
At 31 December 2021 W-8--%+-f=1- 6,142,962 (67,.924) 368,127 2,0% (2,080473) (1,778175) 4,364,787 49389 4414176
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REREREXR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
E-T—F+_A=1T—RHIFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before taxation

Exchange loss/(gain), net
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Amortisation of intangible assets
Loss on disposal/written-off of
property, plant and equipment
(Reversal)/provision of impairment
loss on financial assets for
expected credit loss

Loss on disposal of interest in a
subsidiary

Acquisition of additional interest in
a subsidiary without change of
control
Write-off of amounts due from NC
shareholders in a subsidiary
Write-off of trade and other
receivables

Net fair value loss on financial
instruments

Impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment
Impairment loss on goodwil
Impairment loss on intangible assets
Impairment loss on interests in
associates

Interest income (other than from
loan receivables)

Finance costs

Share of results of associates
Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Provision of pension costs

RERK
B35 Al &S 18
R (W)
WE - BEREETE

EREEERE
BIEE#E
HEMEWE  BER
w2 EE
MBEERTEREEEEN
BEEE (BE) B

45— R 2 2
A

B — B 2 7 2 50
it (2L 2 H)

85 e U — FET Y B X )
FEFE R A 2 R IR
MSHE 5 N H B IR

TRTAZAAEEERFE
WE - BEMREREER

BEREEE
BIVEERERR

R 2R
BIEE R

B KA

(TERERE BKRE)
BERA

i ahck NI S
BRRER ANEz 2 I
BEZBREBA

BRI AR

Notes

Kt

16
17
19

16

36

20(b)

16
18
19
21

10
21

35

2022

HK$'000
FTERx

(455,825)
537
4,878
12,872

7,586

13

(19.612)

468
941
54,670
19,885
38,454
15,474
152,094
(25,924)

1,363
(12,056)

(13,532)
839

(736,394)
(3,720)

11,212
14,562
10,460

10,022

205,524

4,644

(11,516)

210,435

77,520

7,820
194,508
(5,923)

5,811
44,621

(42,312)
(1,356)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
2B+ A=t+—HItFE

2022
Notes HK$'000
i3 FET
Changes in working capital: EEECEE
Inventories 7E 166 1,575
Financial assets at fair value BAREABRZZ
through profit or loss PEE 227,423 (124,041)
Financial assets at amortised cost R EN AT E 275
BE - 148,941
Derivative financial instruments MESBMI A (16,090) (22,288)
Loan receivables EWRE R 13,408 255,179
Trade and other receivables 85 kE A EWIKIE 16,801 (13,504)
Trade and other payables and H 5 hEAMBERNKIBENR
long-term liabilities RHAE (95,609) (815,937)
Reverse repurchase and = =) [E] 88 J% (2] B 15 7
repurchase agreements - 21,119)
Fixed bank deposits R1TE HifF X (556,443) 627,111
Contract liabilities A8 E 43 2,301
Contribution paid to defined ENRERMEARE
benefit pension plans STEIfH 35 (546) (1,950)
Cash (used in)/generated from e (FrA) /i8R &
operations (627,722) 32,186
Tax paid BIHIE (23) (334)
Interest received (other than from B U F 8
loan receivables) (TBRERKER) 21,391 6,574

Net cash (used in)/generated KK (A) e
from operating activities HEFEE (606,354) 38,426

122 Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HmERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=1t—HIFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXEK
Purchase of property, BEWE BB &R

plant and equipment 16 (5,954) (433)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME - BELREMS

plant and equipment KB 9 3,627
Purchase of intangible assets BEEVEE 19 (45) (211)
Dividend received from EWEETARKRS

financial instrument 13,532 45,413
Dividends received from associates B UgH & N 7 IS 21 = 6,431
Net cash inflow from disposal HE—HEMRBAFMIEAS

of a subsidiary MAFEE 36 - 268,000
Net cash generated from RETBHFE

investing activities ReFE 7,542 322,827
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMETE 38(b)
New bank loans and other loans FIRIRITERREMER

raised 31 73,952 -
Interest paid EFE 10 (474) (4,030)
Capital element of lease rentals paid B HEEHRESHERIH 17 (12,455) (15,881)
Interest element of lease rentals paid B EB S MHF B 25 17 (889) (1,781)

Net cash generated from/(used B EEEE,(FiA)
in) financing activities REFE 60,134 (21,692)

Net (decrease)/increase incash BEéRELSZEYZ
and cash equivalents CRL2) /8 (538,678) 339,561

cash and cash equivalents at wEHIZEER
the beginning of the reporting BR&%EY

period 38(a) 1,185,994 848,130
Effect of exchange rate changes EZX#EH & (4,839) (1,697)
Cash and cash equivalents HEARZEER

at the end of the reporting HEEEY  BRT

period, represented by bank EHRERE

balances and cash 38(a) 642,477 1,185,994
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—E-_—Ft+-A=t+—HIFE

1. GENERAL
Mason Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
the principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information of the annual report for year
2022. The principal activities of the Group and its subsidiaries
are described in notes 9 and 20 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(a) Adoption of amended HKFRSs
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
has issued a number of amended HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual
HKFRS 3 Framework

Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment:
HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of
HKAS 37 fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1,
to HKFRSs HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16 and
2018-2020 Cycle HKAS 41

None of these amended HKFRSs has a material impact
on the Group's results and financial position for the
current or prior periods. The Group has not early applied
any new or amended HKFRSs that is not yet effective
for the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRHE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE—T - —F+-A=+—HILFE
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)
(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group'’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention
is to apply these changes on the date they become
effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the
"2020 Amendments”)**
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)®
Amendments to HKAS Disclosure of Accounting Policies
1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

1

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

RMBEUMBREERN (HEME
WEEA D @
(b) CEBEMEERERFETH

RETEBUBREZER
I AT B AN S BT R SRR A
ATRAE SR BB SRS BB AR
MR I R A2 BN AR A S B T 4R
W AEERBAERKSER LR
A AR S 2T -

BEAREMBmE REEEABER
HRAE105 FHEEREZ
EEEG:T HEEHSIZE
#ERIF28H &

—_F ——
F) 2B R

EAG LN BEBIERRND

F1R s SFERBH (=T

ZTFERTA)

EAGER MERENIERE
Fimzigsl aE(=ZF==

FIEFTAL)?

EEGTEN SHBRERE
FIRREE
B 7% 3R & %

AEBLS
B2 2B ET
¥iN

BEEGEN gt EE'

FE8 ZNEE]
ZiN

EAG LR BRE-—XFGAES
F12 e EBEERAGHEES
HE MEER T

S

H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-T - —F+-_A=1t—RHILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (Continued)
(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024.

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but
available for adoption.

¢ As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the
effective date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred
to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
In addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments
and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011), Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture

The amendments address an inconsistency between
the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in
dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture.

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RWERBUKRE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (Continued) WEER]) &)
(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been (b) BEEMERERERVHET X

ZR (TERME

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification

RIEFTEBYHBREER (2
BRETHENEIR BRI

of liabilities as current or non-current (the EEIBEAREBHFERE (=
2020 Amendments”) and Non-current “EEEIAR]) RMERZNFE

Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)

RBEE(=22F6B5%)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements on —ECEFBIARETETAREB
determining if a liability is current or non-current, in mEIIERE LEEETERBES
particular the determination over whether an entity has EREHE ﬂa%%%é& #E%ﬁﬂﬁﬁm

the right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least
12 months after the reporting period. Classification of
a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity
will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability.
The 2020 Amendments also clarify the situations that
are considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022,
the HKICPA issued the 2022 Amendments to further
clarify that, among covenants of a liability arising from
a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity
must comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-current.
In addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional
disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities arising
from loan arrangements as non-current when it has
a right to defer settlement of those liabilities that are
subject to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months after the reporting period.

RAZRE - BEZHOBEITRERR
Kﬂ%fﬂfﬁ?ﬁﬂ/ﬁ%% %E’Jﬁéﬁ" COSE]
T E — T BFEIRTTEE
WRRBEEEBEZERL - NZT -
F-BHES ;#Efﬁ“/\?‘ﬁ‘ﬁff_ —tc S
BRI E— ﬁxﬂ/a‘ R BEE
EREZRNTD %‘&35 & B
HEYZH\JZ\/EL#Z;@Z’MLE“ Z8
B2 RESKIEREI DL - o =F
T OF BRI ABRREREIMEE - B
BRARBEBEREENMEHE
128 A NAETRERHE 2 AER L
ELBERBZSEEDERIER
B2 EH -

0

EREBEZERERAT / 2022FERE

127



128

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The amendments require entities to disclose their
material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how
to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of
Accounting Estimates

The amendments clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—_ZE-_—Ft+-A=t—HI=FE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RWERUKREERN(HBHK
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (Continued) WEER]) &)
(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been (b) SEAMEEREROIHETN

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax
related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences, such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities
are required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided
that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred
tax liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of
the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits or other component
of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition,
the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning
obligations. Earlier application is permitted.

These new standard and amendments described above
are either currently not relevant to the Group or are not
expected to have material impact on the Group in the
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

8=
3.

T HF+-RA=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASS") and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRS")
and the provisions of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
which concern the preparation of financial statements.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on
the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments, which are measured at
fair values as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries. The financial statements of its subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting year as that of the
Company using consistent accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE I SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—Z-——F+-A=t+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intra-group balances, transactions, incomes and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

NCI are presented, separately from equity holders
of the Company, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and within equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The NCIs
in the acquiree, that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
the acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, are
measured initially either at fair value or at the present
ownership instruments’ proportionate share in the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. This choice of measurement basis is made on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.

Allocation of total comprehensive income
Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the equity
holders of the Company and to the NCIs. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to the equity
holders of the Company and the non-controlling interest
even if this results in the non-controlling interest having
a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the equity holders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE
4,

T HF+-RA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in ownership interest (Continued)
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest determined at the date when control is lost and
(ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests at the date when control
is lost. The amount previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the disposed
subsidiary are accounted for on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Any investment retained
in the former subsidiary and any amount owed by or to
the former subsidiary are accounted for as a financial
asset, associate, joint venture or others as appropriate
from the date when control is lost.

Business combination

The Group accounts for business combinations using
the acquisition method when the acquired set of
activities and assets meets the definition of a business
and control is transferred to the Group. In determining
whether a particular set of activities and assets is a
business, the Group assesses whether the set of assets
and activities acquired includes, at a minimum, an input
and substantive processes and whether the acquired
set has the ability to produce outputs.

The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—F+_A=1t—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FEESFEHE &)
(b) Business combination (continued) (b) ¥BE6E)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

o Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit

RUREE B A - U AT 8Bl & B M P
ARERERAEDAERR TR
BERSN :

s EEMREELBRENEESR
BHNLZHFEENEERERED

arrangements are recognised and measured in %IME%J@%.S,% 5t ‘iﬁ‘J%mffﬁﬁ
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS B REB G ERE19%

19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o Liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

o Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
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any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—

T —F+-fF=1+—HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Business combination (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liguidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or
a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE
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T —HF+-_A=1+—HItEE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Business combination (continued)

(c)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value (i.e.
the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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T —F+-fF=1+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether
it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position
which is presented within these notes, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The carrying amount of the
investments is reduced to its recoverable amount on
an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in associates are accounted
for under the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the investee’s
net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses
when the Group's share of losses of the investee equals
or exceeds the carrying amount of its interest in the
investee, which includes any long term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the investee.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate is
measured as the excess of the cost of investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquired associate. Such
goodwill is included in interests in associates. On the
other hand, any excess of the Group’s share of its net
fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of investment is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as an income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE— T —F+-A=t+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives as set out
below from the date on which they are available for use
and after taking into account their estimated residual
values, using the straight-line method. Where parts of
an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis and depreciated separately:

Over the lease
terms or 5 years

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years
Computer and office equipment 2-10 years
Motor vehicles and yacht 4-10 years
Freehold land Indefinite
Building 50 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised. Freehold land
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
No depreciation is provided for freehold land.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—F+_A=1t—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at the
date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at costs less
any accumulated impairment losses. Expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives as follows:

Brand names
Licenses and trading lights

10 years — indefinite
7 years — indefinite

Trademarks 10 years
Customer relationships 5-10 years
Computer software and systems 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Any conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset
is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether
events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they
do not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy
for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as
set out above. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
life are tested for impairment at least annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
T —F+—A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments

BE—
4,

)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sale
of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for
managing the as set and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI"): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest,
are measured at fair value through OCI. Debt
investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured
at fair value. Interest income calculated using the
effective interest rate method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or 1oss.

Fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"):
Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets
held for trading, financial assets designated upon
initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective of
the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria
for debt instruments to be classified at amortised
cost or at FVTOCI, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at FVTPL on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment's fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made
on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investments.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income and are not reclassified
to profit or loss. All other equity instruments are
classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
T —F+_A=t+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

@E
4.

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowance for ECLS on
trade receivables, financial assets measured at
amortised cost and debt investments measured
at FVOCI. The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12 months ECLS: these are
the ECLs that result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date: and
(2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

Loss allowance for ECLsS on trade receivables
arising from the segment of manufacture of infant
formula and nutritional products are based on
management’s estimated of the lifetime ECLs to
be incurred.

General approach is adopted for loss allowance
for ECLs on (i) loan receivables, (ii) accounts
receivable from clients arising from provision of
wealth and asset management services and (iii)
accounts receivable from third parties arising from
provision of securities and commodities brokerage
services. The ECLs are based on the 12-months
ECLs. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE— T —F+-A=t+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets

(Continued)

The ECL models applied by the Group is based
on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Financial assets at amortised cost that are subject
to impairment under the general approach
are classified within the following stages for

measurement of ECLS:

Stage 1:

Stage 2:

credit losses.

Stage 3:

impaired.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-months ECLS. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on

the lifetime ECLs.
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at the reporting date, the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial
recognition. The Group measure
the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to
12-month expected credit losses;

at the reporting date, the credit risk on
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition.
The Group measure the loss allowance
for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to its lifetime expected

at the reporting date, the financial
instrument’s default risk has increased
to a point that it is considered credit

4.

FESHBR®E)
TRMIA @)

(h)

(ii)

MBEEZREBR @)

7435 8 PR TE AL
B TS LA SR B 3B AT
ERARE  LREGARE
ORI R A IR 1T
B -

R ENM B EER
—RITABLERE ARAT
BHEEBRENTERRY S

i

BRI : RIEAMS 2T
H B 118 #ER AR
B 2B 3 KR 0 o
AEBENAHEERZE
BTAEREABRREE
ERENESBEFEBR
B

fEER2: RERH - 2WT
BB VR TER AR
BRI ARG o
AEBNABERZE
BTAEFRABRHRE
EEBRNESHAESR
B

FEER3: MBERH - ©RMIA
BMENRBREEME
BRARBREERERN
RE -

REMEREREEMS @ &
HEEBERDEM2EA RS

EE/E - A - MRLIZME

ERFRANBREEERETE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—F+_A=1t—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLS, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to action such as realising security (if
any is held); or the financial asset is more than 1
year past due.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due
status and credit risk ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE— T —F+-A=t+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or
being more than 90 days past due;

. the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

. it is probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

. the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or 10ss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account, except
for investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in “FVTOCI reserve (recycling)”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—F+_A=1t—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over
2 years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non-credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE— T —F+-A=t+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured
at fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may
be designated as a financial liability at FVTPL,
except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear
that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—F+_A=1t—HIFE

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL if the following criteria are
met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (i) the liabilities are part of a group of
financial liabilities which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (iii) the financial liability contains
an embedded derivative that would need to be
separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, FVTPL are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for the gains and losses
arising from the Group’s own credit risk which are
presented in other comprehensive income with
no subsequent reclassification to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income does not
include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables, interest-bearing
borrowings, certain preferred shares and the debt
element of convertible loan note issued by the
Group are subseqguently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period respectively. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected
life of the financial asset or liability respectively, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer of the contract to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder of
the contract for a loss the holder incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are initially measured at their fair values and, if
not measured at FVTPL, are carried at the higher
of (i) the amount of the loss allowance, being the
ECLs provision, measured in accordance with
principles of the accounting policy set out 4(h)(ii)
and (i) the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE—_ZE-_—Ft+-A=t—HI=FE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. ETE@HEE @)
(h) Financial instruments (continued) (hy €I HE#®)
(vii) Derecognition (vii) RIEFERR

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability
or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHE—

E-—F+-A=1+—HItEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

()

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured
at fair value at the date derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently measured at their fair value
at the end of reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless
the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which case the timing of the recognition
in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship. Fair values are obtained from quoted
market prices in active market or are determined using
valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow
model and options pricing model as appropriate.

Derivative embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivative when their
characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are
not measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE
4.

TR —E4+ A=+ —HIFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the goods or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE— T —F+-A=t+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Revenue recognition (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception./
Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For contracts
where the period between the payment and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

Revenue of the Group is measured on the following
basis:

o Net income from trading of securities and options
and commodities contracts are recognised on
the transaction date when the relevant sale and
purchase contract is entered into.

° Underwriting commission is recognised upon
allotment and when the obligation under the
underwriting or sub-underwriting agreement has
expired. Placing commission is recognised on the
contractual completion of trades.

o Commission income from the provision of
services of insurance advisory and investment
advisory is recognised on the completion of
the underlying transactions and the control of
services is transferred to customers. A receivable
is recognised by the Group when the services are
delivered to the customers as this represents the
point in time at which the right to consideration
becomes unconditional, as only the passage of
time is required before payment is due.

o Commission income from the provision of
services of account and custody management
is recognised when services are provided in
accordance with the contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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4.

===

=

FTA=—ALEFRE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Revenue recognition (continued)

Financial advisory fee income is recognised when
the relevant services are provided to the customers

Margin facility fee income is recognised when
services are rendered

Income from manufacture and sales of infant
formula and nutritional products are recognised
when the control of the products has transferred,
i.e. the risk of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred, and the group has objective evidence
that all criteria for customer acceptance of the
products have been satisfied. This is usually taken
as the point of time when the goods are delivered
and the customers have accepted the goods.

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

Net income from the sale of investments at FVTPL
is recognised on the transaction date when the
relevant sale and purchase contract is entered
into.

Interest income from financial assets is accrued
on a time basis on the principal outstanding at the
applicable effective interest rate.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group's right to receive the dividend
payment have been established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—

4.

T —F+-fF=1+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

(m)

Contract Liabilities
A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

Foreign currencies translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in the currency of
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the Company's
functional currency, and rounded to the nearest
thousands unless otherwise stated.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at period-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are recognised in profit or
loss except for those arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases,
the gains or losses are also recognised directly in
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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4.

T —F+-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Foreign currencies translation (continued)
The results and financial position of all the group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented and, where applicable,
goodwill and fair value adjustments on the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising
on an acquisition of a foreign operation which
are to be treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation, are translated at the closing
rate at the end of the reporting period.

o Income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rate.

o All resulting exchange differences arising from
the above translation and exchange differences
arising from a monetary item that forms part of
the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation
are recognised as a separate component of
equity.

o On the disposal of a foreign operation, which
includes a disposal of the Group's entire interest
in a foreign operation, a disposal involving the loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest
is no longer equity-accounted for, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
the foreign operation that is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
separate component of equity is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss when the gain or loss on
disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
E-—F+-A=1+—HItEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Foreign currencies translation (continued)

BE—
4,

(n)

o On the partial disposal of the Group’s interest
in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation
which does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity
is re-attributed to the non-controlling interests in
that foreign operation and is not reclassified to
profit or loss.

o On all other partial disposals, which includes
partial disposal of associates or joint ventures
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control, the proportionate share
of the cumulative amount of exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, other costs that
have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition, is calculated using the
weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period of the write-down or 10ss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, and investments
in subsidiaries and associates may be impaired or
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based
on the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In addition, the Group tests its intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets that are not yet available for use for impairment
by estimating their recoverable amount on an annual
basis and whenever there is an indication that those
assets may be impaired. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
smallest group of assets that generates cash flows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is
recognised as income in profit or loss immediately.

The accounting policy for recognition and reversal of the
impairment loss for goodwill is stated in the accounting
policy for goodwill in the earlier part of this note.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment
income on the temporary investment of the specific
borrowings, that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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B —E4+— A=+ —HItFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Leasing

The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting
policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or
(i) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value.
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets and
leases for which at the commencement date have a
lease term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (i) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use under HKAS 16 and are
carried at cost. Other than the above right-of-use assets,
the Group also has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class of
asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings which
is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements
are carried at depreciated cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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TR —E4+ A=+ —HIFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Leasing (continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments; (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable; (ii) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed
lease payments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Leasing (continuead)

Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of
any lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the
probability of a lessee extension or termination option
being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the
lease liability to reflect the payments to make over the
revised term, which are discounted using a revised
discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities is
similarly revised when the variable element of future
lease payments dependent on a rate or index is revised,
except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both
cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying
value of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying
amount being amortised over the remaining (revised)
lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms
of a lease with the lessor, if the renegotiation results
in one or more additional assets being leased for an
amount commensurate with the standalone price for
the additional rights-of-use obtained, the modification
is accounted for as a separate lease, in all other cases,
where the renegotiated increases the scope of the
lease (whether that is an extension to the lease term, or
one or more additional assets being leased), the lease
liability is remeasured using the discount rate applicable
on the modification date, with the right-of-use asset
being adjusted by the same amount.

The Group as a lessor

Rental income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—F+_A=1t—HIFE

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement scheme
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the period in which the associated services are
rendered by employees.

Defined contribution scheme

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independent administered fund.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the
employees of the Group's entities established in the
PRC are required to participate in defined contribution
retirement plans organised by local governments.
Contributions to those plans are expensed as incurred
and other than these monthly contributions, the Group
has no further obligation for the payment of retirement
benefits to its employees.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
is the amounts of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods. The obligation is calculated using the
projected unit credit method and discounted to its
present value and after deducting the fair value of
any related assets, including those retirement scheme
benefit.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. ETE@HEE @)
(r) Employee benefits n EEEF
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a
defined contribution plan. Typically defined benefit
plans define an amount of pension benefit that an
employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent
on one or more factors such as age, years of service
and compensation.

The liability recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at financial reporting date less the
fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation
is calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected expected benefit payments. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using
interest rates of high quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will
be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating
to the terms of the related pension obligation. In
countries where there is no deep market in such bonds,
the market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit
plan, recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in employee benefit expense,
except where included in the cost of an asset, reflects
the increase in the defined benefit obligation results
from employee service in the current year, benefit
changes, curtailments and settlements. Past-service
costs are recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This
cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the
results for the period as adjusted for items that are non-
assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, any deferred tax arising from
initial recognition of goodwill, or other asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss is not
recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is recovered or the liability is settled,
based on the tax rates and the tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, tax
losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Related parties

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(@)

(i)

(if)

(iif)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the holding
company of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(iif)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
holding company, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third-party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—Z-_—F+-A=

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(t) Related parties (continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a holding company of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
holding company of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity and include:

(@)

that person’s child and spouse or domestic
partner,

child of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

dependants of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Segment reporting

(v)

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
to the Group’s chief operating decision makers for the
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of services, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Offsetting of financial instruments

(x)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets (including property, plant
and equipment) are recognised as deferred income in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable and are recognised as other income, rather
than reducing the related expense.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market
rate of interest is treated as a government grant,
measured as the difference between proceeds received
and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing market
interest rates.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group's accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis
and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also
affects future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The management determines the estimated useful lives
of the Group's property, plant and equipment based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of the relevant assets of similar nature and functions.
The estimated useful lives could be different as a result
of technical innovations which could affect the related
depreciation charges included in profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

BE
5.
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(b)

(c)

Intangible assets and amortisation

The management determines the estimated useful lives
and related amortisation for the Group’s intangible
assets. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite, based on the
expected usage and technical obsolescence from the
changes in the market demands or services output
from the assets. Intangible assets are not amortised
when their useful lives are assessed to be indefinite.
The conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support
the indefinite useful life assessment. The Group may
need to amortise intangible assets in future periods
or recognise impairment losses on intangible assets if
events and circumstances indicate that the useful life
is not indefinite. Intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised over the expected useful economic lives
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible assets may be impaired.

Impairment of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives

Determining whether intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives of the Group are impaired
requires an estimation of recoverable amount of the
cash-generating units to which intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives have been allocated, which is the
higher of the related fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. The calculations require the management
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the recoverable amounts.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the CGU to which the goodwill
is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected cash flows
from the CGU and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. Details of the estimates used to calculate
the recoverable amount are given in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of non-current assets, excluding
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
and goodwill

Non-current assets excluding intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and goodwill are carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation/amortisation, where
appropriate, and impairment losses. These carrying
amounts are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the non-current
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In estimating the recoverable amounts of the
non-current assets, various assumptions, including
future cash flows to be associated with the non-current
assets and discount rates, are made. If future events do
not correspond to such assumptions, the recoverable
amounts will need to be revised, and this may have an
impact on the Group's results of operations or financial
position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE
5.

-z

T+ -—A=+—RHIFE
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

()

(8

Allowance for inventories

The Group’s management reviews the condition of
inventories at the end of each reporting period, and
makes allowance for inventories that are identified
as obsolete, slow-moving or no longer recoverable or
suitable for use in production. The Group carries out
the inventory review on a product-by-product basis
and makes allowance by reference to the latest market
prices and current market conditions.

Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS
9 across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral
values when determining impairment losses and the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in
which can result in different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk for
exposures since initial recognition by comparing the
risk of default occurring over the expected life between
the reporting date and the date of initial recognition.
The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative
and qualitative information and also, forward-looking
analysis.

5.

EREFHER R A @)

HEt TR E RN EERIF (@)

®

®

FERE
AEEZEEENSRERRRSTF
BI5R - sAEERABE  BHR AR
B NES ARNEENTFEEG
B ARELERERE —RAF
B WRETHIHERRRITHRER
B o

MBEERE
RIBBEABMBREENESRL A
BRI EEETRERIETEAE
HHET - R B E TR RUE B IR
ARKAERERERREEZSHE
REERBARFHEERR SR
EEM - ZFHAREZBEREKES
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B2 Bt -

REBREEH AEEMBBHRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE
5.

T —F+_A=t+—HIEFE
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
(h) Fair value measurement of financial

instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position cannot be derived from active
markets, their fair values are determined using
valuation technigues including the use of comparable
recent arm’s length transactions and other valuation
techniques commonly used by other market
participants. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required
in establishing fair values. The judgements include
considerations of inputs such as implied equity value,
volatility and risk-free rate. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments.

TURNOVER

Turnover from operations represents the aggregation of
gross sales proceeds from trading of securities investments,
provision of financing services, provision of wealth and asset
management, financial brokerage and related services,
manufacture of infant formula and nutritional products, and
investment holding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

7.

OPERATING INCOME 7. KEWA
Operating income recognised from the principal activities FRAEEEBEH (BEEEEHFKE
of the Group during the year including trading of securities RUEBERY RUEMEREEERE £

investments, provision of financing services, provision of
wealth and asset management, financial brokerage and
related services, manufacture of infant formula and nutritional
products, and investment holding is as follows:

BB REERE  RERHNRETHH
NEBEMARIREZER) FiER 82K
A

Brokerage commission income from: grAaslhAKSE :
— securities dealing —B5EE
— insurance — fREg
— underwriting and placing — B REER2KA

commission income

Commission income from providing REFHENA RERTETEN

advisory, account and custody BelA
management
Margin facility and loan facility handling FFESMEHRER@BEFEERA
fee income
Dividend income from financial assets at AR BT ABRZZHEEEZ
FVTPL A& BT A
Interest income from: FEWAKE :
— margin financing —FREAE
— |oan receivables from third parties ~ — BWE=FER
Manufacture of infant formula and SUEL ) BRI &
nutritional products EEEMR

HERAAEFABRRZWG
BE(BR) R e

(Loss)/gain from the sale of financial
assets at FVTPL, net*

s Represented the proceeds from the sale of financial assets at *
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") of HK$4,183,948,000
(2021: HK$3,449,923,000) less relevant costs and carrying
value of the financial assets sold of HK$4,392,175,000 (2021:
HK$3,408,083,000).

7.248 36,421
104,965 218,490
21 25
26,122 31,436
3,360 3,041
13,532 42,312
5,338 12,245
26,855 35,743
72,711 182,873
260,152 562,586
(208,227) 41,840
51,925 604,426

BHERARBFTABEZZHBE
E(RARBEFABZE] FAMEBRE
4,183,948,000 7L (= F = — F :
3,449,923,0007 7T) RARBAR AN R B B
758 FE MY BRI 184,392,175,00078 7T (=
T~ —4F : 3408,083,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

8.

OTHER INCOME

Interest income from financial
institutions

Government subsidies BT 47 B
Rental income el A

Recovery of loan receivables written-off 4 [@l & i 84 & W & 3¢
Others Hth

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The directors of the Company have been identified as the
chief operating decision makers to evaluate the performance
of operating segments and to allocate resources to those
segments based on the Group’s internal reporting in respect
of these segments. The directors of the Company consider
trading of securities investments, provision of financing
services, provision of wealth and asset management,
financial brokerage and related services, provision of medical
consultation and laboratory services, franchisor and retail of
mother-infant-child products, manufacture of infant formula
and nutritional products, and investment holding are the
Group's major operating segments. Segment results represent
the profit earned or loss incurred by each segment.
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2021
—E-—4F

HK$’000
THET

HK$°000
TAET

25,924 5,924
1,765 199
2,223 2,968
5,481 -
3,729 1,893

39,122 10,984

7 RPER
ARBEFCHERTIBRLERRE &
RAEBEEEB D BORNTRHRLH &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE
9.

TR —E4+ A=+ —HIFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9.
Operating segments of the Group comprise the following:

Trading of securities investments

Provision of financing services

R E R

Provision of wealth and asset
management, financial
brokerage and related services

REMEREEEE -
BRI R AERARR TS

Provision of medical consultation
and laboratory services

REBEAARERERE

Franchisor and retail of
mother-infant-child products

BFraakTEdL8EEm

Manufacture of infant formula and :

nutritional products
BERNREA NN REEER
Investment holding

BB

2 EER (@)
AEE 2 ¥ 55D H R THEE -

Investments of shares, stocks, options and funds

&t IRE - HiERESIRE

Provision of loan financing services

RIS E RS

Provision of wealth and asset management, dealing in securities,
provision of securities, commodities brokerage services and
financial advisory services

RUEMEREEER #FHXH - BHEESH
7] om A 42 AR 75 1% B 75 e sl R 75

Provision of medical consultation and laboratory services relating to
assisted reproductive technology

R BB EERM BN ERLARERERS

Managing franchise and operating retail stores of mother-infant-child
products

ERFTEERKENREERNTENH

Development, manufacture and sale of infant milk formula products,
and supplement and organic nutritional products

M BERHERNZTRAIANNER  REZBNUREREEER

Holding investments for dividend and investment income and capital
appreciation, and provision of management services

RERRE  WEWRARERNEEMRERE - URREHEERSE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—_T - —F+_A=+—HILFE
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. HHFER
(@) Segment turnover (@) DEBEXERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover by AEBREEDFE D 2 EEBOI
operating segments: W

Provision of
wealth and
asset  Provision of  Franchisor
management, medical and  Manufacture
financial ~ consultation retail of of infant
Trading of  Provision of brokerage and mother-  formula and
securities financing ~ andrelated  laboratory infant-child  nutritional  Investment

investments services services services products products holding  Unallocated
RUHER

BEER: RUER  RYEER  RER4A

EH Rk SREL #HR  TEREE [y
BERE BERE REBER ERERH Em RERER REER Eh
HKS 000 HK$1000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 ) HKS'000 HKS 000 (S HKS'000
BT FEn TEL TEn BT FEn TEn B TER

For the year ended BzoEocf
31 December 2022 tZB=t+-ALFE
Segment tumover APELE

From contracts with customers & BB KR4 %8|
within the scope of HKFRS 15 S155 BEAEFAS

(Note 9(e)) (B3E9) - - 139,940 - - 1 1717 - 214,428
From other source AR 4,197,480 17,336 14,857 = = = - - 4209473
4,197,480 17,336 154,797 - - 72,711 1777 - 4,444101
For the year ended HzoE--f
31 December 2021 tZA=t-HLEE
Segment tumover APERE

From contracts with customers — RE & 81 B3R5 28]
within the scope o HKFRS 15 155 BEAREFAH

(Note 9(e) (Bf3E90) - - 316,446 - - 182873 51 = 199370
From other source R 3,465,150 21,957 2032 - - - - - 35131%9
3,465,150 21957 39478 - = 182873 51 - 4012509
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oEERE)
(b) Segment operating income and results (b) DEMREWAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s income by REEIRKEE DT E D 2 WA D TTE
operating segments: HEA

Provision
of wealth
and asset Provision
management,  of medical  Franchisor Manufacture
financial  consultation  and retail of of infant
Trading of  Provision of  brokerage and mother-  formula and
securities financing  andrelated laboratory infant-child  nutritional  Investment

investments services services services products products holding  Unallocated
RUEHER 2
BEER. Rt KHEER  BHAER
SHELR BRERAR  BESEE PR
BERZRE RUMERE RERE ERZRE ER ERER REZR FAR
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TERL Thz Tz TEn ThT Tz T

For the year ended BzoEocf
31 December 2022 TZRZt-ALEE
Segmentoperatingincome. AEALHA (194,696) 17,336 154,797 = = nm 177 = 51,925

(Loss)profitfor the year before KA FREHER

following items: (BR) /%7 : (257,135) 35,208 12,314 (171) (561) (11,392) 17,784 (36,645) (240,598)
Loss on disposaliwritenoff & /HiENE - BE

of property, plant and Rz EE

equipment - - - - = = = (13) (13)
Impaiment loss on property, 9% - BER&EEZ

plant and equipment HERE = = (19,885) = = = = = (19,885)
mpaiment losson goocwil ~ HERESE = = (38,454) = = = = = (38,454)
Impairment loss on intanglble ~ EFAEREFE

assets = = (98) = = (15,376) = = (15,474)
Impairment loss on interestsin -~ REAAFIERZ

associates HEER = - - (16,108)  (135,986) - - - (152,094)
Finance costs BERK (21,284) (8,728) (369) = = (252) = 29,270 (1,363)
Share of results of assoclates  AEBEAFEE = - - 15,074 (3,018) - - - 12,056
(Loss)/profit before taxation BT (B8 /7 (278,419) 26,480 (46,492) (1,205 (139,565) (27,020) 17,784 (7,388)  (455,825)
Income tax credit/expense)  BFERES/ () 31,544 - (2512) - - 6,179 - - 35,211
Segment results Pk (246,875) 26,480 (49,004) (1,205) (139,565) (20,841) 17,784 (7,388) (420,614)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-T - —F+-_A=1t—RHILFE
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oEERE)
(b) Segment operating income and results (b) DHBEWMAREE )
(Continued)

Provision of
wealth and asset Provision
management, of medical Franchisor - Manufacture of
Trading of Provision financial ~ consultation  and retail of  infant formula
securities  offinancing ~ brokerageand  and laboratory  mother-infant-  and nutritional Investment
investments services ] services  child proaucts oducts holding ~ Unallocated

AR
HK$ 000
Thx

For the year ended BEoB--%
31 December 2021 TZR=t-ALEE
Segment operating income AHEERA 57,067 2,957 339,478 - - 182873 51 - 604,426

(Loss)/proft for the year before Kzt A T BBHER

following items: (BR) /&7 1,623 5269 (10,015) (595) (189,008) (15,723) (91,858) (17,89) (391,448)
Gain/(loss) on isposal/ LE/HEnE BRE

written-off of property, EL-rL Ve

plant and equipment (B#) = = 1 = = @) 9.998) 12 (10022)
Impairment loss on property, 1% - BRRREZ

plant and equipment HEER = = (7750 = = = = = (77,520
Impairmentloss on intangble  EFAERESE

assets = = = = = (7.820) - - (7.820)
Impairment loss on interests in -~ NEE A FEE

associates HEER > = = (17201 (177,307) = = = (194,508)
Finance costs RERK (22,405) (10,206) (3870) - - (331 49 30,502 (5.811)
Share of resuits of associates  HEBEAFEE = S S (783 (43878) S S = (44621)

(94,028) 4937) (91,404 (18,539) 410,193 (23915) (101,353) 12619 (731,750

Loss on disposal of inerestsin -~ K E-FMBATES

asubsidiary BB - = - (4644) - = = - (4644)
(Loss)/profit before taxation B (B8) /7 (94,028) 4937) (91,40) (23183) 410,193 (23915) (101,353) 12619 (736,394)
Income tax credit/lexoense)  BiERESE /() 558 - (695) = (1407) 1502 = S )]
Segment results kS (93.470) 4937) (92,099 (23183) 411,600 (22373 (101,353) 12619 (736,39%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

@E
9.

- —F+—A=t+—HILFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment operating income and results

(Continued)

Segment operating income reported above represents
income generated from external customers. There was
no inter-segment operating income in both years.

Income and expenses are allocated to the reporting
segments with reference to income generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation/
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group's accounting policies described
in note 4(u) to the consolidated financial statements.
Segment results represent the results achieved by each
segment. This is the measurement method reported
to the chief operating decision makers for the purpose
of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

9.

2 EER ()

(b)

DEREWRAREE @)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-T - —F+-_A=1t—RHILFE
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. HHFER
(c) Segment assets and liabilities (c) »HEERAE
An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by AEBMEENMBBIRIKEED DO
operating segments is set out below. IR o

Provision
of wealth
and asset
management, Provision  Franchisor  Manufacture
financial  of medical ~ and retail of of infant
Trading of  Provision of  brokerage consultation mother-  formula and
securities financing  and related and laboratory infant-child  nutritional  Investment

investments services services services products products holding
RUHER RE
BEER. RUER  KREER  BHARR
SHELR #HR  BEREE BR
EERSRE RUBEEH RERE  ERTRE ER g2ER REER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT Tz T TEn ThT Tz TR TEn

As at 31 December 2022 RZB--§+-B=1-A

Assets before following items: FAUTEREZEE: 753,315 217,592 1,018,276 250 659 21,003 1,556,110 3,567,205
Interests in assoclates REEAF ER - - - 87,140 70,337 - - 157,477
Goodwl g - - 18476 - - - - 18,476
Segment assets PHEE 753,315 217,592 1,036,752 87,390 70,996 21,003 1,556,110 3,743,158
Unallocated assets AAREE 474,662
Total assefs B2E 4,217,820
Liabilities 8

Segment liabites AER (5,334) (5000 (283,090) = (9,746) (12,763) (67200 (318,153)
Unallocated liabiities AAREE (30,058)
Totelligbites fak (348,211)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oHWERE
(c) Segment assets and liabilities (continued) () PHEEREE R

Provision of
Wealth and asset Provision
management, of medical  Franchisorand  Manufacture of
Trading of Provision financial ~ consultation retail of mother-  infant formula
securities — offinancing  brokerageand  and laboratory infant-childand nutritional
investments services  related services services progucts products

Investment
holding

Total

HRERE RELK

HKS'000 HK$'000

Thr Thx
As at 31 December 2021 RZB--§+-R=1-A
Assets before following items: FANTEEZEE: 1,062,731 207,053 1,326,482 - 401 51522 1,495,063 4139.25
Interests in associates REEAF ER - - - 88174 21,205 - - 315399
Goodwl g - - 56,930 - - - - 56,930
Segment assets PREE 1,052,731 207,053 1383412 88174 221,626 57522 1,495,063 4,511,581
Unallocated assets AAREE 295,167
Total assefs B2E 4,806,748
Liabilities af
Segment liabilties PH&E (18,538) (500) (298,720 - (9,746) (27,109 (5,740) (360,353
Unallocated liabities AAREE (32219
Totel ligbities gk (392,572
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE— T —F+-A=t+—HItFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Segment assets and liabilities (continued)
For the purpose of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments:

Segment assets mainly include all property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, goodwill,
intangible assets, interests in associates, financial
assets at FVTPL, financial assets at FVOCI, loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, deferred
tax assets, inventories, derivative financial
instruments, net defined benefit assets, fixed bank
deposits and bank balances and cash. All assets
are allocated to operating segments other than
unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities mainly include trade and other
payables, contract liabilities, interest-bearing
borrowings, lease liabilities, net defined benefit
obligations, tax payables and deferred tax
liabilities. All liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than unallocated head office
and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oEERE)
(d) Geographical information d) twEER
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s TR AEEREBAEEHKE
operating income from external customers by locations INBEE 2 BB WA DHT

of operations:

Provision
of wealth
and asset
management, Provision  Franchisor  Manufacture
financial ~ of medical  and retail of of infant
Trading of ~ Provision of  brokerage  consultation mother-  formula and
securities financing  and related and laboratory infant-child  nutritional  Investment

investments services services services products products holding
REHER
BEER. Rt KHEER  HEE4R
SHELR BREAR TEREE  EROMR
REURERE HERE  ERERE ER ERER REZR

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000
T Tin Tian Tin T THT

For the year ended BE-E--ETCA=T-A

31 December 2022 i34
Primary geographic markets IEHETS
Hong Kong B (190,054) 17,336 143,369 - - o 1117 (27,572)
PRC h (4,642) = - = = = = (4,642)
Australia 2 = = = = = 72,1 - 72,71
Europe B - - 11428 - - - - 11428
Total @i (194,696) 17,336 154,797 = = 72,71 1711 51,925
For the year ended BE-E--%£+-F=t+-R

31 December 2021 5B
Primary geographic markets TEHETS
Hong Kong Bl 59074 209571 309479 = - - 51 393,561
PRC h (2,007) = - - - - S (2,007)
Australia 2 = = - - - 182873 - 182873
Europe gl - - 2999 - - - - 29999
Total @it 57,067 2,957 339478 = o 182,873 51 604,426
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-T - —F+-_A=1t—RHILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(d) Geographical information (continued)

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's
non-current assets (excluding financial instruments and
deferred tax assets) by locations of assets (“Specified
non-current assets”):

7 EEFR ()

d HEER
TR AKEREEMES D 2IF
MBEE (TEERERTARELER
HEE)((BEHFRBEE]) 201 :

Specified non-current assets

EEFRBEE
2022 2021
—s-= —E_—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#Ex FHIT
Hong Kong 5 179,449 219,019
PRC H 70,337 227,225
Australia BN 11,290 35,144
Europe B 168,955 191,327
Total R 430,031 672,715
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

9.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(e) Disaggregation of revenue

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by
major products and service lines and timing of revenue
recognition. The table also includes a reconciliation of
the disaggregated revenue with the Group’s reportable
segment.

2 EER (@)

€ WAZZE
RTR - WA EBERRRBRA
RIGAFERIEES L - ZRTBIED
SRR AR B ] 2 3R 2 P

Provision of
wealth and asset
management, Manufacture of
financial infant formula
brokerage and and nutritional Investment
related services products holding
RUHER
EEER . HELHS
SRELR BRBR
R EEER RERR @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEx TEn
For the year ended BE-B-CF
31 December 2022 TZA=+-HILEE
Major products/service lines IZER/BER
Wealth and asset management HEREEER 129,441 = = 129,441
Financial brokerage and related services £ B4R RIREIRH 10,499 = = 10,499
Infant formula and nutritional products ~ BAREAFNBREEER = 72,111 = 2,
Management services EERB = - 1,777 1,777
Total @t 139,940 72,711 1,777 214,428
Time of revenue recognition WARZER
Atapoint in time B 129,156 72,711 1,777 203,644
Transferred over time BEEREERESR 10,784 = = 10,784
Total @t 139,940 72,711 1,777 214,428
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-T - —F+-_A=1t—RHILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oEERE)
(e) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) e WMAZzZE#E)

Provision of
wealth and asset
management, Manufacture of
financial infant formula
brokerage and and nutritional Investment
related services products holding

1A I3 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TERL TiEn TiER

For the year ended BE-Z--f%

31 December 2021 TZRZt+-BLEE
Major products/service lines IZER/BEE
Wealth and asset management HEREEER 291622 = = 21622
Financial brokerage and related services £ B RIREIRH 24,804 = - 24804
Infant formula and nutritional products ~ EHREFMHREEER = 182,873 = 182873
Management services EERE = - 51 51
Total &t 316,446 182,873 51 499,370
Time of revenue recognition BABZEE
Ata point in time 3k 304,223 182,873 51 487,147
Transferred over time BEEEDES 12,23 - - 12223
Total @it 316,446 182,873 51 499,370
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oEERE)
(f) Other segment information (H HttnMBER

Provision
of wealth
and asset
management, Provision Franchisor ~ Manufacture
financial of medical  and retail of of infant

Trading of  Provision of brokerage  consultation mother-  formula and
securities financing  and related  and laboratory  infant-child nutritional  Investment
investments TV services services products products holding  Unallocated
RUMER
HEEE. Rft  R¥EER  BEE4R
SRERR  BREWR  ZESEE  EAMER
ERISRE RUBERE HBEE  ERZRH ER ERER REBR &3t
HKS 000 K000 HKS 000 (1 0 ($000 HKS 000 (§000 HKS 000
T AT ThL ; BIL AT ThL T T
For the year ended BE-E-CE
31 December 2022 tZR=t-ALEE

Addtions of specified non-current  REEEFFHEE

assetst = = 3,521 = = 1,646 = 13,484 18,651
Depreciation of property, plantand % - RERRENE

equipment = - (2,009) = = (1,585) = (1,24) (4,878)
Depreciation of right-ofuse assets  EBRAENE = = (430) = = (1,562) = (10,880) (12,872)
Amortsation of intanglle assets B AEEH = = (2,364) = = (5,222) = s (7,586)
Interest income included in STABERAREMEA

operating income and other HRISRA

income 3,952 17,336 19,194 - - - 12918 417 58,117
Reversal/(provision) of impaiment 1 AER S EEEE

loss on financial assets for ECLs -~ 2 HEBEER/
(B%) 6 20,485 (987) = = 86 2 () 19,612

Write-0ff of amounts dug fromNCI - # 4B —~FEHB A

sharefolders in a subsidiary HERERRESE = = (468) = = = = = (468)
Write-0ff oftrace and otfer HHEAREMENTE

receivables = = - - - (941) - - (941)
Netfarvaluelossonfinancial -~~~ BT Rz 2%

nstruments 5E (51,781) = = = = - (2,889) = (54,670)
For the year ended HEC3--%

31 December 2021 tZRET-ALEE
Additions of specified non-current  FE KT HFHEE

assets* S S 620 S S n = = 691
Depreciation of property, plantand 1% - BERREHE

equipment S = (7.800) = S (1.641) (787) 984) ma)
Depreciation of right-ofuse assets  EREEENE S S (32 S S (2600) S (11,524 (14,562)
Amortisation of intanglole assets  EF/AEE S - (2866) - - (7.5%) = = (10.460)
Interest income included in TAEERAR

operating income and other EfpABASRA

income 651 2951 25,644 - - 2 1326 1332 53912

Provision)/reversal of impairment BB AEREHESEE
loss on financia assets for ECLs 2 BEBE (BE)/

3@ &) (16526 (417 - (188,570) 61 2 51 (205,524
Netfairvalbe losson financial -~~~ BT EZ A7
nstruments 58 (1209%) = = = - - (89437) - (210,435)
* Including additions of property, plant and equipment, * BREMNEDE BELRE £
right-of-use assets and intangible assets. PAREEEREVEE -
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. HHFER
(g) Operating income from customers for the year over (8) 1EAREEEL LU ARTEIORA L H A
10% of the Group's total operating income less (10ss)/ FERERF Z2EEWARBLERA
gain from the sale of financial assets at FVTPL, net is as REFABRHZEMEEZ (BR),/
follows: s R T
2022 2021
—=-= —E-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Customer A - attributable to BPA — BEREZNZES
manufacture of infant formula and ¥ K& B E R
nutritional products 62,468 161,860

Customer B — attributable to provision ®FB — EIEIR{EHT E R EE
of wealth and asset management,  &12 - @@ &4a REBERS
financial brokerage and related
services 73,042 137,087
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10. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION
This is stated after charging/(crediting):

Finance costs

10. FRRBATEE
BB (ER) THIEE

BE R A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Interest on bank and other borrowings  $R1T R EME R 2 8 474 4,030
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBEANE 889 1,781
1,363 5,811
Other items HihEH
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEREFE ZKRHEE 63,244 170,927
Write-down of inventories IEB¢ iV 135 1,129
Cost of inventories recognised as R AT HNFEERAR
expenses 63,379 172,056
Auditor's remuneration (including other % E MBS (BRIEEMETE
audit fees, primarily in respect of audits ~ F » = B B[ B A & B 5
of financial statements of subsidiaries) Xzt AR) 4,643 3,644
Rent, rates and building management e ZMREFEEXH
expenses 3,038 2,932
Management fees EEE 2,276 21,685
Information services expenses EERBZ I 13,628 18,643
Utilities and office expenses NAEERBRATH 7,185 4,517
Legal and professional fees FEEREXER 13,052 24,821
(Reversal)/provision of legal and BREEREXER
professional fees for liquidation (%[ (15,113) 33,933
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BITHA (TRIEEEHH)
emoluments)
Salaries, discretionary bonuses, e MBI FHR
allowances and benefits in kind EYH = 46,268 59,242
Contributions to defined contribution TE BB FUR IRETEI K
retirement schemes 2,536 2,842
Write-off of amounts due from NCI 58 FE U — R BT B R R JESE
shareholders in a subsidiary (Note) A% 4 25 AR SR BIE (K7 aE) 468 -

Note: The amounts represented write-off of outstanding capital
injection due from NCI shareholders of an inactive subsidiary
of the Group that was struck off during the year.
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e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-T - —F+-_A=1t—RHILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11. EEME

The emoluments received or receivable by the Company’s ARREFCWSER 2SI
directors are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-Z-_—#+=-HA=+—H1L
FE

Salaries,
discretionary Contributions
bonus, to defined
allowances  contribution
Directors’ and benefits retirement

fee in kind schemes
A EHR EHEMR
EZHd ENFE  BAGTEMR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TET
Executive directors TES
Han Ruixia FinE - 5,400 18 5,418
Zhang Zhenyi RIRE - 3,600 18 3,618
Non-executive director FHTES
Hui Mei Mei, Carol TR 360 - - 360

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors
Tian Ren Can B 360 - - 360
Wang Cong Tia 360 - - 360
Wu Xu'an RNEL 180 - - 180
Ng Yu Yuet RTH 360 - - 360

1,620 9,000 36 10,656
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—F+_A=1t—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 11. EEME#)
BE_F-_-F+t-A=1+—-HiL
FE

Year ended 31 December 2021

Salaries,
discretionary  Contributions
bonus, to defined
allowances contribution
Directors’ and benefits retirement
fee in kind schemes
:ﬁ/i\ [
TIRD=5:54 BHEK
EEn EW‘JE RIRET B Bat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THET TAT AT
Executive directors BiTE=E
Han Ruixia BB - 5,400 18 5418
Zhang Zhenyi EiE - 3,600 18 3,618
Non-executive director FHTES
Hui Mei Mei, Carol TR 360 - - 360
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Tian Ren Can B 360 - - 360
Wang Cong Tia 360 - - 360
Wu Xu'an RNZ 180 - - 180
Ng Yu Yuet RTH 360 - - 360
1,620 9,000 36 10,656

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there was
no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration. In addition, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to any directors as an inducement to join,
or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of
office for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

BHE_Z_—_FR-_FT_-—F+=ZA
=+—BLEEE BEEEHEXEEN
ERMMENTHE kN BEZT =
ERZF_—F+_A=Z+—HILFE -
REEGEREMES N ARSI
EMAREBFIERMAREE o) 2E) X
BEEBAHIE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-T - —F+-_A=1t—RHILFE

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 12. EEEREHAL
The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the FA AEEREERFATRERS (=
year included two (2021: two) directors, details of whose T —F MBEF REZHFNFER
remunerations are in note 11 to the consolidated financial RERE M IEHMERNEN - FA - BT =F
statements. Details of the remunerations of the remaining (ZE=—F : ZR)&RaHF AT GERAT
three (2021: three) highest paid individuals, who are not a BE)ZHMIT :

director of the Company, for the years are as follows:

2022 2021
—E_— —E_—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THBxT FB7T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - 2BE R EWHIZ 3,392 3,675
Bonus TE4T 860 693
Contributions to defined contribution TE RE M FUR R EH B X
retirement schemes 54 54
4,306 4,422
Their emoluments were within the following bands: WEZEHMWNTFATERE :
2022 2021
—E—=
No. of No. of
Individuals individuals
A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 2 1,500,0007% 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 JT & 2,000,000/ 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017% 7T £2,500,0007% 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,0017% 7t 23,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,0017% 7T £ 3,500,000/ 7T - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

13. TAXATION 13. HE

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5%
(2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong, except for the first HK$2,000,000 of qualified
entity’s assessable profit is calculated at 8.25%, which is in
accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime with
effect from the year of assessment 2018/19.

Australian Income Tax rate of the Company’s subsidiary
operating in Australia during the year was 30% (2021: 30%) on
its taxable profits.

Liechtenstein Corporate Income Tax rate of the Company’s
subsidiary operating in Liechtenstein during the year was
12.5% (2021: 12.5%) on its taxable profits.

Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax rate of the Company’s
subsidiaries operating in the PRC during the year ended 31
December 2022 was 25% (2021: 25%) on its taxable profits.

PRC withholding income tax of 10% shall be levied on the
dividends declared by the companies established in the
PRC to their foreign investors out of their profits earned
after 1 January 2008. A lower 5% withholding tax rate may
be applied when the immediate holding companies of the
PRC subsidiaries are incorporated or operated in Hong Kong
and fulfil the requirements to the tax treaty arrangements
between the PRC and Hong Kong.

BEMNEGHREREEB Z BT ERTR
FILA165% (ZF = —4F : 165%) 2 Fi K&t
E BREBERZZ—N\/—"ARZHEEL
MzMREIFERE  GERERBZEE

RER - AR a FRN & BB R E M
SN PTS R B R A H SR A% FI A930% (=
T —14F :30%) °

RER RARRIIZHLELEZWE
RAMISTHLTELEMEHRRERHEE
FREFE125% (ZF=—F 1 125%) °

HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=1+—HL=EE"
ARRRAPEEENMHRBEATNRREAM
1P 15 B A5 3 7 L B AR 5 04 ) 8925% (=
T 1 25%) o

RAEABEKZHARREEINEEETIRE
—EEN\F-A-ABBRRZFERNRKRE
FEFZ10%E T RGN B FBINFTISRE - pheh
BB R RN ESEMA S ELTE
REEEFE BT VAR B ENTHRENE
EERABITE - FIER A% BUE TR T
T o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-T - —F+-_A=1t—RHILFE

13. TAXATION (Continued) 13. BLE®)
The major components of the income tax (credit)/expense for
the year are as follows:

FRAEDH (ER) XHNEEHAMT :

2022 2021
—S-= —E_—%F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
T#Ex FHIT
Current tax B A 18
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNEH
Current year provision AEREE 306 279
Under provision in prior year BEFEREBETR 50 =
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax B A E B
Current year provision NELEE = -
Australian Income Tax BN TS
Current year provision NELEE = -
Liechtenstein Corporate Income Tax B EDEMEH
Current year provision NEZRE 15 15
Withholding tax A = 1,407
371 1,701
Deferred tax BB IR
Origination and reversal of temporary TRt EENESE REE
differences (Note 32) (K17£32) (35,582) (1,699)
Income tax (credit)/expense for the year FRFTEH (ER) T H (35,211) 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

@E
13.

R —FF+_A=+—HIFE

TAXATION (Continued)
Reconciliation of income tax (credit)/expense:

13.

BiE (#)
TSR (4) /3 AR -

Loss before taxation BR T A BT 1R (455,825) (736,394)
Income tax at applicable tax rate of #16.5% (ZF = —4F : 16.5%)

16.5% (2021: 16.5%) ZERAMEGFHE SR (75,211) (121,509)
Tax effect of difference of domestic TR EEZR BB 2

tax rate (3,457) 2,612
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses  TRIFIFR X 2 B2 ’E 68,621 146,779
Tax effect of tax exempt revenue RIBF e W 2 BT o & (25,073) (56,159)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised B AR RERFIEEE

tax losses (5,181) (2,683)
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses RERTIEBB BB E 7,288 22,188
Effect of share of results of associates ~ FE(REEE N RIEE 2 & (1,989) 7,363
Withholding tax TR = 1,407
Income tax at concessionary rate ?ﬁfﬁﬁmi FTE B (259) =
Under-provision of previous year BEFEREEBEIR 50 =
Income tax (credit)/expense for the year FRFTEF (KR) S H (35,211) 2
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HE-T - —F+-_A=1t—RHILFE

14. DIVIDEND 14. BRE
No dividend was paid or proposed for the years ended HE-_ZE_-_—_FfRKR-_ZFT=-_—F+=-A
31 December 2022 and 2021, nor has any dividend been =T —HIEFETHERNSEBERE B
proposed since the end of reporting period. AR BIMERIREMARE

15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. BRER
The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is based BREXRBEDERFARNRAIE=ERA
on loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the EEEERFASZRITE AR ZINETY
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary SETEWNT ¢

shares in issue during the year as follows:

2022 2021
—E-—4F

HK$’'000 HK$'000
TEx TAET

Loss for the year attributable to equity ~ AR AIEZIHFE ABMER

holders of the Company &5 18 (414,972) (733,623)
2022 2021
—=E_—— —_ T —%F
No. of shares No. of shares
%12 8 B f& 7 2 B
‘000 ‘000
F % T A%
Number of shares Ligng= 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary LB 2 ke
shares for the purpose of basic loss (REREXNEEMS)
per share 44,364,886 44,364,886

198  Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. % - BERRE

Furniture Computer Motor
Leasehold and and office Vehicles Land and
improvements fixtures equipment and yacht building Total
KR
HENELE BiREE BAZRE RERMM 1HRET fi
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL BT TAn TAL TAL AL
Cost 73
At1 January 2021 WZE--F-F—-H 8,556 1312 75,555 18,064 339.977 443 964
Additions RE - 2 384 - 47 433
Disposals e - (121) (267) (16,152) - (16,540)
Bxchange realignment EHRAE = (31) (1,714) (113 (10071) (11,929)
At 31 December 2021 and AZF-F+-A=1-H
1 January 2022 k=E--F-f-H 8,556 1,662 73,958 1,799 329,953 415,928
Additions RE 489 - 5,465 - - 5,954
Disposal/written-off e/ (751) (117) (1,693) - - (2,561)
Bxchange realignment ik = (34) (1,546) (121) (3,325) (5,026)
At 31 December 2022 R-E--%+-A=t+-H 8,294 1,51 76,184 1,678 326,628 414,295
Accumulated depreciation  BHFERRE
and impairment
At 1 January 2021 R_E-_-%-f—-H 8,511 1,345 52927 3,163 62,697 128,643
Charge for the year FERT 3 84 10,146 944 = 1,212
Impairment loss recognised R AERE = - - - 77520 77,520
Eliminated on disposals HERTH = (79 (165) (2,646) - 2.890)
Exchange realignment iy = (13) (1,040) 83) (1,591) 2727)
At 31 December 2021 and RZE--%+-f=1-H
1 January 2022 k=%--f-A-H 8,549 1,337 61,868 1,378 138,626 211,758
Charge for the year ERTH 62 51 4,664 101 - 4,878
Impairment loss recognised ~ BRFEFR - - - - 19,885 19,885
Eliminated on disposal/written-off & /#1357 45 (751) (96) (1,692) = = (2,539)
Bxchange realignment AR = (16) (1,007) (96) (838) (1,957)
At 31 December 2022 RZE--#+-A=+-H 7,860 1,276 63,833 1,383 157,673 232,025
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2022 R-E--%+-A=t+-H 434 235 12,351 295 168,955 182,270
At 31 December 2021 WZE--F+-F=+-H 7 325 12,09 i 191,327 204,170
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

17. LEASES 17. HE
The Group as lessee rEBEEREEA
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets THIHEERNEAEEENRE SRS
recognised and the movements during the year: REEE
2022 2021
—==-= - —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Land and building THRETF
At the beginning of the reporting period 7 ¥R & B %7 14,201 29,012
Additions NE 12,652 47
Depreciation expense TERX (12,872) (14,562)
Exchange realignment M H (298) (296)
At the end of the reporting period R EER 13,683 14,201
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and NTREAGEHEAENRAeE LA
the movements during the year: 9 -

At the beginning of the reporting period R ¥R & #14) 15,937 32,103
Additions B 10,454 47
Accretion of interest A B8 BN 889 1,781
Payments g (13,344) (17,662)
Exchange realignment ME W S (334) (332)
At the end of the reporting period RIMEHR 13,602 15,937
Analysed to: HATEEEL S

Current L&D 4,056 12,288

Non-current JER B 9.546 3,649
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e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-—#+-RA=+—HIFE

17. LEASES (continued) 17. HE&#®)
The Group as lessee (continued) EEBERAMEA @
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or 10ss: T3 &N ERER

2022 2021
—ZE - —FE - —F

— =

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx TAET

Depreciation expense of right-of-use FREEEFERS

assets 12,872 14,562
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBGEMNERX 889 1,781
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIEFERNE S EE 13,761 16,343
The Group had total cash outflows for leases of AEFRZZTE__FHHERE AL
HK$13,344,000 in 2022 (2021: HK$17,662,000). The Group 4858 513,344,000 T (& = —&F ¢
also had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and 17,662,000 7C) - R -ZEBE - —F - K&
lease liabilities of HK$12,652,000 (2021: HK$47,000) and ErERAEEEREBEEAENIERS
HK$10,454,000 (2021: HK$47,000) in 2022, respectively. I INEE D B A12,652,0008 L (ZF = —

£F ¢ 47,0005 JT,) F%10,454,0004% 7T (=
T = —4F : 47,0008 T) ©

EREBZRERRT /20225EHE 201



202

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

18. GOODWILL
The amounts of goodwill capitalised by the Group and
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries are as follows:

(GRS

B AR B & R R ARG B B R i
ROEE (BRBWE LR ES) 2B
I

2021
—E-—4F

HK$°000
TAET

Cost B

At 1 January and 31 December R—HA—BE+ZA=+—H 581,303 581,303
Accumulated impairment losses R REERE

At 1 January R—A—H (524,373) (524,373)
Impairment loss REEE (38,454) =
At 31 December W+=-—A=+—H (562,827) (524,373)
Net carrying amount BREFE

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 18,476 56,930

Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the
acquisitions effectively included amounts in relation to the
benefit of revenue growth, future market development and
the assembled workforce. These benefits are not recognised
separately from goodwill because they do not meet the
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets. None of
the goodwill or impairment thereof recognised is expected to
be deductible for income tax purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-—#+-RA=+—HIFE

18. GOODWILL (continued) 18. HE#®)
The carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets was FERETEE RHERE TIIEBMT
allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according to the EOREAEECHINNBECELESMNU
nature of business as follows for impairment tests: EITRER

2022

—_E_-__
Intangible Intangible
assets with assets
indefinite with finite

useful life useful life

Goodwill (Note 19) (Note 19)
BEERERA BARER

FHH FHN

BIEEE BEEE

(BaE19) (Ha£19)

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Wealth and asset management, financial I EkEEEE - @&

brokerage and related services &40 AR AR 7

— Securities brokerage — BHEL = 6,194 551

— Commodities brokerage — Hm&R = 10,833 =

— Wealth and asset management —UEREEER 18,476 30,647 9,900
Manufacture of infant formula and SEBH TR &

nutritional products EEER = = =

18,476 47,674 10,451
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-T - —F+-_A=1t—RHILFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. E&E %)

Goodwill

kS
HK$'000
TR

Wealth and asset management, financial M EkEEERE - @&

2021

—E-—F
Intangible
assets with
indefinite
useful life
(Note 19)
B mR A
FHIH

HK$'000
TAET

Intangible
assets
with finite
useful life
(Note 19)
AFREA
FHIRY

B EE
(Kt7E19)
HK$'000
FHET

brokerage and related services &40 AR AR 7

— Securities brokerage — BHEL = 6,194 1,065

— Commodities brokerage — HmER = 10,931 -

— Wealth and asset management —EREEEE 56,930 30,647 11,705
Manufacture of infant formula and PEBNARAIH R

nutritional products EEER S S 21,473

56,930 47,772 34,243

Goodwill associated with the above businesses arose when B ¥R A RERNERS G mk i
the business combinations were completed. EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. E&E %)

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
recoverable amount of the CGUSs has been determined by the
value-in-use calculation.

In value-in-use calculations, cash flow projections used are
based on financial budgets approved by the management
covering a 5-year period, the average growth rate and
long-term growth rate are based on past performance and
its expectation of market development. These growth rates
are also based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and
do not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. The discount rates used are pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant CGUS.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, goodwill impairment
of HK$38,454,000 associated with the CGUs of wealth and
asset management has been recognised in light of the
continuous reduction in the customer portfolio maintained by
the CGUS. For the year ended 31 December 2021, no goodwill
impairment has been recognised.

HE-_T-_—_Fr=-_Z=-_—%+=A
=+—RHLFE BeELBEMNAKE
SHEBRFERAEBEENEET -

REEEREER  MARSRERRTS
AEREREEHECAFRUBEEE  ER
BERREBHATGERFIGEEXR
RHRREREL - ZFEEXFHENE
BTTHERTERN  BY RBBMEBEITEDN
FHRERE - FAKREBRBATRE
RERURREMABRSELEVEBEOE
TR

HE_BE_-_—_#+-_A=t+—HItEE"
ENEHRCEABENNEFPEAAIFER
L ERREMEREEEENREES
B8 {7 4 B Y 7 R (38,454,000 7T - H &
ZEZ—F+ZA=+—HLFE #E
HREERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-T - —F+-_A=1t—RHILFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. BE®)
Key assumptions adopted in the calculation of recoverable
amount are as follows:

AEWESREFTEMA C E2/RBAT

206

Wealth
and asset
management,
financial
brokerage
and related
services
MEREE
EE SREL
X 18 B AR 7%
For the year ended BEE-Z=—_—
31 December 2022 TZA=+—-BLEE
Key unobservable inputs adopted EHEEFEFHZ FE
in value-in-use calculation T A BRER g A B 15
Gross profit margin ESTUES 25.00%
Average growth rate TR = -1.40%
Long-term growth rate REER X 3.00%
Discount rate AL IR & 19.70%
For the year ended BE-_ZE_-_—&
31 December 2021 +TZA=+—-HLEE
Key unobservable inputs adopted HEEFEFITHCFE
in value-in-use calculation T o] B A 255
Gross profit margin FEH = 21.70%
Average growth rate Tt K= 2.00%
Long-term growth rate RHERX 3.00%
Discount rate AL IR & 17.00%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-—#+-RA=+—HIFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. HE#®)
A sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at the end RIEHRNEABRERNBRESTAT
of the reporting period is shown below:

Valuation
technique  Assumption Range Sensitivity of fair value to input
hER BR BE BARBZAAEHEY
Wealth and asset management, Income Average growth -1.40% 1% (2021: 1%) increase/decrease in average growth
financial brokerage and approach rate (2021:2.00%)  rate would result in increase/decrease in recoverable
related services amount by HK$2,097,000 and HK$2,024,000
— Wealth and asset management (2021: HK$6,431,000 and HK$6,226,000)
HEREEEE SBELR LN T RE -1.40% FIEREEM/HD1%(ZEZ—F  1%) BER
RERS (ZZ=-F:  AKE&LBEM/HH2,097,000% 7 K2,024,000% T
—HEREEER 200%) (ZZFZ—%: 6,431,000 7T 126,226,005 )

EREBEZERERAT / 2022FERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

8=
19.

T —HF+—_A=+—HIFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BREE

Licenses Computer
Brand and trading Customer software
names rights Trademarks relationships  and systems Total
R EMEH
mEER REE# 1] EFBR R&# @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TATL TEL BT BT BT
Cost 7
At 1 January 2021 WZE--%-f-H 113,168 166,464 13 163,459 27,047 470,151
Additions HE = - 2 - 179 211
Exchange realignment EHAE (4,656) (6,624) - (2,044) (1,335 (14,659)
At 31 December 2021 R-B--%+-A=1-H
and 1 January 2022 k=Z--%-f-H 108,512 159,840 45 161,415 25,891 455,703
Additions RE - - 45 - - 45
Exchange realignment BHHE (5,723) (7,509) - (1,599) (378) (15,209)
At31 December 2022 RZBZZF+ZA=1-H 102,789 152,331 90 159,816 25,513 440,539
Accumulated amortisation 2 BHERAEE
and impairment
At1 January 2021 W-Z---Hf-H 72,189 124,753 3 146,035 25,550 368,530
Charge for the year ERLH 2516 157 4 2,758 411 10460
Impairment loss recognised ~ HERRERE 3777 3281 - 762 - 7820
Exchange realignment EHRAE (3951) (5,947) = (1,889) (1,339) (13122
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-F+ZfA=1-H
and 1 January 2022 k-Z--%-f-H 74,531 126,658 7 147,666 24,826 373,688
Charge for the year ERZH 1730 3,143 8 2191 514 7,586
Impairment loss recognised ~ BFRERE 8,218 5,598 - 1,658 - 15,474
Exchange realignment L (5,289) (7,142) = (1,525) (378) (14,334)
At 31 December 2022 RZE--F+-F=1-H 79,190 128,257 15 149,990 24,962 382,414
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2022 RZB-—#+-A=1-H 23,599 24,074 75 9,826 551 58,125
At 31 December 2021 RWZE--%+-A=1-H 33,981 33182 38 13,749 1,065 82,015

The Group's intangible assets were acquired by the Group
through business combinations in prior years. The allocation
of intangible assets with indefinite and finite useful lives to
each cash generating unit is demonstrated in note 18.

During the year, brand names, licenses and trading rights
and customer relationships related to the manufacture of
infant formula and nutritional products segment (“these
intangible assets”) were fully impaired due to the continuous
unsatisfactory performance. The Group recognised an
impairment loss of HK$8,218,000 (2021 HK$3,777,000),
HK$5,500,000 (2021: HK$3,281,000) and HK$1,658,000
(2021: HK$762,000) on these intangible assets, respectively,
determined by value-in-use calculation as discussed in note
18. As at 31 December 2021, the recoverable amounts of
these intangible assets were HK$10,382,000, HK$9,010,000
and HK$2,081,000 respectively.
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AEBENEVEEAAEENBEFES
BEBEINE - ABERRARAEHF
HOBTEENKEERCELEMN I
SRR MR8 o

FERNBERREENRE DM RERE
BOMARRIFERE REETE BB
ERXGEUNRBRFBER (ZEBEFEE]
MEERE ANEERZEEFLEED T
HE 2R B &5 18 /58,218,000 T (— & — —
£ : 3,777,000/ 7T) ~ 5,500,000/ 7T (= =
= —4F : 3,281,000/ 1) &1,658,0007% 7T (=
T —F 7620008 7T) - JHiRBIFE18FT I
ZHERBEFEEE R —F1+=
B=Z+—HB ZSEFEEZ KRB &5
% B £10,382,000/% 7T ~ 9,010,000/ 7T &
2,081,000/ 7T, ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

20. SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

Company

In the opinion of the management, a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries will be of excessive length and
therefore the table below lists the principal subsidiaries at the
end of the reporting period which materially affect the results
or assets or liabilities of the Group. Ownership interests are

unchanged from 1 January 2022.

Name of subsidiaries

HEARER

Blend and Pack Pty. Ltd.
("B&P")

Blend and Pack Pty. Ltd.
([88P1)

(reco Roman Limited
FEARLT

Harris Fraser Group Limited
('HFG")

ENREEARAR
([B#&E))

Hong Kong Mortgage
Solutions Limited ("HKMS")

ERRREBRHARAA
(&8%E])

Mason Administrative
Services Limited
KERBEERAF

Place of
incorporation/
operation

HRAL/EEY

Australia

Hong Kong
&

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RERTHE/ B

Hong Kong

Bt

Hong Kong

B

Particulars of

issued and paid up
ordinary share capital
BERARMRER

RA 2

Australian dollar
("AUS") 550,579

550,579 (&)
HK$1

1%

US$2,000

2000%

HK$75,000,100

75,000,007

HKS$1

BT

20. FfEH

KRR 2EENBARFE

ownership interests

itk ¢ b

Held by the
E]
HARE

Held by a
subsidiary
H-ENE
K& NEkE

% %

- Ly
(Note (a))
(Wit)

EREBEZERERAT / 2022FERE

Group's
effective
interest’

31 ]
BRER

0/
0

75

100

100

4

100

ERERR ARTEZIMENERQF
ZHBHEERRITR  WTREZIRNE
EHMREAREEEESIEEREBEEEXN
HECITEMBAT -FIERERE-ZT
ZZF—H—HielmEga o

Principal activities

IERH

Development, manufacture and sale
of infant formula and nutritional
products

A% REREERDIES iR
heEER

Trading of securities

Provision of wealth
management services

RUNEERRE

Investment holding

REABR

Provision of administrative

services
RETRRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_Z__HF+_HA=t+—HItFE

20. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. MIBATR(#E)
Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the ERARZEEMBLRFE &)
company (Continued)

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and paid up
Name of subsidiaries operation ordinary share capital Ownership interests Principal activities
BRTRARER
WEAREE FAL/ BEnY Rz fEgERR TEEEK

Group's

Held by the Held by a effective
Company  subsidiary interest’
mAdR  A-HKE 558
L] It BRER

% % %

Mason Bullion Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 = 100 100 Provision of bullion trading
("Mason Bullion”) services
EREFERAR(KRER]) B4 1,000,000 7T RUERSBEERE

Mason Capital Investments British Virgin Islands US$1 and - 100 100 Investment holding

Limited ("MCIL") HK$37,999,999 (Note (b))

REETREERAT RERAEE 1XTR (W) RARR

(REER]) 37.999,999% T

Mason Financial Services Cayman Islands US$130,000 100 - - Investment holding

Group Limited

EREREEERAT HEHE 130,000% REER

Mason Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 - 100 100 Provision of commodities
("Mason Futures") brokerage services
ERASERLA(KRER]) BE 20,000,000% 1T REERELRE

Mason Investment Management Hong Kong HK$31,000,000 - 100 100 Provision of securities advisory and
Limited asset management services
KRREERARAA ) 31,000,000% 1T RUFSEAREEERRY
Thomas Global Financial Hong Kong HK$17,500,000 - 100 100 Provision of brokerage services
Services Limited

RERRERARAR & 17,500,000/ 7T REEERS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+_HA=t+—HItFE

20. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. B\ (&)
Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the ERARZEEMBLRFE &)
Company (Continued)

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and paid up
Name of subsidiaries operation ordinary share capital Ownership interests Principal activities
BRTRARER
WEAREE FMAL/ BEhE RA 2z fEgERR TEEEK

Group’s

Held by the Held by a effective
Company  subsidiary interest’
mAdR  A-HKE 358
o] It ERER

% %

Mason Resources Finance Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 100 Provision of financing services
Limited
KRERNBERAA B 10000% 7T RURERE
Mason Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$512,000,000 = 100 100 Dealing in Securities, provision of
("Mason Securities) securities margin financing and
provision of investment corporate
finance advisory services
EREFERLA(XRESR]) B4 512,000,000 EEES RUBSARRANR
RERBECEREBERRK
Mason Strategic Investments  British Virgin Islands Uss1 = 100 100 Trading of securities investments
(Asia) Limited
ERXERE (TN BERLE EERXES 3 EEESRE
Pioneer Leap Investments Samoa US$1 - 100 100 Investment holding
Limited ("Pioneer Leap")
BRREERAR(BR]) EED 3 REBR
Mason PrivatBank Liechtenstein — Liechtenstein Swiss Franc ("CHF") - 100 100 Provision of private banking and
("MPL') 20,000,000 external asset management services
Mason PrivatBank Liechtenstein 5|2 51+% 20,000,000 %5 REBARTRNPEEEERE
(TmPLL) (MR8
# Excluding the interests that are attributable to non-controlling # PREGBERIEERERMNER
interests
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding BT B A Al A RS B R 3k FF A B (R (AT B
at the end of the reporting period, or at any time during the MFA A REERESES
year.
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20. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

Company (Continued)
Notes:

(@  Although MCIL's equity interest in HKMS is 47%, in the opinion
of the management, the Group has 51% voting power over
HKMS at the meetings of shareholders and therefore has
obtained control over HKMS.

(b)  Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 31
December 2020, the Group acquired the remaining 30%
of non-controlling interest in MCIL at a consideration of
HK$11,516,000 by taking up the balances due from minority
shareholders to MCIL. The transfer of shares was completed
on 12 July 2021. Upon the completion of the transaction, MCIL
becomes a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

20. FYEBAT #)

ZNN
Wizt -

@

Az ETENBARFE @)

HERARGFEANBAEARBZBES
7% EEERR AEERBERAE®
LR EBIRBHS1%IRZRE - i
BRRIBE AR o

BiEAgA—ZE—TE+—-/F=+—
ANBEEHGZE AEERBRERAR
EEABRBOBBR L  UARE
11,516,000/ 7T Y B R A5 & AR 84 T~30%HY)
RN c ER B —E+R+=
AERRHER RXHTHE  RIEE
A AREEZENB AR -

HK$'000
THBTT

Additional interest acquired: TR BEEEHMES ¢
Non-controlling interest AR 9,112
Difference arising on the acquisition of additional interest 5+ A B&Zx ¢ (A Uk % — 5 BT B A 7)

in a subsidiary included in equity BIMNERFTELECET 2,404
Total consideration BRE 11,516

(c) Upon the completion of the disposal transaction on 26
February 2021, Mason Reproductive Technology Limited
("MRT") ceased to be an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company and the Group ceased to have any interest in
the MRT Group. Please refer to note 36 for details.

Financial information of subsidiaries with
individual material NCI

The following table shows the information relating to the
non- wholly owned subsidiaries, HKMS and B&P, that have
material NCI during the year. Set out below is the summarised
financial information of each of the subsidiaries with material
NCI. The results for the respective subsidiaries are for the
period from the later of the beginning of the reporting period
and the date of acquisition to the earlier of the date of
disposal and the end of the reporting period. The amounts
are before inter-company eliminations and excluding the
related goodwill.

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-—#+-RA=+—HIFE

20. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. BT #)
Financial information of subsidiaries with EREEEARFEREZZHEBA
individually material NCI (continued) A BEER (@)
B&P HKMS
BEBRE
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FET
At 31 December 2022 NR-_EBE-__F
+=—A=+-—H
Proportion of NCI's ownership interests PR R FT A R 2 LE 25% 53%
Non-current assets EREN A E 14,961 =
Current assets RENEE 9,695 76,233
Current liabilities mEBAE (9,036) =
Non-current liabilities EREAE (3,728) =
Total equity arEm 11,892 76,233
NCI of subsidiaries within the respective groups #EEEEBERME A7 2
JEFERR 2 - -
Carrying amount of NCI R ER Z REE 2,974 40,403

EREBEZERERAT / 2022FERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-T - —F+-_A=1t—RHILFE

20. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20. BT (&)
Financial information of subsidiaries with BREEEXRFERESZ KB
individually material NCI (continued) A BER @)

B&P HKMS
BBIRE

HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET THET

At 31 December 2021 R-ZB=—%

+=A=+-—H
Proportion of NCI's ownership interests eI MR T A M 2 LRI 25% 53%
Non-current assets EREN A E 38,815 -
Current assets mEEE 22,379 76,233
Current liabilities VEIN=E (16,576) -
Non-current liabilities EREAE (10,533) =
Total equity s 34,085 76,233
NCI of subsidiaries within the respective groups 1B/ & B Wi E A [l 2

JEE IR b = -
Carrying amount of NCI R ER  REE 8,521 40,403
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e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

20. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20. B E (%)
Financial information of subsidiaries with BEREEERFERERZHMEL
individually material NCI (continued) A BER @)
B&P HKMS
ERERB
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Year ended 31 December 2022 HBZ-—g-——&+=A8
=t+—HLEE
Proportion of NCI's ownership interests eI RS P A 2 LRI 25% 53%
Operating income TN 72,711 =
Loss for the year FRNEE (20,714) =
Loss and total comprehensive income EiEREERAEE (22,192) =
Loss attributable to NCI IR R RGBSR (5,548) =
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from TREBERERA
() %8
Operating activities K EE) 787 =
Investing activities WEES = -
Financing activities BhEEE (1,761) =
Total cash outflows e ML 2% (974) =
Dividend paid to NCI AT T IR 2 2 IR = =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

20. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

20.

Financial information of subsidiaries with

individually material NCI (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

i) FNCITE))

BRIEEERFERES ZHEA

A BESR (@)

B&P

HK$'000
TAET

BE-_Z-_—%+=A

HKMS
BBIRE
HK$'000
TET

=t+—HLEE
Proportion of NCI's ownership interests eI MR T A M 2 LRI 25% 53%
Operating income TN 182,873 =
Loss for the year FAEE (22,137) 4)
Loss and total comprehensive income EiEREERALE (24,326) 4)
Loss attributable to NCI IR R RGBSR (6,082) ()
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from THEERERA

() &8
Operating activities K EE) 318 =
Investing activities A& EE 14 -
Financing activities R EEE (2,949) -
Total cash outflows e ML 2% (2,617) =

Dividend paid to NCI

IR T IEAE B i an 2 BB

13 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-—#+-RA=+—HIFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

21. RFEARER

2022 2021
—E-— —E-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T T T
Carrying amount at the beginning of REN 2 REE
the year 315,399 885,724
Share of post-acquisition losses and BHFAKEBEEER
other comprehensive income during HEa2EKA
the year (5,828) (42,949)
Impairment losses during the year FHNREEBE (152,094) (194,508)
Disposal during the year FALRE = (422,141)
Cancellation of divided declared BB ERARE = 123,834
Dividend received B R = (34,561)
Carrying amount at the end of the year RERZREEE 157,477 315,399

As at 31 December 2022, interests in associates comprise of:

(if)

(iif)

HK$87,140,000 (31 December 2021: HK$88,174,000)
representing 42.87% equity interest in Pangenia Inc
("Pangenia”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, acquired by the Group
in 2017.

HK$70,337,000 (31 December 2021 HK$227,225,000)
representing 46.20% equity interest in AYD Group
Limited ("AYD"), a company incorporated in British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, acquired by the Group in
2016. AYD is principally engaged in franchisor and retail
of mother-infant-child products in Southern China and
Eastern China.

As at 31 December 2020, HK$420,196,000 represents
46.71% equity interest in The Women'’s Clinic Group
Limited ("WCG"), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability. WCG and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision
of medical consultation services and reproductive
technology services. On 26 February 2021, the Group
fully disposed of its entire equity interest in WCG. Please
refer to note 36 for details.

RoB-—F+-A=+—8 RBEA
iR -

0

(i

(iif)

I

87,140,000 L (ZE=Z—F + = A
=+—0 : 88,174,000/ 7T) & RN #
DEPRIEAERAR (Fx)) (—R
RABREZHEESFMRIZARA
Al RZE—tFRASERE) 2
42 87%HGHE -

70,337,000 gt (ZE=Z—F + = A
=+—8 : 2272250008 7T) * HER
BREEEARAR([ERE]  —
RRUBEXZHESHMKIHFRA
Al RZE-—RNFHRASERE) K
ERA620% BELREFERERRE
R ERERTEERTETREE

[ ]
anR °

RZEZZEF+=ZA=+8"
420,196,000 THHE R EREH &
EAERA AR (EEE®H] - —MERE
BELZHEEAMKIZBERAT) Z
A% - ERESNENB AR
FTENFREBELARE REHE
RMRE - R_E-—FE - A=+~
B AEBERSLEENERER
K2 EPARHE - FHIBELMMEES6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 21. REEE QRIS (&)
summarised financial information of
individually material associates
Pangenia Group FEEKE

BRI EABE QR 2MBERRE

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H
Current assets MEVEE 247,751 223,607
Non-current assets EMENEE 62,612 66,865
Current liabilities mENEE (73,252) (88,180)
Non-current liabilities EREBAE (4,996) (5,371)
Intangible assets mEE 208,874 208,904
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE (27,126) (27,126)
Net assets of the associate B NERFEE 413,863 378,699
Group’s ownership interest REB AR 42.87% 42.87%
Group's share of net assets of the E B G E QA

associate HEE 177,422 162,349
Fair value adjustments including NAERAE(BIERE)

impairment (90,282) (74,175)

87,140 88,174

Year ended 31 December

HE+_-_A=+—RHILFE

2022
—E-=

HK$'000
FTERx

2021
—E-—4F
HK$'000
FH T

Revenue & 326,371 290,745
Profit/(loss) for the year FEOEFH, (EBE) 35,162 (6,270)
Other comprehensive income Ef2mlkA = -
Total comprehensive income Z2HE U ALREE 35,162 (6,270)
Dividend received from the associate BB E R e ER 2 IR B - 6,431
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-—#+-RA=+—HIFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 21. REEE QRIS (&)
Summarised financial information of BEREXRKE AR ZHMEERBE
individually material associates (Continueq) (&)

AYD Group BREKE

2021
—E-—4F

HK$°000
TAT

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H
Current assets MEEE 419,868 573,237
Non-current assets FERPHEE 126,051 148,805
Current liabilities mEBaE (316,821) (417,814)
Non-current liabilities EREAE (219,308) (249,195)
Net assets of the associate BENREEE 9,790 55,033
Group’s ownership interest ANEHEZ AR 46.20% 46.20%
Group's share of net assets AEEEEBRERRFEE

of the associate 4,523 25,425
Fair value adjustments including AAERAE(BIERE)

impairment 65,814 201,800

70,337 227,225

Year ended 31 December BET-_A=1+T—HLFE

Revenue W zs 1,950,830 2,315,515
Loss for the year FEEE (6,532) (94,974)
Other comprehensive income Hai2EKA (38,710) 3,619
Total comprehensive income SHERALREE (45,242) (91,355)
Dividend received from the associate B B R R R 2 AR B - 28,130
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—_T - —F+_A=+—HILFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
summarised financial information of
individually material associates (continued)
WCG Group

21. REE N RER @)
BRERBENT M BERMRE
(&)

EREXEE

From

1 January
2021 to

26 February
2021 (date of
disposal)

B-ZT_—%
—H—B=
- —F

—AZ=+7<H
(HERBH)

HK$'000
T T

Period ended AR

Revenue Wz 37,659
Profit for the period F 2% A 4,164
Other comprehensive income H 2 mmEA =
Total comprehensive income 2HEA LR 4,164

Dividend received from the associate

BE S R AELZ BB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHE—
21.

T —F+—fF=+—HIFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The recoverable amount of interests in associates has
been determined by the value-in-use calculation. Cash flow
projections are based on financial budgets approved by the
management covering a 5-year period. Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period have been extrapolated using a 3% (2021:
3%) long-term growth rate. This growth rate is based on the
relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group assessed
the recoverable amount of interests in associates, and
determined that the interests in associates were impaired
by HK$152,094,000 (2021: HK$194,508,000), mainly due to
deterioration and uncertainty of expected future cash flows
from Pangenia Group and AYD Group which is affected by
the deterioration of the business prospects as a result of
COVID-19 pandemic.

21.

REE N R (7

REEE R AR M EEEBERA
BEFEET HensRADERER
E#tEs A EPRBREE - BERAF R
BmED A% (2 —F : 3%)MKH
EREFRR - LR E T ERE TR
RIEA - B ARBBEBITEN TR
.

BHE_T-_—_F+-A=+—HIEFE"
ANEEFHE R E A RS RE SR8

I 788 52 pOHSE 2 8 AR 2L (E1152,094,00078 7T
(ZZT=—4% : 194503000/ 7T) - hEEMH
R SEEREREEBEEHRKBASR
EEERIEEM - AZCOVID-19ZIEE

EBAREERTE -

Pangenia

Group
FoEE

AYD Group
FUEERN

For the year ended BE-S=-C

31 December 2022

t=A :‘I'—EIJJ:fEJE

Gross profit margin ES RS 51.34% 13.80%
Average growth rate FEHER R -3.57% 5.69%
Long-term growth rate RHEHER X 3.00% 3.00%
Discount rate BRIR K 19.80% 15.00%
For the year ended BE-2=-—-F
31 December 2021 +-A=+—HLEE

Gross profit margin ER =X 44.60% 17.28%
Average growth rate FEHig R R 15.05% 7.32%
Long-term growth rate RHER X 3.00% 3.00%
Discount rate AR IR X 16.95% 15.00%

Management determined the growth rates based on past
performance and its expectation of market development.
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant associates.

EEEREBEXRRMEBHMERRE
EREE - PHEMZREATHATRER X
I S BRAB AR A B 2 K A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-T - —F+-_A=1t—RHILFE

22. INVENTORIES 22. 78
2021
—E_—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Merchandise for resale EET D 4,627 5,143
Raw materials R 3,570 3,819
8,197 8,962
23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 23. ZAARBABBR2HKEE
PROFIT OR LOSS
Analysis of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: BEARBEFABR2HBEE 2D

-

2022 2021
—E—— —_ T —%F

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET

Investments held for trading #BEEBEZRE

Equity securities — listed in BAFES —RNEBLT

Hong Kong (@) 406,776 438,271
Equity securities — listed overseas PR % — FEHN =T €) 20,713 1,491
Equity securities — listed in PRC ~ J&ZANES — AP E (a) 187,775 348,983
Investments not held for WHFEEEZ2RE

trading
Equity securities — listed in EARFES —RNEE LT

Hong Kong (@)&(c) 10,721 67,544
Equity securities — listed overseas RZARZE & — g £ @&(c) 5,441 54,419
Unlisted equity securities JE TR ARE H (b)&(c) 13,127 16,245

644,553 926,953

Less: Balances in current portion & : RENE D 84 (615,264) (788,745)
Non-current portion E eI ) 29,289 138,208
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

23.

24.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH  23.

PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes:

(@  The fair values of listed equity securities are based on quoted
market prices in active markets.

(b)  The fair value of unlisted equity securities is determined by
reference to net asset value or by using market approach at
the reporting date.

(c)  The financial assets are classified as financial assets at FVTPL
as the Group has not elected to recognise the fair value gain or
loss through other comprehensive income.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH  24.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BAREFABRB2MBEE @)
Hrat

@ EWRAEBEFZAAEERRERTS
PR m Bt H -

0 FLTREAEBHFZAABEBEEE
FERNHE B RERTISEETE

© MBEESNER/EAABFARREZ
Ho Ay 2 YA R RE R X A (B U SRS

1B

BRAAESAHLMEEBRA 2B
&E

2021

—E_—— —E-_—%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHTT

Unlisted equity securities JE LR ARE A 842,008 942,975
Note: B

The financial assets are classified as financial assets at FVOCI as
the Group made an irrevocable election to recognise the fair value
gain or loss through other comprehensive income. This option is
only applying to instruments that are i) not held for trading; i) not
contractual cash flow solely for payments of principal and interest;
and iii) not derivatives.

HRAEEEH T RO EREREME
EWAER AR EREHEE  MRENTH
EENBARBAREFARMEEEANGT
BEE - ILEBREBEAN) LIEHIEEE
NLFEEANRINEERFEBENEHRER
B RIDIEFETETA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

25. fTEE€@MIA

2022 2021

—s-= —E_—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET AT

Fixed coupon notes FEEEE 38,385 22,295
Note: Kt -

AEEEFUAETERRERAN - ZEERR
BAOXIEMELEIAE - BRAAERAR

The Group has entered into various fixed coupon notes contracts.
These fixed coupon notes contracts are not designated for hedge

purposes and are measured at fair value through profit or loss. ETE ©
The fair values of fixed coupon notes are based on quoted EEERBHNARBENERTISAWMER
market prices in active markets. HEAEo

26. LOAN RECEIVABLES 26. EIRER
Loans granted to borrowers are repayable according to BPERAZEFRESRGERER -
repayment schedules.

2021
— T4

HK$'000
TAT

224

Loan receivables from
third parties

BRE=FZ2ERK

- Term loans — EHER (@) 373,041 443,113
Expected credit loss and TEHAE BB 18 S i E
written-off (b) & (c) (192,859) (269,939)
180,182 173,174
Less: Balances due within one B ERTARBEELZ —FA
year included in current B HA 4 84
assets (73,307) (173,174)
Non-current portion IEMBNEL S 106,875 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year

ended 31 December 2022

26. LOA

Notes:

(@)

N RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, term loan receivables of:

(i) HK$251,146,000 (2021: HK$265,599,000) are secured by
corporate/personal guarantee provided by equity holders
of the borrowers and collateralised by unlisted securities
or listed securities or properties;

(i) HK$115,137,000 (2021: HK$114,092,000) is collateralised
by unlisted or listed securities;

(i)  HK$6,758,000 (equivalent to CHF800,000) (2021:
HK$63,422,000 (equivalent to CHF7,432,000)) are
collateralised by securities and bonds.

As at 31 December 2022, there are no unsecured term loan
receivables (2021: HK$NIil).

The term loan receivables carry fixed interest rates ranging
from around 10% to 12.5% per annum (2021: 10% to 16% per
annum) and all (2021: all) are within the respective maturity
dates.

As at 31 December 2022, loan receivables amounted to
HK$54,493,000 (2021: Nil) had been written-off. These relate
to customers who were (i) in financial difficulties; (i) declared
bankruptcy; or (iii) deceased, and in the opinion of the
directors, such loan receivables are uncollectible.

26. EWER @)
Wit

@

R-ZE-——#F+-A=+—8" kT
BB

() 251,146,000 L (=T = — & :
265,599,000/ 70) Ty R B K5 2 #E
=B ARBHDE MEAER
ERRAIELETBESFR LETES
SE A

(i) 115,137,000 L (= —4F :
114,092,000 70) LAFE_ETsk £
BHIE BRI

(i) 6,758,000 st (48 & $800,0005
TIERR) (=T = —4F : 63,422,000
77T (PR & 737,432,0008 134 88) )
IAREH R EH A -

R-E-—HF+-"A=+—H HEE
BHREREHER(ZE=—F T8
JT) °

Ji& W2 E H1 B SRR £910% 2 12.5%H) [E] TE
FMER(ZEZ—F: FHNERF/I0%E
16%) 5t 28 (ZT-—F 25015
REBEIHAR -

R-IZE-_—F+-A=+—8 EKE
F54,4930008 T (ZEZ—F: | B
0 8H o 5% % BRIB BA() S IR B 7S IR £ ¢ (i)
EMWE  SKilF 2R AR - ME
RAZERREREEWE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z__HF+_HA=t+—HItFE

26. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

The management assessed the collectability of loan
receivables at the end of the reporting period individually with
reference to borrowers’ past settlement history and current
creditworthiness. Loan receivables that were neither past due
nor impaired related to several borrowers for whom there was
no history of default. Loan receivables that were past due but
not impaired as management is of the opinion that there has
not been a significant change in credit quality of the borrower
or the party who provided guarantees and fair value of the
collaterals obtained in respect of these loans.

The impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using general approach to measure ECLS.

The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

Mason Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022
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©

NE-
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Mﬁﬁ#ﬁiﬂiﬂ%%ﬁAZﬁﬁﬁ

FECER K B AIEE - (85I FHE B RE R
ZTW@#& %K@%ﬁﬂﬂ@2§
WERS R EEREHEZETERA
ﬁ%% REBHMERRE BREEE
RAERARE R AR ERARIIA

ki EERERHERRNAREL
BEAEBREL -

WMES T ESERS A ERRA
TEEEEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-—#+-RA=+—HIFE

26. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. EWWER#®)
Notes: (Continued) KBiaE : (48)
(c)  (Continued) © &
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure TXHINBAAEBR T —_F+=
on the Group's loan receivables as at 31 December 2022: A=+—BHNERERNEERBRMKR
HER :

Stage1  Stage1  Stage2  Stage2  Stage3  Stage3 Total Total
$-ER  E-KB SRR ECER  ESBR EZKE it &t

Gross  Allowance Gross  Allowance Gross  Allowance Gross  Allowance
amount ~ forECLs  amount  forECLS  amount  forECLs  amount  forECLS

EARE RARE BARE BARE

43R FRRE  4eE GRBE  4cE  GREE  A%F  ERER
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tén fEx T TEr fEn  FEn  TEn  TEn

Balance asat 1 January 2022 W=E-=f-A-B2&H - - 137494 (8030) 305619  (261909) 443113 (269,939)

New financial assets originated ~ EREEHEEBAE

during the year - - W3 - 2,959 - 1133 =
Derecognised, including ERRLED BEER

repayment, during the year - - (30,744) - - - (30,744) -
Charge during the year Efik = - - 1974 - 185 - 2048
Wrtten-off (Note 26(0) W W 0) = S - - (4493) 54493 (54493) 54493
Bxchange realignment Bl A% = = - - @m0 @) 2102
Balance as at ke St

31 December 2022 tZR=t-RZ&R - - a7 (6,05) 251914  (186,803) 373041  (192,859)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-T - —F+-_A=1t—RHILFE

26. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. EWWER#®)
Notes: (Continued) KBiaE - (#8)
(c)  (Continued) © &

Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage2 Stage3 Total Total
#-Fg  F-KR SZRE  FBR  EzER FzRE it it
Gross — Allowance Gross — Allowance Gross — Allowance Gross — Allowance
amount for ECLS amount ~ for ECLS amount for ECLS amount ~ for ECLS

f& RHEE REiES
28 E : EBEREE i B i EER
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKSO0
Tér  TEr TR TEr At TR TEr TEr

Balance as at 1January 201 R-E--£-A-RA2z&H  1606% M3 77697 Mo 39900 (227852 68292 (24047¢)

New financial assets originated ~ EREEHHEHEAE

during the year - - 28909 - 19 - 30,880 -
Derecognised, including ERRLED BEER

repayment, during the year (160,6%) = (69,112 = (56,252 - (286059) =
Charge during the year ERflR - 705 - 3881 - (3% - (0700
Exchange realignment ERfg - 8 - - - 1209 - 1297
Balance as at W-%=-f

31 December 2021 tZR=t-RZ&8 = = 137,49 8030 05619 (261909 4313 (269939)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. ESREMEBRRIEA

2022
N

R p——

Notes HK$000
Hiat THET

Trade receivables B S ERRIE @ & (c) 508 10,016

Accounts receivable from clients  sti2 MBI E R EES TR RS

arising from provision of EXNEWREFERER
wealth and asset management
services (b) 24,061 17,474

Accounts receivable from third TR F K A0 RS
parties arising from provision EEMEWE=FIR
of securities and commodities
brokerage services:

— custodian clients —H12ERF (b) 67,957 19,843
— margin clients —HFREF (b) 164,039 191,473
— clearing houses and brokers — — & & i 4842 (b) 4,701 24,837
261,266 263,643

Expected credit loss TEHIEEER () (25,011) (24,135)
236,255 239,508

Deposits and prepayments Re MIEN A 17,322 24,945
Other debtors HiEIE (@) 5,468 12,171
Amounts due from related parties & U @854 75 Z 38 ©) 231,850 233,471
254,640 270,587

Expected credit loss TREEEEE @ & (e) (191,556) (191,556)
63,084 79,031

Total trade and other receivables, & 5 [ E fth fE W k1B 4858

net of ECL provision KRB EERERE 299,339 318,539
Less: Balances due within one W ETARBEE LN —F
year included in current PRI BB A 45 84
assets (289,700) (308,511)
Non-current portion EMBNEB 9,639 10,028
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE— T —F+-A=t+—HItFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

Settlement terms of trade receivables

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit. The credit terms offered to these customers are
generally in credit limit and credit period from 30 to 60 days.

Settlement terms of accounts receivable

Accounts receivable arising from the ordinary course of
business of brokerage in securities and commaodities in respect
of cash clients and margin clients are two or three trading days
after the transaction dates.

Accounts receivable arising from the ordinary course of
business of brokerage in index, commodity and currency
futures contracts represent the margin deposits maintained
with futures clearing house, options clearing house or brokers
to meet the margin requirements of open contracts. Margin
calls from clearing house and brokers are settled on a daily
basis. The excess amounts over the required margin deposits
stipulated are repayable on demand.

The credit facility limits to margin clients are determined by the
discounted market value of the collateral securities accepted
by the Group. The majority of the loans to margin clients,
which are secured by the underlying pledged securities are
interest-bearing. The Group maintains a list of approved stocks
for margin lending at a specified loan to collateral ratio. Any
excess in the lending ratio will trigger a margin call which the
customers have to make up the shortfall.

Loans to margin clients as at the end of the reporting period
were secured by the customers’ securities to the Group as
collateral with discounted market value of approximately
HK$276,964,000 (2021: HK$425,833,000).

The Group determines the allowance for impaired debts
based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis
of accounts receivable and on management'’s judgement,
including the assessment of change in credit quality, collateral
and the past collection history of each client. The concentration
of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large
and unrelated.

Trading limits are set for customers. The Group seeks to
maintain tight control over its outstanding accounts receivable
in order to minimise the credit risk. Overdue balances are
regularly monitored by management.
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BERER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

()

Ageing analysis and impairment
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables, by invoice date is as follows:

27. E5REMEBEWRE @
#isE : ()

(©

R 2 AT RORLE
RB|EMR - RBEFREH 2 E HRUGK
BREREDOMIT

2022 2021

—s-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Less than 1 month DR —1EA 508 3,595
1 month to 3 months —Z==1@A - 5,946
4 months to 6 months mZEN{EA - 475
508 10,016

No ageing analysis has been disclosed in respect of accounts
receivable arising from the ordinary course of brokerage
business and wealth and asset management service business,
as in the opinion of the management, it does not give
additional value in view of the business’ nature.

Movements in the expected credit loss are as follows:

WERBLET  MEREEEERY
EBM A BRE B EL N BIIRTE
BN REAEEERR  EN
FBHEE - ZRETAEMINEE-

TEHMEEERESHMT

At the beginning of the reporting period %} 45 Hi %) 24,135 37,057
Allowance/(reversal) for expected BHEEBRREE  (BE)

credit loss 876 (12,922)
At the end of the reporting period RS HER 25,011 24,135

For trade receivables, impairment analysis is performed at
each reporting date using the simplified approach to measure
ECLs. As at 31 December 2022, the gross carrying amount
and loss allowance of trade receivables is HK$508,000 (2021:
HK$10,016,000) and HK$3,000 (2021: HK$88,000) respectively.

For accounts receivable, impairment analysis is performed at
each reporting date using general approach to measure ECLS.

HEZEBKIEMES - NERE A EE
R AT EEMEEBIEETRES
fe-RZFB-__F+-_A=+—H &
S EWGRIAR BRI AR E RSB EED B
/508,000 7T (== = — 4 : 10,016,000
7 7T) &3,000/8 7T (—Z — —4F : 83,000
I ©

SR SRME - RNESMERMER—
BT AR BRBESBIRETRED -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 27. EGRHEMEBEWRTIE®)

Notes: (Continued) Htat - (&)

(c) Ageing analysis and impairment (Continued) () ERERD M RIRME (F)
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, ZATERMSARNELER BERE
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable FRFEBBASNERBEEE &
information that is available at the reporting date about past AE M R AR RSB R G TRRIN A IR R ]
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic FEK - —MRME B REAMEUK
conditions. Generally, trade and account receivables are TE fin 780 HR 68 38 — G I IB 7B 2 BR A 58 i S
written-off if past due for more than one year and are not TTIRBNRI T LARSH -

subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure TREBVERAEER T _—_F =
on the Group's accounts receivable as at 31 December 2022 E-—F+ZA=1+—BEKERD
and 2021: FEERBRMRRAHER

Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage2  Stage2  Stage3  Stage3 Total Total
£-ER  F-ER EER  FCRR  %SER %ZER At fit

Gross  Allowance Gross  Allowance Gross  Allowance Gross  Allowance
amount  forECLs  amount  forECLS  amount  forECLS  amount  for ECLS

RARE RAEE RARE RHEE

23R  EEER A58 BERR A5R  EBEER B8  BERR
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
TR TR Tin TR TR TiEn Tin TR

Balance as at 1 January 2022 R=S--%-A-A&H 229,834 (253) 2 @ 23,791 (23792) 253,627 (24,047)

New financial assets originated ~ EREEHEHKEE

during the year 235,994 - - - 1,308 - 237,302 -
Derecognised, including FREER RREER

repayment, during the year (229,834) 253 (2) 2 (335) 338 (230171) 593
Charged during the year Ll - (246) - - - (1,308) - (1,554)
Balance as at R-E-ZfF

31 December 2022 TZR=1-REH 235,994 (246) - - 24,764 (24,762) 260,758 (25,008)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+_HA=t+—HItFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

()

(d)

(e)

Ageing analysis and impairment (Continued)

Stage 1
-8
6ross
amount

Allowance
for ECLS

T FER
HK$'000 HK§ 000
AL TEL

27. E5REMEBEWRE @
#sE : (4)
(©  FREGSH RAL{E (4D)

Stage 2

BB

(ross
amount

HK$'000
TEL

Stage 2

Stage 3 Stage 3 Total Total

2R F=ER  F=RA Rt At

Allowance
for ECLS

HK$'000

Allowance
for ECLS

Allowance
for ECLS

(ross
amount

Gross
amount

HK$'000 HK$ OOO HK§'000

Balance as at 1January 2021 R-E--F-A-Rf# 189,258 (385) 31,694 (86) 36,561 (36,548) 257513 (37,019
New financial assets originated ~ FREEHEEKEE

(uring the year 229,834 - 2 - 3% - 230,17 -
Derecognised, including FRE R BEEE

repayment, during the year (189.259) 385 (31,694) 86 (13,105) 13,09 (234,057) 13,562
Charged during the year FRMk - (253) - @ = (335) = (590)
Balance as at RIB=-%

31 December 2021 +-A=t-R&% 229834 (253) 2 2 23791 (23792) 253627 (24.067)
Other debtors (d) HhEE
For other debtors, impairment analysis is performed at HREMEE  RESTERSRER
each reporting date using general approach and based on HERBAZIERT—EAESREE
12-months ECLs. BT -
Amounts due from related parties (e) FEURRAEE S FIE
Included in amounts due from related parties were amounts BT FE UK BA B 5 SRIE B0 & B8 A FE U

due from beneficial owners of respective non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries of HK$40,266,000 (2021:
HK$40,266,000) and other receivables from an associate
of HK$120,474,000 (2021: HK$120,474,000), which are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one year, and
dividend receivable from an associate of HK$71,082,000
(2021: HK$71,082,000) which is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable in five years from the date of dividend declaration.
The carrying value of the amounts due approximate their fair
value. The ECLs are based on the 12-month ECLS. No increase
in loss allowance for amounts due from related parties during
the year (2021: increased by HK$188,788,000).

%/‘ﬂﬁ%ﬁik#ﬁﬂﬁﬁé%ma/\%ﬁ
A FXIB40,266,0000 T (Z &2 = —
40,266,000 7T) K FE U Bt & R 7 ) ﬁ
fth 5K 78 120,474,000 70 (Z T = —F ¢
120,474,000% 7T) * B AEEM - 2 8
RAR—EREE UAREER 28
FEREEIRARASFANEEEZ —
Bt 2 1 ] A9 8 Ui iR 2.71,082,0007% 7T
(ZZ——4 :71,082,00087T) ° FEU K
EMEREAEEEALERS - BHEE
BRDE2EABREEEETE - F
A - K R B 5 R A S 18 R 4 I A 3
hn(ZZT=—4F : $£)1188,788,000/8 7T °

EREBEZERERAT / 2022FERE

233



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-T - —F+-_A=1t—RHILFE

28. BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

TR BAESBRES

Fixed bank deposits R1TE BT X (@) 1,107,902 551,457
Bank balances and cash WITHEB IR 642,477 1,185,994
(b)&(c) 1,750,379 1,737,451

(@ As at 31 December 2022, fixed bank deposits are @ MNBE-_—_F+-A=+—H8" BT
made for varying periods between three to six months EHTF AR BUAREIRIR & F
(2021: between three to six months) depending on the XN FZ=2XEA(ZE=—F:
immediate cash requirements. NFE==/MEA) -

(b) As at 31 December 2022, the balance consists of ) RN-BE-_—F+-A=+—A8" 4
a significant amount denominated in Swiss Franc BAE AR TR ([ 0ARR ) REUT
("CHF") and Euro approximate to HK$74,043,000 FHEREREFIE - 7 B4 &74,043,000
(2021: HK$6,396,000) and HK$29,291,000 (2021: BIL(ZF = —F 1 6,396,000/ 7T)
HK$73,318,000), respectively. 129,291,000 L (ZE = —F ¢

73,318,000/ 7L) °

(c) The loss allowance decreased by HK$2,000 (2021: © FATHMRITER  RITEHREB®
decreased by HK$1,025,000) for fixed bank deposits, RSB E R 20008 T (22 =
bank balances and cash during the year. F 5 41,0250008 7T) ©

(d) Cash and cash equivalents at the end of reporting ) BREBIRRBREIZERTEERE

period include deposit with banks of RMB25,578,000
(equivalent to HK$29,697,000) (2021: RMB34,430,000
(equivalent to HK$42,141,000)) held by subsidiaries
which are not freely remittable to the holding company
because of currency exchange restrictions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

29. BEZRHMENRIEA

2022
—=-=
Notes HK$°'000
Bt FET
Trade payables to third parties ERNE=TESHEKENK (@) 3,910 11,028
Accounts payable to clients RIREFEREEEERS
arising from provision of EENENEFERER
wealth and asset management
services (b) 107,874 169,132
Accounts payable to third parties FhHIR & A M B & 40 iR
arising from provision of EEZENE=ZFERN:
securities and commodities
brokerage services:
— custodian clients —fEEP (b) 411,740 577,104
— margin clients —HREF (b) 38,445 73,403
— clearing house and brokers — BEFRELEA (b) 26,400 4,176
588,369 834,843
Less: Cash held on behalf of B REREFPEARS
clients (c) (430,257) (613,084)
158,112 221,759
Other payables E A FE A SR8 (@) 59,950 92,466
Deposits received BilkEe 931 4,183
Amounts due to related parties  FE{ B3 5 518 e) 267 288
61,148 96,937
Total trade and other payables 5 REMEMNKIBRE 219,260 318,696
Less: Balances due within one B ETARBIAE 2R
year included in current —F A F| B A ER
liabilities (201,525) (270,729)
Non-current portion IEREN B 17,735 47,967
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE—E-_—Ft+-A=t+—HIFE

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
(@) Ageing analysis of trade payables
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
payables by date of issue of invoice is as follows:

29. ESZREMENRKE R
() E 3P RORMRE S I
RIBESHK - BRERERAAER
REMBRR AT

2022 2021
===

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FH T

Less than 1 month PR —1{E A 1,703 6,858
1 month to 3 months —E=1@A 1,951 4,100
4 months to 6 months M= E A 256 70
3,910 11,028

No ageing analysis has been disclosed in respect of accounts
payable arising from the ordinary course of brokerage business
and wealth and asset management service business, as in the
opinion of the management, it does not give additional value in
view of the business’ nature.

(b) Settlement terms of accounts payable
Accounts payable arising from the ordinary course of business
of wealth and asset management services are repayable to
clients on demand.

Accounts payable arising from the ordinary course of business
of brokerage in securities in respect of cash clients and margin
clients are two or three trading days after the transaction
dates.

Accounts payable arising from the ordinary course of business
brokerage in index, commodity and currency futures contracts
represent the margin deposits received from clients for their
trading in futures contracts. The excess over the required
margin deposits stipulated are repayable to clients on demand.

(c) The Group maintains segregated accounts with banks and
authorised institutions to hold cash on behalf of clients arising
from its normal course of business in provision for brokerage
services. At 31 December 2022, client money maintained
in segregated accounts not otherwise dealt with in the
consolidated financial statements amounted to HK$430,257,000
(2021: HK$613,084,000).

(d) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, included in current other
payables are salaries and bonus payables, professional
advisory fee payables and bond interest payable and included
in non-current other payables is provision of voluntary
liquidation cost for one of the subsidiaries.

(d) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the amounts due to the
directors of a subsidiary are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed repayment term. The carrying value of the amounts
due approximate their fair value.
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(€0 AREBRIRITRERERER LIBIER
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N—REBBEFELENRS - RN=F
T+ A=+—H THRBILE
P8 EREE SRR BITEEN
B F /I8 A430,257,0008 T (—FE — —
F : 613,084,000/87T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—F+_A=1t—HIFE

30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contract liabilities arising from the
segment of:
Wealth and asset management,
financial brokerage and
related services

AU TAEBELEZE

18 28 R 755

BHEaE

MEREEER oRELENR

18,400 18,357

The Group receives in advance of advisory service fee upon
the signing of insurance advisory service agreement with
customers.

Movements in contract liabilities:

REBRNE P 2 F R b B IR 16 25 B UL
MENBERRGE -

BRAEED

2021
— T —4F

HK$'000
TAET

At 1 January n—HA—H 18,357 16,056
Decrease in contract liabilities as a BREFVERTAGHNEE

result of recognising revenue during ZFRBAEBHEHEE

the year that was included in the B

contract liabilities at the beginning of

the year (18,357) (16,056)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result R E B RE A EEEHA L

of billing in advance of insurance BEEM

advisory services 18,400 18,357
At 31 December Rt+-_A=+—H 18,400 18,357
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

31. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 31. FFEER
2021
—E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FH T
Current BN A
- Secured bank loan —HIBRITE R 76,030 =
Notes: Biat -
At the end of the reporting period, the bank loan of CHF9,000,000 RERE B - #8175 59,000,000% 1% BB (48
(equivalent to HK$76,030,000) (2021: HK$Nil) is secured by land B 176,030,000 ) (ZE=Z—F : THT)
and building held by the Group with an aggregate carrying value of LA 72N & B F7 4% BR @ 48 (& /420,000,000% + %
CHF20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$168,955,000), interest-bearing at BE (#8 % $2168,955,0005% 7T ) &) + 11 R I8 5 1k
3.5% per annum, and repayable in November 2023 with 3-month EAR - RFREIS%HE  WER T ==
notice period. F+—RABEH=EABMBER -
32. DEFERRED TAXATION 32, EERBIE
Movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax RERAREEFERIBFEKT 2 BT

position are as follows:

Recognised net deferred tax ERAELHE(EE)

(assets)/liabilities EEFHE
At the beginning of the reporting period 7R & H3 4) 23,251 25,899
Credited to profit or loss (Note 13) Fr A= (MFE13) (35,582) (1,699)
Credited to other comprehensive income 5t A E b & mE WA - (567)
Exchange realignment PE 5 (262) (382)
At the end of the reporting period RIE&EH KR (12,593) 23,251
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

32. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 32. EEMIEE)
Recognised net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) at the end of RREER 2 B REEHIEEE (BF)
the reporting period represent the following: FRRLT

Assets Liabilities
BE afE

2022 2021 2022 2021

—==-= T —ZE—-C— - —4F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET T FET T T

Tax losses HIaEE 22,862 3,684 - =

Intangible assets mEEE = = (6,674) (13,418)
Financial assets at fair value 2 AR EFABRZ

through profit or loss SREE - - (3,595) (13,517)

Deferred tax assets/ EREREEE
(liabilities) (B8fE) 22,862 3,684 (10,269) (26,935)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
HK$615,088,000 (2021: HK$580,623,000) and deductible
temporary differences of HK$217,000 (2021: HK$180,000).
Neither the tax losses nor the deductible temporary
differences expire under current tax legislation. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these items
because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the Group can utilise the benefits
therefrom.

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of temporary
difference associated with the Group’s Australia subsidiary’s
undistributed retained profits, amounting to approximately
AU$1,009,000 (2021: AU$2,186,000). No deferred tax liabilities
have been recognised in respect of this difference because
the Group is in a position to control the dividend policies of
the subsidiary and it is probable that such difference will not
be reversed in the foreseeable future.

RZBZ=ZF+ZRA=+—H ' x&EEIL
Rt B 5B IE E518615,088,0008 T (= F
— —%F : 580,623,000/ 70) K A] 40 B BF 1
ZEE217,000/8 7T (ZZ = —4 : 180,000/ 7T)
HMRECHBEE - RBRITHE  BE
BEEINBEEREZESTEEH - H
7S 55 (8] 71 K AT B A1) A R 3R FE SR B0 1)K
HHPT AR ALY ERZSEE
HREERIBEEE -

W_EBE-_—F+_-_A=+—H #Lx&E
BN B AR 2 RO ERRE R B BN
B 2= 5BAAEAA) 51,000,000 7T (T B = — 4 :
2,186,000 7T) » MR AN 5 B A 88 1L 3%
EMBAROBKRBEEER  BZEE8Eaq
TERARRARAT BT S B - MO TR 2
EEERRELERIERE -

=
g
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e TR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE—E-_—Ft+-A=t+—HIFE

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. BA

Number of

shares
B & B

Issued and fully paid shares: ERTRAZKRS :

R=—Z=-—%—HF—8-
—2-—-%+-A=t+—-8"
—E-_-"f—-F—-HK
—E-_—_F+=-H=+—H

At 1 January 2021,
31 December 2021,
1 January 2022 and
31 December 2022

44,364,885,557 6,142,962

34. RESERVES EE

240

(@ The foreign currency translation reserve comprises @ HINEEHEEOFBENERNEER
exchange differences relating to the translation of FEBANTIBINETS D T 2 B SR
the financial statements of the foreign operations of ENEE SR E AREE 25| Y
the Group and/or its associates from their functional WO TE N ERE (HEEEME2EBA
currency to the Group's presentation currency which FRRERR LA R AESNIBS BE W (B R RET) o
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve.

(b) The FVOCI reserve represents fair value reserve ) HEAREEAEMEEWAREEA
comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of K EBBEENRESBREEZIRE
equity investment designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 BB IR L FOSE IS T IR A L E T
that are held at the end of the reporting period. AHE 2 EUWA RIS E A 1A

RETEEFEE -
(c) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, no reserves were © RZZEZ—Frx-_T-_—4F+=A4

available for distribution to the equity holders of the =+—8 SEAIHES IR TR A
company. w=EFE ANRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE
35.

T —F+-A=+—HIFE

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement scheme

The Group has provided for its eligible employees a defined
contribution retirement scheme under Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund managed by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and
each of the employees make monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% (2021: 5%) of the employees’ relevant income
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation,
which are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 (2021: HK$1,500).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the aggregate
amount of employer’s contributions made by the Group to
the defined contribution retirement scheme and recognised
in profit or loss was approximately HK$2,572,000 (2021:
HK$2,878,000).

Contributions to the plan rest immediately, there is no
forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group to
reduce the existing level of contribution during the reporting
period (2021: Nil).

35.

EERAKER

REMRFERAKETE
AEBARHAGEKEERFZHEEENR
ST E (GBS mREH
FORIRGETE - BT EIMEERAEE
BEMH THRABILITABILEERN
B¢ -RBERESHE A5ERSEER
BRIZBBESTEERRTENEERAL
AZ5%(ZZF=—4F : 5%) Wzt
MEIA1,50078 7T (2 — — 4 : 1,500/ 7T) 1
PR

REE-_Z-_—F+_-_A=+—HILFE"
REBE MR EHRFRNGEIFTER EHR
RiEz AR - 48FR A /2,572,000 7T (=
T —4F : 2878000/ 7T) °

AT BEL M HRBIRRE - NS
[ - AN SR A AR R IR B R FOKE
PR R(ZEZ—F : &) -
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Defined benefits retirement plan
The Company operates a funded defined benefit plan for all
its qualifying employees in the Principality of Liechtenstein.

The Group’s defined benefit plan is a cash-balance plan,
which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered multi-employer collective pension fund. The
plan has the legal form of a foundation and it is administrated
by independent trustees with the assets held separately from
those of the Company. The trustees are responsible for the
determination of the investment strategy of the plan.

The employees are insured at least in accordance with the
legal provisions for pension funds. The pension plans cover
the risks of the economic consequences of old age, disability
and death in accordance with the Liechtenstein pension act
(BPVG).

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk, the risk of changes
in the life expectancy for pensioners and equity market risk.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the plan assets and
the present value of the defined benefit obligations at 31
December 2022 and 2021, were carried out by Martin Kuhn
of Ernst & Young AG, who is a Swiss Certified Pension Fund
Manager and a member of the Swiss Association of Actuaries,
using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.
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35. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

BERNER ()
RERMBRIKETE
ARRIREMBEIXBLIENAIRER
REFEMRAEE -

AR B FE B A E B 2R o R EET 8
EHERMEBEENZEISERERS
HEe U - ZArBRBESGMERT
HBYREAEE MEEERARARE
EDRBE XTEARREEZENER
B RS o

BREEVRBERSEZRBEESFRRE -
RIBIXBLEERZLERBPVC) BES
AFEREEF  BRNMETHEERRN
B

ZAtEEEN RER EEoERERS
S BCrYE e LA R A T 5 H AR o

ZAEEENENBEMERRN =T ==
FR-ZZE_—F+_A=+—BARAEBEH
HERIRETIAREMSt & Young AG AIMartin
Kuhn (& Bin T fMERES LR RIFTE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—F+_A=1t—HIFE

35. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 35.
Defined benefits retirement plan (continued)
The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

BERKEN 2
REBAMBMNE 8 (@)
RBEHRTRAZ EBREBRNT ¢

Discount rate (%) B IR R (%) 2.30% 0.30%
Interest credit rate on retirement BZHERAEEEE%) 1.00% 1.00%
savings (%)
Inflation rate BEFIKREX 1.25% 0.70%
Expected rate of future pension cost *X%% EAMTEHE EAH%) 0.00% 0.00%
increases (%)
Expected rate of salary increases (%) T EMTE B _E F(%) 1.5% 1.00%
Mortality table ENTES BVG/LPP BVG/LPP
2020 2020
Generational Generational

Menthonnex Menthonnex

The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan
assets was CHF 1,692,000 (equivalent to HK$14,294,000) (2021:
CHF1,830,000 (equivalent to HK$15,617,000)). The surplus of
CHF223,000 (equivalent to HK$1,884,000) (2021: deficiency
of CHF275,000 (equivalent to HK$2,345,000)) is expected to
be cleared over the remaining service period of 11.71 years
(2021: 15.11 years).

BEEERET ZTEEENTHERR
1,692,000 1% BF (48 & $214,294,000% 7T.)
— T~ — 4 : 1,830,0008% A B (FRE R
15,617,000% 7T)) © T8 B #% H 37223,000% +
SEBRR (FRE 7M,884,0008 7T) (Z B = —4 ¢
/&5 $8275,0005: £ 5% BB (#8 & £22,345,0007%
L)) MBHERTNNE (ZE=—F:
15.114F) IRISEARIBE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-T - —F+-_A=1t—RHILFE

35. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
Defined benefits retirement plan (continued)
A guantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions
as at the end of the reporting period is shown below:

Increase
in rate

35. EEERKERN @)
REBAMBMNE 8 (@)
AR 5 BAK 10 BA R AR 0 BAL BB AT
T

Increase/
(decrease) in
defined
benefit
obligations
RERF
BEEsm/ BEEsm/
(R 2) (R 2)
HK$'000 %
THET THBT

Increase/
(decrease) in
defined
benefit
obligations

Decrease
in rate
RERA

For the year ended HE-_Z-__F
31 December 2022 +-A=+—H
HEE
Discount rate AL 5 & 0.25% (342) 0.25% 360
Future salary increase 7R B B A 0 0.25% 2 0.25% (2)
Future pension cost RREBHES K ARIEN
increase 0.25% (12,411) N/ATiE A N/ATiE A
For the year ended HE-_Z-_—F
31 December 2021 +-A=+—H
LEE
Discount rate AL I8 & 0.25% (607) 0.25% 641
Future salary increase 7R 3R 3 B A 0 0.25% 19 0.25% (17
Future pension cost RREBHESKARIEN
increase 0.25% 437 N/AA i N/AT i3 A

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based
on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined
benefit obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.
The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in a significant
assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant. The
sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual
change in the defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely
that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one
another.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-ZT-_—F+_A=1t—HIFE

35. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
Defined benefits retirement plan (continued)
The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement

35. BERMNKER @)
RERBMEBKETE 20
AT BN GRS 2R E T RN AR

of comprehensive income in respect of the plan are as N
follows:

2022 2021
—==-= —E - —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Current service cost B EA AR 7 Ak AN 822 (1,409)
Interest cost F B A 49 69
Interest income FIE WA (42) (54)
Administrative expenses THHRX 10 34
Net benefit (income)/expenses B (A FXFE 839 (1,356)
Recognised in employee benefit expenses EMEE BFF = R 822 (1,405)
Recognised in finance costs R EE AR 49 69
Recognised in interest income R F B ARER (42) (54)
Recognised in administrative expenses RITIE S FERR 10 34
839 (1,356)

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligations are as follows:

FREBMEENRELSEINMAT

2022 2021

S CF —E -

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

At 1 January n—H—H 17,962 49,610
Current service cost BIVER AR 75 A A% 822 1,831
Past service credit BERGE R = (3,236)
Employee contributions fE B #H 273 886
Interest cost NN 49 69
Benefit paid RENEK (2,708) (30,020)
Actuarial gain TEEEF (3,660) 394
Exchange difference on a foreign plan SNFEETEIE H %8 (327) (1,572)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 12,411 17,962
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35. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 35. EERMNKER @)
Defined benefits retirement plan (continued)
The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair
value of plan assets are as follows:

REBAMBMNE 8 (@)
REBHEERFBEEARBOLBNT :

246

2022
—E_CE
Defined Defined
benefit Fair value Benefit benefit Fair value Benefit
obligations  of plan assets liability Obligations of plan assets liability
REREN THEE RERA TEEE
Bff ME BRER af M BHER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'00! HK$'000
TR TiEn TiEn T Thn T
1 January -A-H 17,962 (15,617) 2,345 49610 (41,997) 7613
Pension cost charged 18/ GEA)BEH
(credited) to profitorloss; B EHKA:
Service cost RBAA 822 10 832 (1409) el (1371)
Net interest expense Gk 49 (42) 7 69 (54) 15
Sub-total inclucled in BRI
profit or loss 871 (32) 839 (1,33) (20 (1,35)
Benefits paid by the plans gt EI f A8 (2,708) 2,708 = (30,020 30,020 =
RemeasLrement gains/ EFHER LA
(losses) in other N ¢:74
comprehensive income: (BR):
Return on plan assets HEEEDR
(excluding amounts (FRHEHA
included in net interest MERFEM
£xpense) £%) = (723) (123) - (2,114) 2114
Actuarial changes GHBREGELN
arising from changes =T
in demographic
assumptions - - - (598) - (598)
Actuarial changes arising £ 2EFEBELH
from changes in financial ~ BE%2
assumptions (3,362) - (3,362) (251) - (251)
Experience adjustment BREE (298) - (298) 1213 - 1213
Sub-total included inother st AE M2 WAL
comprehensive income et (3,660) (723) (4,383) 304 (2,114) (1,720)
Contribution by employer X3 - (546) (546) - (1950) (1950)
Contribution by employee BB HE; 3 (273) = 886 (836) =
Exchange realignment EiHBE (327) 188 (139) (1572) 1330 (24)
31 December T-A=t-H 1241 (14,295) (1,884) 17,962 (15,617) 2,345
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BE-_Z-—#+-RA=+—HIFE

35. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 35.
Defined benefits retirement plan (continued)
The major categories of the fair value of the total plan assets
are as follows:

Equity instruments, quoted in an RERTISMENER TR
active market

Debt